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CORPORATE INFORMATION
QA EH

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Chan, Sze-wan (Chief Executive Officer)
Chan, Hoi-wan

Chan, Lok-wan

Lam, Kwong-wai

Non-executive Directors.
Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)

Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Chan, Kwok-wai
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Chan, Sze-wan (Chairman)
Lam, Kwong-wai (Chief Investment Officer)
Chan, Kwok-wai

Ma, Tsz-chun
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Phillis Loh, Lai-ping (Chairman)
Chan, Kwok-wai

Ma, Tsz-chun
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lam, Kwong-wai

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Chan, Sze-wan

Lam, Kwong-wai
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SOLICITORS

(Listed in alphabetical order)
Baker & McKenzie
Deacons

Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

BANKERS

(Listed in alphabetical order)

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited, London Branch

PLACE OF INCORPORATION

Bermuda

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon's Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG

26th Floor, China Evergrande Centre
38 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AR &EX

BRANCH REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2862 8555

Fax:  (852) 2865 0990/(852) 2529 6087

OFFICE IN THE PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

Room 1003, 10th Floor, Oriental Place
No. 9 East Dongfang Road

North Dongsanhuan Road

Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

Post Code: 100027

Tel:  (8610) 6466 0638

Fax:  (8610) 6466 0238

WEBSITE

http://www.chineseestates.com

STOCK CODE

127

BOARD LOT

500 shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:
Tel:  (852) 2866 6999
Fax: (852) 2866 2822/(852) 2866 2833

E-mail:investor.relations@chineseestates.com

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

EREBFETITRE

EBRREBFLFEZLARRAA

BBEF

ERKNBRI1835%

AP TE

17122171654

T (852) 2862 8555

{EE : (852) 2865 0990/(852) 2529 6087

PEARANENRSE

PRI RTHGRE
R=RILEK

R R
RATBIREKEI0Z1003 %
4% 100027

B35 (8610) 6466 0638
{EE : (8610) 6466 0238

At

http://www.chineseestates.com

B4 155

EEE(\

500/%

REEBE

FRREEBECEN B

BERE: (852) 2866 6999

fE5& : (852) 2866 2822/(852) 2866 2833
E# : investor.relations@chineseestates.com



EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. CHAN, Sze-wan, aged 40, joined the Group (the Company together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in 2002 and has been appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company since 2012. She acts as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since 2015 and also acts as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan is also the chairman of
the investment committee of the Company. She is responsible for the
Group's overall and day-to-day management including overseeing the
Group's properties' sales and leasing affairs. Ms. Chan has over 16 years
of experience in sales and marketing, management and operations. She
is the elder sister of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and Ms. Chan, Lok-wan, and the
aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Chan
is a director of certain substantial shareholders of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the laws of Hong Kong) (the "SFO").

Ms. CHAN, Hoi-wan, aged 39, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since 2017 and also acts as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. She had joined the then associate of the
Group from 2002 to 2005 and participated in its cosmetics business,
including Two Girls products. She also possessed of more than 3.5 years’
work experience in media field in Hong Kong and gained experience in
properties and securities investments through her investments. Ms. Chan
is the younger sister of Ms. Chan, Sze-wan, the elder sister of Ms. Chan,
Lok-wan, the step-mother of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai and the sister-in-law of
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Chan is
a director of certain substantial shareholders of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Ms. CHAN, Lok-wan, aged 34, joined the Group in 2008 and has been
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2015. She is the
Manager of Sales and Leasing Department and also acts as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Business and Management (Marketing) from Brunel University
London and a Master Degree of Science in Communication, Information
and Society from The London School of Economics and Political Science.
She is responsible for the Group's marketing affairs, overseeing the
Group's cosmetics business, including Two Girls products, and participated
in the Group's properties’ sales and leasing businesses. Ms. Chan has over
10 years of experience in sales and marketing. She is the younger sister of
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan and Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, and the aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-

wai.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS EEf/

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (contd)

Mr. LAM, Kwong-wai, aged 63, joined the Group in 1989 and has
been appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2012.
Mr. Lam is the Group Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the
Company and acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
is also a member of the investment committee of the Company and acts
as the chief investment officer. Mr. Lam is an independent non-executive
director of Lifestyle China Group Limited, the shares of this company
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) and holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from
the University of Warwick, United Kingdom. He has over 41 years of

experience in auditing, finance and accounting industries.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU, Ming-wai, aged 38, has been appointed as a Director of
the Company since 2006 and appointed as the Chairman of the board
of Directors since 2014. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws from
King's College London, a Master Degree of Laws from The London School
of Economics and Political Science, and a Doctor Degree of Philosophy
in Laws from King's College London. He worked at The Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc. and Longview Partners LP, both in London prior to joining the
Group. Mr. Lau is a registered attorney in the State of New York and a
CFA (Chartered Financial Analyst) charterholder. He is the step-son of Ms.
Chan, Hoi-wan, the nephew of Ms. Chan, Sze-wan, Ms. Chan, Lok-wan
and Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai. As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Lau is
a director of a substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO.

Ms. Amy LAU, Yuk-wai, aged 65, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2004. Ms. Lau is also a non-
executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, the shares
of this company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
She was registered with the Royal College of Dental Surgeons of Ontario,
Canada and is a retired dentist. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science and a Doctor Degree of Dental Surgery from the University of
Toronto, Canada. She is the sister-in-law of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and the

aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN, Kwok-wai, aged 60, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2004. He is the chairman
of the audit committee and remuneration committee, and a member of
the nomination committee and investment committee of the Company.
Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from the
Monash University, Australia. He is also a member of CPA Australia and
a member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He has
over 39 years of experience in finance and accounting industries. Mr.
Chan is currently a director of High Progress Consultants Limited. He is
also an independent non-executive director of China Investments Holdings
Limited, Far East Consortium International Limited, National Electronics
Holdings Limited and Tern Properties Company Limited respectively, the
shares of all these companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Ms. Phillis LOH, Lai-ping, aged 54, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 2006. She
is the chairman of the nomination committee, a member of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Ms. Loh is an
independent non-executive director of In Technical Productions Holdings
Limited, the shares of this company are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Loh holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws, both from The University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Loh was a practising solicitor from 1990 to 1997, and has since
become a practising barrister-at-law after she was called to the Hong Kong
Bar in 1998. She was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong (1990) and
the United Kingdom (1991), and is also a barrister and solicitor in the
Supreme Court of the Australian Capital Territory (since 1991). Ms. Loh
is a CEDR (Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution) Accredited Mediator
(2009) and an appointed member of the Board of Review (Inland
Revenue Ordinance) (2018). She was appointed Deputy District Judge
in 2014 and 2016, and Temporary Deputy Registrar of the High Court in
2018.

Mr. MA, Tsz-chun, aged 53, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2008. He is a member of
the audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee
and investment committee of the Company. Mr. Ma is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) and has over 31 years of experience in auditing,
finance and accounting industries. He is currently a director and the
general manager of Sino-Bridge China Consulting Limited. Mr. Ma is an
independent non-executive director of In Technical Productions Holdings
Limited, the shares of this company are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ma holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration and a Master of Science Degree in E-Commerce (Business
Programme), both from The Chinese University of Hong Kong as well as a
Master of Science Degree in China Business Studies from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Ma is a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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PROFILES OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES
BRITHRAEEHN

Ms. Connie CHEUNG, Mun-yi, aged 51, joined the Group (the
Company together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in 2007 and is
the Head of Legal Department. Ms. Cheung is a practising solicitor. She
holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws,
both from The University of Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, Ms.
Cheung worked in both law firm as a solicitor and public sector as an
in-house legal counsel. Ms. Cheung is responsible for overseeing the legal
aspects of the Group's various businesses, including project development,
commercial investments, conveyancing and tenancy. She has over
27 years of legal experience. Ms. Cheung also acts as a director of a

subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Hazel LAI, Ming-yan, aged 50, joined the Group in 2000 and is
the Senior Manager— Contracts of Project Development Department. Ms.
Lai is a registered professional surveyor. She holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Building from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree of Science in Construction and Real Estate from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Ms. Lai is
responsible for the quantity surveying affairs. She has over 28 years of

relevant experience.
Various businesses and functions of the Company are significantly under

the direct responsibilities of the Executive Directors who are also regarded

as senior executives of the Company.
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I am pleased to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group") for the year ended 31st December, 2018 (the “Year") to
the shareholders of the Company.

RESULTS

Profit for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was HK$1,015.3
million as compared to HK$3,708.9 million for last year. The decrease
in profit for the Year was mainly due to (i) no imputed interest income
from deferred consideration receivables was recognised during the Year
as compared with HK$772.6 million recorded in 2017; (ii) no gain on
disposal of subsidiary was recorded during the Year as compared with
gains on the Pinecrest Disposal and the Win Kings Disposal (both defined
on page 26 of this annual report) of HK$143.3 million in total recorded
in 2017; (i) decrease in profit from listed securities investments and
treasury products of HK$1,427.9 million; (iv) decrease in gain on fair value
changes of investment properties of HK$442.2 million; and (v) decrease
in attributable property sales profit. Earnings per share for the Year was
HK$0.53 (2017: HK$1.94).

If the net gain on the major non-cash items of HK$297.0 million (2017:
HK$646.4 million) are excluded, the Group will have a core profit for the
Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$718.3 million (2017:
HK$3,398.7 million including the accumulated net realised fair value gain
together with their respective deferred tax on disposals of investment
properties and stock of properties from the Group recognised in prior
years of HK$336.2 million (including those recognised in properties
revaluation reserve)) and a core profit per share of HK$0.38 (2017:
HK$1.78).

The major non-cash items represented the attributable net unrealised fair
value gain on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax from the Group and its associates and joint venture of HK$297.0
million (2017: the Group and its associates of HK$646.4 million).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&ZE

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board")
has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK10 cents per
share (2017: HK10 cents per share) for the Year (the “Final Dividend").

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy for the Company
on 5th March, 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”). Under the Dividend Policy,
the Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. When considering dividend declaration or recommendation, the
Board shall take into account various factors including but not limited to
the Group's business condition and strategy, capital requirement; and
earnings, financial and cash flow position, and distributable reserves of the

Company and the Group.

During the Year, the Group has recorded a total comprehensive expenses
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$2,117.0
million (2017: total comprehensive income attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$16,348.7 million). As at 31st December, 2018,
the Group had a cumulative unrealised gain on fair value change of
listed equity investment in China Evergrande Group (stock code: 3333)
of approximately HK$6,571.0 million (details are disclosed in the sub-
paragraph headed “Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income” of paragraph headed “Securities Investments”
in the section headed “Financial Operation Review" of this annual
report). However, such gain was unrealised and was a non-cash item,
any dividend declaration or recommendation on such unrealised gain is
not currently intended by the Board. The Board recognised the possible
potential fluctuation in Hong Kong stock market. As and when the share
price of China Evergrande Group reaches a satisfactory and attractive
level, the Group may consider realise part of the listed equity investment
in China Evergrande Group. Subject to the then business, financial and
cashflow position of the Group and other factors stated in the Dividend
Policy, the Board may consider declaration or recommendation of
dividend(s) if and when appropriate upon realisation of investments
in listed equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income including the net proceeds of the intended realisation of the cost
and profit arising from the shares in China Evergrande Group (if any), as
a return to the shareholders of the Company. Further announcement(s)
regarding any proposal of such dividend(s) (if any) will be made by the
Company pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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DIVIDENDS (contd)

The Company had paid an interim dividend of HK1 cent per share on
17th September, 2018 (2017: HK20 cents per share). Having considered
the factors stated in the Dividend Policy, to preserve more cash for the
Group's future financial, property investment or securities investment
opportunities, the Board has recommended the payment of the Final
Dividend of HK10 cents per share (2017: HK10 cents per share).

Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 24th May, 2019 (the “2019
AGM"), dividend warrants for the Final Dividend will be posted on or
about 12th June, 2019 to shareholders whose names appear on the

register of members of the Company on 31st May, 2019.
CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the members' eligibility to attend and vote
at the 2019 AGM, and entitlement to the recommended Final Dividend,
the register of members will be closed during the following periods
respectively:
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(1) For ascertaining eligibility to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM:

MABREHE-_Z-NFREAFASYRSELRENER:

Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration

ZEBAD B P S AMEE SRR R AR

20.5.2019
16:30

Closure of register of members

EEmERRERLTE

21.5.2019-24.5.2019

(both days inclusive) (& & R M X)

(2) For ascertaining entitlement to the recommended Final Dividend:

QAEEBRESAHRENEF

Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration

ZEBRAD B S AMEE SRR R AR

29.5.2019
16:30

Closure of register of members

30.5.2019-31.5.2019

eI R B FE (both days inclusive) (B2 #Z ERMX)
Record date 31.5.2019

8k H ]

To be eligible to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM, and to qualify for
the recommended Final Dividend, all properly completed share transfers
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company's Branch Registrar and Transfer Office in
Hong Kong, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than the respective latest time as
stated above.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&ZE

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIES

The Group's core businesses comprise property investment for rental and

property development for sale as well as securities investments.

The Group aims at enhancing value and recurrent revenue of investment
properties through conceptualising and implementing redevelopment,
renovation works and repackaging programmes for properties as well as
actively managing a balanced tenant mix for retail properties to achieve

long-term sustainable growth.

In Hong Kong, the Group specialises in developing high-end and luxury
residential properties in prime locations; and enjoying profit contribution
and cash inflow from property sales to achieve long-term sustainable

growth and developing a brand name in the market.

The Group invested in office properties and hotel business in Mainland
China and commercial and residential properties in the United Kingdom.
All of them are located in the prestigious areas and generate stable and

recurrent rental income for the Group.

The Group is actively grasping the opportunities for acquiring properties in

Hong Kong and the United Kingdom.

The Group continues its strategy in quality partnerships with property
developers or other parties to the extent commercially feasible and

beneficial to the Group's development.

Apart from the aforesaid, the Group has conducted variety of securities
investment business, such as equity investments, debt investments and
other treasury products, with the aim to yield enhancement for treasury

management.

The Group believes that the stable rental income from its investment
properties, together with the property development and trading as well as
securities investment, forms a diversified cash flow stream which allows

the Group to weather the cyclicality of the property business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hong Kong Property Investment

Rentals from investment properties continued to be one of the major

sources of our income.

As at 31st December, 2018, the occupancy rate of the shops of Causeway

Place was approximately 89.05%.

Olympian City 3 (25% interest), the retail mall in The Hermitage
residences in West Kowloon, the average occupancy rate was

approximately 97.73% during the Year.

Coronation Circle (15% interest), the retail mall in The Coronation
residences in West Kowloon, the average occupancy rate was

approximately 65.62% during the Year.

During the Year, the average occupancy rate of the Group's office property,

Harcourt House was approximately 93.330%.

No. 1 Hung To Road (33.33% interest), a 33-storey industrial building
in Kwun Tong, the occupancy rate was approximately 97.92% as at 31st
December, 2018.

In March 2018, the Group through subscription of 50% equity interest in
a joint venture, invested in a 8-storey industrial building located at Nos.
14-18 Ma Kok Street (known as Possehl Building) in Tsuen Wan (50%
interest). Its current total gross floor area is approximately 120,000 square

feet and it was fully let as at 31st December, 2018.

Hong Kong Property Development

In general, the Group's development projects have been progressing
satisfactorily and sales of trading properties has recorded a pleasing

results.

55 Conduit Road (70% interest) is a luxury residential development in
Mid-Levels West with total residential gross floor area of around 87,800
square feet which provides 35 residential units. As at 31st December,

2018, all residential units were sold and handed over to purchasers.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&ZE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Hong Kong Property Development (Cont'd)

The Hermitage (25% interest) is one of the Group's joint venture
development projects in West Kowloon. It comprises 6 residential tower
blocks and provides in aggregate 964 residential units and retail properties
with a total gross floor area of around 1,095,980 square feet. As at 31st
December, 2018, 99.79% of total units were sold.

The Coronation (15% interest) is another joint venture development
project of the Group in West Kowloon. It comprises 6 residential tower
blocks and provides in aggregate 740 residential units and retail properties
with a total gross floor area of around 650,600 square feet. As at 31st
December, 2018, 99.869% of total units were sold.

Grand Central (10% interest) is a joint venture development project of
the Group awarded by the Urban Renewal Authority. Its total site area
is approximately 234,160 square feet. Total gross floor area of around
1,853,561 square feet will be developed. 4 residential tower blocks with
1,999 residential units in aggregate will be built in two phases. Presale
consent applications of both phases were approved during the Year. Since
the presales commenced in December 2018, 866 units of first phase and
518 units of second phase were presold up to 31st December, 2018.
Superstructure works of both phases are in progress, the whole project will
be completed in the first half of 2021.

Mainland China Property Investment
Hilton Beijing (50% interest), a five-star international hotel having 502

rooms, average occupancy rate was approximately 59.75% for the Year.

Oriental Place (50% interest), a 10-storey office building next to Hilton

Beijing, average occupancy rate was approximately 86.16% for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Overseas Property Investment

Overall, approximately 98.24% of the Group's investment property
portfolio in the United Kingdom had been let out during the Year.

River Court is a freehold office building situated at 116-129 Fleet
Street, London, United Kingdom. It provides a total net internal area of
approximately 431,324 square feet, together with certain car parking

spaces. During the Year, River Court was fully let.

“14 St George Street” is a freehold office building located in London,
United Kingdom. The building comprises approximately 51,861 square
feet of office accommodation arranged over lower ground, ground and

four upper floors. It was fully let during the Year.

“61-67 Oxford Street and 11-14 Soho Street” is a mixed use freehold
building located in London, United Kingdom, comprising approximately
55,162 square feet in aggregate. The building provides retails, office and
residential accommodation, occupying approximately 33,850 square feet,
13,735 square feet and 7577 square feet respectively, over lower ground,

ground and six upper floors. It was fully let during the Year.

“11 and 12 St James's Square and 14 to 17 Ormond Yard” is a mixed
use freehold building located in London, United Kingdom. The building
provides around 80,000 square feet office accommodation arranged over
lower ground, ground and six upper floors, approximately 92.97% had

been let out during the Year on average.

Securities Investments

Securities investment is one of the principal activities of the Group.

The Croup’s strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for
treasury management. As at 31st December, 2018, the Group's securities
investment portfolio comprised of bonds and listed equity investments.
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders of the Company.
The Group's strategy for future investments is to invest in a diversified
portfolio to minimise risks with attractive yield, good liquidity and issuers
from reputable entities, so as to maintain a healthy financial status and
grasp every good investment chance. No investments are made for

speculative purposes.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&ZE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

The gain recognised from securities investments for the Year was
approximately HK$280.8 million. Details of the performance of securities
investments are disclosed in the Financial Operation Review of this annual

report.

The Group will continue to closely monitor its portfolio of securities

investments to achieve satisfactory returns.

OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions -

Agreements for Tenancies

The Group (as tenant) has on 28th February, 2019 entered into (a) a
tenancy agreement in relation to the leasing of the whole of 17th floor of
Chubb Tower, Windsor House; and (b) an agreement for lease in relation
to the leasing of the whole of 19th floor, the whole of 20th floor and the
whole of 21st floor of Chubb Tower, Windsor House, with a company
indirectly owned by (i) Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (an Executive Director and
a trustee of the substantial shareholders of the Company (who are two
of her minor children)), both in her capacity as a trustee of her minor
children and in her own capacity; (i) Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (a Non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Board and a substantial shareholder of the
Company); and (i) a family trust of Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung (the
spouse of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan) (as landlord) (the "Transactions”). Such
premises will be used as part of the coming new headquarter of the
Group. The Transactions constitute a connected transaction and continuing
connected transactions for the Company as more described in the

Company's announcement dated 28th February, 2019.

Adoption of Dividend Policy

The Board has approved and adopted a Dividend Policy for the Company
on 5th March, 2019 that aims to set out the principles and guidelines
of the Company in relation to the declaration, recommendation and
payment of dividends to its shareholders. Details of the Dividend Policy

are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is continuously committed to maintaining good
communication with shareholders, investors and analysts in order to
ensure their thorough understanding of the Group's strategies and
business development, thereby enhancing transparency and investor

relations.

The Company maintains a Company’s website (www.chineseestates.com)
to make the Company's information available on the internet, including
the dissemination of statutory announcements and circulars etc., to
facilitate its communication with shareholders and to provide important
information to the investing public on corporate governance structure,
policies and systems, profiles of the Directors and senior executives as

well as terms of reference of Board committees.

The up-to-date information of the Group is available for public
access on the Company's website. The Company encourages its
shareholders to take advantage of the Company’s website and welcomes
suggestions from investors and shareholders, and invites them to
share their views and suggestions by contacting the Company at

investor.relations@chineseestates.com.

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company in writing by sending such written enquiries to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at 26th Floor, China
Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email
at investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.

PROSPECTS

The development of US-China trade war remains fluid. The global
economic outlook is still subject to many uncertainties and is anticipated

to be challenging in the year 2019.

In Hong Kong, residential property prices cooled over the past few
months, resulting from the pressure of the prolonged US-China trade
tensions, anticipation on rising interest rates and global stock market

corrections.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&ZE

PROSPECTS (Cont'd)

The local commercial and retail property markets have seen better
resilience. Currently, the Group’s investment properties continue to
contribute stable stream of income. It is anticipated that tourist numbers
from Mainland China will be driven up on the back of the completion of
Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge and Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong
High Speed Rail. The Group's investment properties will be benefited in

return.

In the United Kingdom, Brexit is undoubtedly casting a shadow of
uncertainty over the country. Nevertheless, the Group's four commercial
and residential properties in London are long term investments and it is
anticipated that property rental in London will continue to bring stable

income in a long run.

In Mainland China, the ongoing trade disputes with the United States
and the slowing economic growth both affected the performance of
Chinese stocks and bonds adversely. The Group will continue to identify
potential securities investments, while taking cautious view on the market

performance so as to enhance returns on securities investment activities.

As global uncertainties continues to dominate, the Group will adopt
caution measures and prepare to respond to the rapidly changing and

challenging environment.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
shareholders for their continuing support. | would also like to express
my sincere thanks to my fellow directors and all staff members for their

dedication and hard work.

Lau, Ming-wai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 5th March, 2019
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RESULTS

Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31st December, 2018 (“Year") amounted to
HK$843.6 million (2017: HK$1,516.7 million), a decrease of 44.4% over
last year and comprised gross rental income of HK$544.5 million (2017:
HK$505.8 million), property sales of HK$274.0 million (2017: HK$990.1
million) and others of HK$25.1 million (2017: HK$20.8 million). The
decline in revenue was mainly due to the decrease in sales of trading

properties despite of the increase in gross rental income.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$719.1 million (2017: HK$969.8
million), a decrease of 25.9% as compared with last year which was
mainly due to the decrease in profit from property sales of HK$289.9

million despite of the increase in net rental income of HK$35.8 million.

Property Leasing

For property leasing, the rental revenue in non-retail section increased by
11.2% to HK$465.4 million while retail section decreased by 9.3% to
HK$79.1 million during the Year. The total rental income in revenue for
the Year recorded an increase of 7.7% to HK$544.5 million as compared
with last year of HK$505.8 million.

Together with the attributable rental revenue generated from associates,
a joint venture and an investee company of HK$139.3 million (2017:
associates and an investee company of HK$142.5 million), the
total attributable rental revenue to the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) after non-controlling interests
amounted to HK$683.8 million (2017: HK$647.1 million), which

representing an increase of 5.7% over last year.

Attributable net rental income for the Year showed HK$626.0 million, an

increase of 6.4% over HK$588.3 million in last year.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Property Leasing (Cont'd)

Following the acquisition of a building located in 11 and 12 St James's
Square and 14 to 17 Ormond Yard, London, the United Kingdom in May
2017, it has contributed rental revenue and net rental income of HK$79.5
million and HK$75.8 million respectively (2017: both rental revenue and

net rental income of HK$51.1 million) during the Year.

Property Development and Trading

During the Year, the attributable property sales revenue from the
Group and its associates and investee company recorded a decrease
of 69.5% to HK$270.8 million (2017: HK$887.2 million) and the
relevant attributable profit from the Group and its associates and investee
company recorded a decrease of 59.7% to HK$183.3 million (2017: the
Group and its associates of HK$454.2 million).

Sales of 55 Conduit Road in Mid-Levels West (70% interest) contributed
an attributable profit to the Group of HK$125.4 million (2017: sales of
One South Lane in the Western District (100% interest) generated a profit
of HK$48.6 million; 55 Conduit Road and commercial accommodation
and units, hourly parking area and parking spaces at The Zenith in
Wanchai (87.5% interest) contributed attributable profit to the Group of
HK$108.0 million and HK$239.4 million respectively).

In respect of properties held by associates, sales of a workshop unit at
Kwong Kin Trade Centre in Tuen Mun (50% interest), a unit and two
store rooms at Hing Wai Centre in Aberdeen (50% interest) and parking
spaces at Greenville Residence in Yuen Long (50% interest) generated
profit of HK$1.9 million, HK$1.7 million and HK$0.3 million respectively
(2017: sales of parking spaces at Greenville Residence and parking
spaces at Mount Beacon in Kowloon Tong (33.33% interest) generated
profit of HK$1.1 million and HK$57.1 million respectively), as reflected in
the share of results of investments accounted for using the equity method.
Sale of parking spaces at The Coronation in West Kowloon (15% interest)
had contributed HK$54.0 million (2017: nil) to investment income upon

recognition of dividend income during the Year.
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Property Development and Trading (Cont'd)

In summary, the Group together with its associates and investee
companies executed properties sale agreements, including contracted
for sales agreements to third parties, recorded an attributable contracted
sales of HK$1,953.2 million (2017: HK$181.4 million) (after cash rebate)
during the Year. Total attributable property sales profit recognised for the
Year was HK$183.3 million (2017: HK$454.2 million).

Securities Investments

The Group has in the ordinary and normal course of business conducted
its securities investment activities, as at 31st December, 2018, comprised
of bonds and listed equity investment. During the Year, the gain
(excluding gain/loss recognised in financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") reserve) recognised
from listed securities investments and treasury products was HK$280.8
million (2017: HK$1,708.7 million), comprised gain on listed equity
investments at FVTOCI of HK$991.6 million (2017: HK$61.5 million)
and loss on listed investments and treasury products at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") of HK$710.8 million (2017: gain of HK$1,647.2

million).

During the Year, the Group did not dispose of any listed investments
held-for-trading (2017: no disposal). The realised loss from sales of
bonds of HK$20.1 million (2017: realised gain of HK$227.0 million)
was recognised, mainly comprising the realised loss in the industries of
overseas financial institutions of HK$23.2 million (2017: realised gain
of HK$36.3 million), the realised loss in the industries of insurance of
HK$2.0 million (2017: realised gain of HK$74.0 million), despite of the
realised gain in the People's Republic of China (“PRC")-based real estate
companies of HK$7.7 million (2017: HK$88.4 million). During the Year,
the Group had acquired 11 bonds (2017: 29 bonds) (including those
additions to the existing bonds) in the sum of HK$2,602.9 million, and
disposed of/redeemed 40 bonds (2017: 75 bonds) (including those
with partial disposal) with carrying amounts in the sum of HK$5,381.0
million. Bonds acquired were mainly in the industries of overseas
financial institutions of 50.7% (2017: 38.3%) and PRC-based real estate
companies of 47.6% (2017: 60.5%).
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

Furthermore, the Group recorded an unrealised loss of HK$1,255.1
million (2017: unrealised gain of HK$600.3 million) representing the
changes in fair value of bonds, which had no effect on the cash flow of
the Group. The unrealised loss (2017: unrealised gain) from changes
in fair value of bonds represented 25 bonds (2017: 39 bonds), mainly
comprising unrealised loss from industries of overseas financial institutions
of HK$489.4 million or decrease in fair value of 12.0% over the Year;
and unrealised loss from PRC-based real estate companies of HK$714.5
million or decrease in fair value of 20.4% over the Year (2017: unrealised
gain from industries of overseas financial institutions of HK$562.9 million
or increase in fair value of 9.19% over the year; and the unrealised gain
from PRC-based real estate companies of HK$25.9 million or increase in
fair value of 0.8% over the year). The Group believes that the decrease
in price of bonds in PRC-based real estate sector in the Year, among
others, was owing to the PRC property sector has been facing a huge
bond maturity repayment pressure in 2018 and combined with restrictive
refinancing channels which could lead to tight liquidity while the decrease
in overseas financial institutions sector during the Year, among others, was
owing to increase in United States Federal funds rate of 0.25% in March
2018, 0.25% in June 2018, 0.25% in September 2018 and 0.25% in
December 2018.

During the Year, interest income from bonds amounted to HK$623.4
million (2017: HK$910.9 million), represented 8.72% (2017:
7.71%) (before effect on leverage) return on average market value of

bondholding during the Year.

Summing up the realised and unrealised gain/loss and adding the net
income from net dividend income, interest income, other investment
income and net finance costs of HK$1,556.0 million (2017: net dividend
income, interest income, other net investment income and finance costs
HK$881.4 million), the gain recognised from listed securities investments
and treasury products was HK$280.8 million (2017: HK$1,708.7 million).
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

The respective income/expense from securities investments under

different categories are further elaborated below:

Listed Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss

The listed investments and treasury products at FVTPL recorded a loss
before and after net finance costs of HK$639.8 million and HK$710.8
million (2017: profit before and after finance costs of HK$1,751.5 million
and HK$1,647.2 million) respectively for the Year.

Loss from the listed investments and treasury products at FVTPL reflected
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the Year
comprised a realised loss on fair value changes of bonds of HK$20.1
million (2017: realised gain of HK$227.0 million), an unrealised loss on
fair value changes of bonds of HK$1,255.1 million (2017: unrealised
gain of HK$600.3 million), interest income of HK$623.4 million (2017:
HK$910.9 million) and other investment income of HK$12.0 million
(2017: other net investment income of HK$13.3 million). Net relevant
finance costs for the Year was HK$71.0 million (2017: relevant finance
costs of HK$104.3 million) including interest expense of HK$79.8 million
(2017: HK$60.4 million) and exchange gain of HK$8.8 million (2017:
exchange loss of HK$43.9 million).

The table below summarises the performance of bonds during the Year.

Realised (loss) gain

Unrealised (loss) gain
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Overseas financial institutions B REE (232) 363 (489.4) 562.9 304.2 4587 (208.4) 10579
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

The respective income/expense from securities investments under

different categories are further elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income

(@  Implication on Profit or Loss for the Year

Dividend income from and finance costs of holding listed equity
investments at FVTOCI were recognised in profit or loss for the
Year. During the Year, dividend income of HK$1,106.8 million was
recorded from holding shares of China Evergrande Group (stock
code: 3333) (“China Evergrande”) (“Evergrande Shares"), hence
the result from listed equity investments at FVTOCI recorded a net
gain of HK$991.6 million (2017: HK$61.5 million) comprised net
relevant finance costs of HK$115.6 million (2017: relevant finance
costs of HK$86.3 million), net dividend income of HK$1,106.5
million (after transaction costs) and other investment income of
HK$0.7 million (2017: net dividend income of HK$146.7 million
(after withholding tax and transaction costs) from 577,180,500
H shares of Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2066) (“SJB

Shares") and other net investment income of HK$1.1 million).

(b)  Implication on Other Comprehensive Expenses/Income for the Year

During the Year, the unit share price of China Evergrande had
been dropped from HK$26.95 as at 29th December, 2017 (being
the last trading day for the year ended 31st December, 2017) to
HK$23.45 as at 31st December, 2018, or 13.0% over the Year,
hence an unrealised loss on fair value changes of listed equity
investments at FVTOCI of HK$3,052.2 million was recognised
in other comprehensive expenses (2017: unrealised gain of
HK$9,928.3 million was recognised in other comprehensive
income). Further, a realised gain on fair value change from disposal
of certain Evergrande Shares of HK$36.7 million (2017: from
disposal of the SJB Shares of HK$2,126.0 million) was recorded
in other comprehensive income. Realised gain/loss on fair value
change is a cash item while unrealised fair value change is a non-
cash item and will not affect the cash flow of the Group. The Group
believes that the decrease in share price of China Evergrande for
the Year, among others, was owing to the poor market sentiment
on PRC-based companies with United States dollar ("US$") debt

exposure against a weakened Renminbi ("RMB") currency.
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RESULTS (Contd) FEmw
Securities Investments (Cont'd) HHEEBE (B)

The respective income/expense from securities investments under LA THAKBETEER ZEFHREWA B EilE—

different categories are further elaborated below: (Cont'd) et o (88)
Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other BBAMPEREURRRAFEZ LTRERE
Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) (#&)

The table below summarises the performance of the Evergrande Shares TR AFEHEAB D 2 KR -
during the Year.

Recorded in Recorded in
consolidated statement of consolidated statement of
financial position comprehensive income
BAGREHBEMRRERE BAGEEZAUERE

Financial Financial
assets assets
measured measured

Closing  at fairvalue at fair value Other

price through other through other comprehensive

Number of (per comprehensive comprehensive Profit expenses

shares share) income income reserve for the Year for the Year
BRHEMEE

BRHEMEE & PN
WEARER AVEFEZ
WmE AVEFEZ SREE rEEHM
RBEE (BR) SREE e REERR 2EXH
HK$ HK$'million HKS$'million HK$'million HKS$'million
BT BB BHEBR BEAT BEER

At 31st December, 2017 RZE—+F

+-A=1+—H 857,541,000 26.95 23,110.7 9,928.3 - -
Net purchase BAFE 2,459,000 718 - - -
Unrealised fair value changes  REH A FEEH - (3,052.2) (3,052.2) - (3,052.2)
Realised fair value changes ~ BEBRATFEED - 367 367 - 367
Transaction costs on disposal &2 X HHA - - (1.0) - (1.0)
Net dividend income REMAFER - - - 1,106.5 -
Other investment income HBERA - - - 07 -
Net finance costs BBERTE - - - (115.6) -
Transfer to retained profits REEREHZRAEN
upon disposal - - (340.8) - -

At 31st December, 2018 H=-Z—-N\f
+=A=+-AH 860,000,000 23.45 20,167.0 6,571.0 991.6 (3,016.5)

Percentage to total assets (FEELEZEAL
At 31st December, 2018  R=Z—-N\%
+=B=+-8 41.4%

At 31st December, 2017 RZE—+F
+-A=+-81 41.2%
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Other Income and Expenses

Other income for the Year, which mainly came from net building
management fee income, rental services income, property management
services, leasing administration services and property administration
services income, consultancy fee income, exchange gain, net and reversal
of impairment in respect of other receivable and interest thereon,
increased to HK$173.1 million (2017: HK$132.0 million), representing an
increase of 31.1% as compared with last year. The increase was mainly
derived from the reversal of impairment in respect of other receivable and
interest thereon of HK$89.2 million (2017: HK$4.7 million) despite of
decrease in property management services, leasing administration services
and property administration services income from HK$52.2 million to
HK$29.8 million.

During the Year, administrative expenses decreased by 8.5% to HK$255.5
million (2017: HK$279.3 million). The decrease in administrative
expenses was mainly due to the decrease in staff costs during the Year.
Finance costs increased by 16.9% to HK$345.0 million (2017: HK$295.2
million) during the Year, including exchange gain of HK$9.5 million (2017:
exchange loss of HK$52.2 million) on translation of foreign currency
other borrowings hedged for foreign currency securities investments and
exchange loss of HK$2.6 million (2017: nil) on translation of a foreign
currency bank borrowing. The increase in finance costs was mainly due to

the increase in interest rates during the Year.

Other gains and losses for the Year recorded a loss of HK$2.6 million
(2017: net gain of HK$140.3 million, which mainly comprised gains on
the disposals of the Group's entire issued share capital of (i) Pinecrest
International Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and its subsidiaries (“Pinecrest Disposal”) and (i) Win Kings Holding Ltd.,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiary
("Win Kings Disposal”) of HK$143.3 million in total).
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RESULTS (Cont'd)

Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method

The share of results of investments accounted for using the equity
method recorded a profit of HK$232.3 million (2017: HK$189.9 million).

The share of results of associates for the Year was a profit of HK$228.8
million as compared to HK$189.9 million for last year. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in fair value gain of investment properties held
by an associate compared with last year and an underprovision of tax in

prior years of an associate was recognised in 2017.

During the Year, the Group subscribed 500% equity interest in a joint
venture holding a property located at Nos. 14-18 Ma Kok Street (known
as Possehl Building) in Tsuen Wan. The share of results of a joint venture
for the Year was a profit of HK$3.5 million (2017: nil).

Fair Value Changes on Investment Properties

Investment properties of the Group in Hong Kong and Mainland China
were revalued at 31st December, 2018 by B.l. Appraisals Limited (“B.l.
Appraisals”) whereas investment properties in the United Kingdom were
revalued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”). B.I.
Appraisals and Peak Vision Appraisals are independent property valuers. A
gain on fair value changes of investment properties of HK$122.3 million
(2017: HK$564.5 million) was recorded during the Year. The unrealised
fair value change is a non-cash item and will not affect the cash flow of

the Group.
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PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE, CASH PAYMENT RATIO AND
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES/INCOME

Profit

Profit for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was HK$1,015.3
million as compared to HK$3,708.9 million for last year. The decrease
in profit for the Year was mainly due to (i) no imputed interest income
from deferred consideration receivables was recognised during the Year
as compared with HK$772.6 million recorded in 2017; (ii) no gain on
disposal of subsidiary was recorded during the Year as compared with
gains on the Pinecrest Disposal and the Win Kings Disposal of HK$143.3
million in total recorded in 2017; (iii) decrease in profit from listed
securities investments and treasury products of HK$1,427.9 million;
(iv) decrease in gain on fair value changes of investment properties of
HK$442.2 million; and (v) decrease in attributable property sales profit.
Earnings per share for the Year was HK$0.53 (2017: HK$1.94).

Core Profit

During the year of 2017, the Group disposed of certain investment
properties through disposals of subsidiaries, of which their costs were
stated at fair value, and the Group disposed of stock of properties which
were classified as investment properties and/or land and building in prior
years. Before disposal, such gain/loss on fair value change was unrealised
and recognised at the end of each reporting period, but excluded from
core profit/loss as non-cash items. In the year of disposal, such unrealised
gain/loss had become realised; and in computating core profit/loss,
accumulated fair value gain/loss from prior years and current year were

included as cash items.

If the net gain on the major non-cash items of HK$297.0 million (2017:
HK$646.4 million) are excluded, the Group will have a core profit for the
Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$718.3 million (2017:
HK$3,398.7 million including the accumulated net realised fair value gain
together with their respective deferred tax on disposals of investment
properties and stock of properties from the Group recognised in prior
years of HK$336.2 million (including those recognised in properties
revaluation reserve)) and a core profit per share of HK$0.38 (2017:
HK$1.78).
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PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE, CASH PAYMENT RATIO AND
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES/INCOME
(Cont'd)

Core Profit (Cont'd)

The major non-cash items represented the attributable net unrealised fair
value gain on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax from the Group and its associates and joint venture of HK$297.0
million (2017: the Group and its associates of HK$646.4 million).

Dividends

Final dividend of HK10 cents (year ended 31st December, 2016: HK1
cent) per share in total amount of HK$190.8 million for the year ended

31st December, 2017 was paid in cash on 6th June, 2018.

Interim dividend of HK1 cent (half year ended 30th June, 2017: HK20
cents) per share in total amount of HK$19.0 million for the half year
ended 30th June, 2018 was paid in cash on 17th September, 2018.

No special interim dividend was paid for the Year. In the year of 2017,
special interim dividends of HK$2 in aggregate per share in total amount
of HK$3,815.2 million and HK$2.91 per share in total amount of
HK$5,551.2 million were paid in cash on 10th February, 2017 and 23rd
June, 2017 respectively.

Total dividends of HK$209.8 million were paid in cash during the Year.
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PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE, CASH PAYMENT RATIO AND
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES/INCOME
(Cont'd)

Repurchase

During the Year, the Company had not repurchased any of the Company's

share.
Cash Payment Ratio

Based on (a) the core profit for the Year of HK$718.3 million or HK$0.38
per share (2017: HK$3,398.7 million or HK$1.78 per share); (b) cash
final dividend for the Year of HK10 cents (2017: HK10 cents) per share
proposed; (c) cash interim dividend for 2018 of HK1 cent (2017: HK20
cents) per share; and (d) no special interim dividend declared or paid
(2017: cash special interim dividends of HK$3.55 in aggregate per share
paid), the ratio of such cash payment to the core profit is 28.9% (2017:
216.3%).

Total Comprehensive Expenses/Income

Total comprehensive expenses for the Year attributable to owners of
the Company was HK$2,117.0 million or HK$1.11 per share (2017:
total comprehensive income of HK$16,348.7 million or HK$8.57 per
share), which comprised (a) profit for the Year attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$1,015.3 million (2017: HK$3,708.9 million); and
(b) other comprehensive expenses for the Year attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$3,132.3 million (2017: other comprehensive
income of HK$12,639.8 million) which mainly included loss on fair value
changes of listed equity investment at FVTOCI of HK$3,015.5 million
(2017: gains of HK$12,054.3 million), details are disclosed in the sub-
paragraph headed “Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through
Other Comprehensive Income (b) Implication on Other Comprehensive
Expenses/Income for the Year" of paragraph headed “Securities

Investments” above.
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NET ASSET VALUE

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group's net asset attributable to owners
of the Company amounted to HK$34,062.4 million (2017: HK$36,385.9
million), a decrease of HK$2,323.5 million or 6.4% when compared with
31st December, 2017. With the total number of ordinary shares in issue
of 1,907,619,079 as at 31st December, 2018 and 2017, the net asset
value per share attributable to owners of the Company was HK$17.86
(2017: HK$19.07). The movement in net asset value was mainly due
to (a) total comprehensive expenses for the Year attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$2,117.0 million; (b) final and interim dividends
recognised as distribution during the Year totaling HK$209.8 million;
and (c) forfeiture of unclaimed dividends recorded in retained profits of
HK$3.3 million.

During the Year, loss on fair value changes of the listed equity investment
categorised as financial assets measured at FVTOCI of HK$3,015.5
million, as well as the transaction cost of disposal of certain Evergrande
Shares of HK$1.0 million (2017: gains of HK$12,054.3 million, as well
as the transaction costs of the disposal of the Group's entire issued share
capital of Great Captain Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, of HK$1.7 million) was recorded in other comprehensive
expenses/income. Upon completion of disposal, the Group transferred the
balance of the financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve that related
to the disposed listed equity investment of HK$340.8 million (2017:
negative balance of HK$242.2 million) to retained profits. The cumulative
amount of the gain on fair value change of listed equity investment
included in financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve was HK$6,571.0
million as at 31st December, 2018 (2017: HK$9,928.3 million).

Other than the existing projects and those disclosed in the final results,
the Group did not have material acquisition or disposal of assets and any

future plans for material investment or capital assets.
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NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

The Group recorded net current liabilities as at 31st December, 2018
of HK$2,749.8 million (2017: HK$2,804.8 million), of which current
assets were HK$7,104.6 million (2017: HK$10,978.6 million) and current
liabilities were HK$9,854.4 million (2017: HK$13,783.4 million). The
position was mainly due to certain of the Group's current liabilities had

been utilised to finance the Group's non-current assets.

In the consolidated statement of financial position and within securities
investment activities, which comprised of bonds and listed equity
investment, the total carrying amount as at 31st December, 2018 was
HK$26,852.5 million (2017: HK$33,849.5 million). Included in non-
current assets were part of the bonds in the sum of HK$1,271.6 million
(2017: HK$1,979.4 million) presented as financial assets measured at
FVTPL and listed equity investment in the sum of HK$20,167.0 million
(2017: HK$23,110.7 million) presented as financial assets measured
at FVTOCI. Included in current assets were part of the bonds in the
sum of HK$5,413.9 million (2017: HK$8,759.4 million) presented as
financial assets measured at FVTPL. Margin loans utilised to finance the
securities investments in both non-current and current assets in the sum
of HK$7,330.5 million (2017: HK$9,873.7 million) were presented as

borrowings in current liabilities.

If the margin loans of HK$7,330.5 million (2017: HK$9,873.7 million)
were allocated into the securities investments secured according to the
respective non-current and current assets presentation, HK$4,240.4
million (2017: HK$5,221.0 million) and HK$3,090.1 million (2017:
HK$4,652.7 million) were secured by the securities investments in non-

current and current assets respectively.

If the margin loans secured by the securities investments in non-
current assets of HK$4,240.4 million (2017: HK$5,221.0 million) were
reclassified as non-current liabilities, the net current liabilities position
of the Group would become net current assets position as at 31st
December, 2018 of HK$1,490.6 million (2017: HK$2,416.2 million).
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NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (contd)

The ratio of margin loans against securities investments was loan-to-
value ratio, which was 27.3% as at 31st December, 2018 (2017: 29.2%).
In accordance with the terms and conditions of margin loans facility
agreements of the Group with financial institutions, among others, as long
as the securities investments maintained market value which is in excess
of pre-defined loan-to-value ratios as set out by the financial institutions,
the margin loans upon interest payment due date would be roll-overed
month-for-month, and repayment of margin loans by the Group to
financial institutions would not be required. As such, very often margin
loans of the Group which were presented as current liabilities would not
be current and would be repayable over one year. In the event that the
Group intends to reduce or repay part of the margin loans, the Group
might, among others, dispose of some of the securities investments to

effect the payment.

Listed securities investments and treasury products of the Group were
frequently traded in the market, and formed part of the Group's treasury
management. They were presented as non-current assets and current

assets according to their intended holding periods.

If the entire listed securities investments and treasury products of the
Group as at 31st December, 2018 were presented as current assets,
current assets would be increased by HK$21,438.6 million (2017:
HK$25,090.1 million), and net current liabilities position of HK$2,749.8
million (2017: HK$2,804.8 million) would become net current assets
position of HK$18,688.8 million (2017: HK$22,285.3 million).

The Group believes that the net current liabilities position as at 31st
December, 2018 would not have adverse financial effect to the Group's
liquidity or gearing position and the Group has ability to continue as a

going concern.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for
treasury management and invest in listed securities investments and
treasury products with attractive yield and good prospect in order to bring
stable and satisfactory return in long run. During the Year, the Group
further diversified the bonds portfolio comprised of the bonds issued by

overseas financial institutions and PRC-based real estate companies.

As at 31st December, 2018, the portfolio of listed securities investments
and treasury products of HK$26,852.5 million (2017: HK$33,849.5
million) comprised (a) bonds (financial assets measured at FVTPL (non-
current and current assets in aggregate)) of HK$6,685.5 million (2017:
HK$10,738.8 million); and (b) listed equity investment (financial assets
measured at FVTOCI) of HK$20,167.0 million (2017: HK$23,110.7
million), representing 55.1% (2017: 60.4%) of total assets.

The respective securities investments under different categories are

elaborated below:

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other

Comprehensive Income

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group had acquired
857,541,000 shares of China Evergrande at a total consideration
(including transaction costs) of HK$13,182.4 million, and the Evergrande
Shares were recorded as financial assets measured at FVTOCI. During
the Year, the Group had acquired 18,705,000 shares and disposed of
16,246,000 shares of China Evergrande. The Group held 860,000,000
shares of China Evergrande, representing approximately 6.6% of the total

issued share capital of China Evergrande as at 31st December, 2018.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

The respective securities investments under different categories are
elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other

Comprehensive Income (Cont'd)

After adding the unrealised fair value gain of HK$9,928.3 million for 2017,
the carrying amount of the Evergrande Shares as at 31st December, 2017
was HK$23,110.7 million. During the Year, the Evergrande Shares portfolio
was increased by a net purchase of HK$71.8 million and after deducting
the fair value loss of HK$3,015.5 million for the Year, the carrying
amount of the Evergrande Shares as at 31st December, 2018 was
HK$20,167.0 million, representing 41.4% (2017: 41.2%) of total assets.
The cumulative unrealised gain on fair value change of the Evergrande
Shares was reduced from HK$9,928.3 million at the end of year 2017 to
HK$6,571.0 million as at 31st December, 2018 (after accounted for the
transfer from the financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve to retained
profits of HK$340.8 million during the Year), which was recorded in the
financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve. The unrealised fair value

change is a non-cash item and will not affect the cash flow of the Group.

China Evergrande group is principally engaged in the property
development, property investment, property management, property
construction, hotel operations, finance business, internet business and
health industry business in the PRC. According to the audited consolidated
financial statements of China Evergrande for the years ended 31st
December, 2017 and 2016, the revenue and profit attributable to
shareholders were RMB311.0 billion (2016: RMB211.4 billion) and
RMB24.4 billion (2016: RMB5.1 billion) respectively; while the total
assets and total equity were RMB1,761.8 billion (2016: RMB1,350.9
billion) and RMB242.2 billion (2016: RMB192.5 billion) respectively, the
net debt was RMB444.9 billion (2016: RMB230.7 billion). In accordance
with the unaudited consolidated financial statements of China Evergrande
for the six months ended 30th June, 2018, the revenue and profit
attributable to shareholders were RMB300.3 billion and RMB30.8 billion
respectively; while the total assets and total equity were RMB1,769.9
billion and RMB324.5 billion respectively, the net debt was RMB413.2
billion. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash

equivalents and restricted cash.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

The respective securities investments under different categories are
elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Listed Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through

Profit or Loss

As at 31st December, 2017, the carrying amounts of the bonds presented
as financial assets measured at FVTPL was HK$10,738.8 million. During
the Year, the bonds portfolio was decreased by a net disposal of
HK$2,778.1 million. After deducting the fair value loss of HK$1,275.2
million, the bonds portfolio of the Group became HK$6,685.5 million
as at 31st December, 2018, representing 13.7% (2017: 19.2%) of total

assets, which formed part of the Group’s cash management activities.

As at 31st December, 2018, the bonds portfolio comprised of bonds
issued by overseas financial institutions of 53.79%, PRC-based real estate
companies of 41.6% and other industries of 4.7%. They are denominated
in different currencies with 96.7% in US$ and 3.3% in Pound Sterling
("GBP"). The bonds denominated in US$ carry at fixed rate range from
4.750% to 9.375% per annum of which notional amount of US$911.4
million are callable, the bonds denominated in GBP carry at fixed rate
range from 5.875% to 7.250% per annum are callable. As at 31st
December, 2018, the bonds portfolio comprised of 25 bonds (2017: 39
bonds); in terms of credit rating, investment grade, non-investment grade
and unrated were 5 bonds, 16 bonds and 4 bonds (2017: 10 bonds, 22
bonds and 7 bonds) respectively. In terms of maturity, 14 bonds (2017:
27 bonds) were contingent convertible bonds issued by overseas financial
institutions of which 14 bonds (2017: 25 bonds) were perpetual and no
fixed tenor bond (2017: 2 bonds would be matured in 2023). 11 bonds
(2017: 12 bonds) were issued by issuers other than overseas financial
institutions of which 3 bonds (2017: 4 bonds) were perpetual and the
remaining 8 bonds (2017: 8 bonds) will be matured between 2021 to
2046 (2017: between 2018 to 2046).
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

The respective securities investments under different categories are
elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Listed Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss (Cont'd)

Details and movement of the bonds portfolio at the end of the reporting

period are set out below:
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

Unlisted Securities Investments

The Group invested in an exempted limited partnership formed under the
Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and
the carrying amount was HK$578.2 million as at 31st December, 2017.
During the Year, the Group has contributed US$2.7 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$21.0 million) and received distribution of US$2.7
million (equivalent to approximately HK$21.0 million) (which was
included in financial assets measured at FVTOCI), after deducting the fair
value loss for the Year of HK$170.1 million (which was recognised in
financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve), the carrying amount was
HK$408.1 million as at 31st December, 2018, representing 0.8% (2017:

1.0%) of total assets.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management procedures that
enable it to identify, measure, monitor and control various types of risk it
faces. This is supplemented by active management involvement, effective
internal controls and adequate internal audit in the best interests of the

Group.

EQUITY

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 31st December, 2018 and
2017 were 1,907,619,079.

DEBT AND GEARING

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group’s bank and other borrowings
amounted to HK$13,747.7 million (2017: HK$18,308.5 million (including
loan from a director)). Cash and deposits at banks amounted to
HK$714.6 million (2017: HK$659.4 million), pledged deposits amounted
to HK$237.4 million (2017: HK$263.5 million) and net borrowings
amounted to HK$12,795.7 million (2017: HK$17,385.6 million).

Total debt to equity ratio was 40.3% (2017: 50.2%) and net debt
to equity ratio was 37.5% (2017: 47.6%), which are expressed as a
percentage of total borrowings, and net borrowings, respectively, over the
total equity of HK$34,143.6 million (2017: HK$36,493.0 million). The
decrease in both ratios was mainly due to decrease in total debt and net
debt.
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DEBT AND GEARING (contd)

If the listed securities investments and treasury products of HK$26,852.5
million (2017: HK$33,849.5 million) are included, there would be a net
cash position of HK$14,056.8 million (2017: HK$16,463.9 million).

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group's bank and other borrowings of
HK$13,747.7 million, 67.6%, 1.0% and 31.4% were repayable within 1
year, 1 to 2 years and 2 to 5 years respectively. Of which the Group's
bank and other borrowings were denominated in HK$ (54.5%), GBP
(30.19%) and US$ (15.4%) before entering the cross currency swap. HK$,
GBP and US$ securities investments were hedged by HK$, GBP and US$
borrowings. During the Year, the Group has entered into short term US$/
HK$ cross currency swap to enhance interest payable on borrowing, and
as at 31st December, 2018, notional amount of approximately US$158.4
million was outstanding. The Group's bank borrowings were carried at
interest rates calculated with reference to cost of funds, Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") or London Interbank Offered Rate;
other borrowings were carried at interest rates calculated with reference
to cost of funds or HIBOR. As at 31st December, 2018, all the Group's
borrowings were on floating rate basis. Except as disclosed, no hedging for

interest rate is subsisted at the end of the reporting period.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group had pledged the following assets

with their respective carrying amounts:

(@) The Group's investment properties of HK$12,770.6 million (2017:
HK$14,234.3 million) and bank deposits of HK$208.6 million
(2017: HK$209.7 million) were pledged to the banks to secure

general banking and loan facilities granted to the Group.

(b) The Group's bonds and listed equity investment with carrying
amounts of HK$25,445.5 million (2017: HK$33,176.6 million) and
cash deposits of HK$28.8 million (2017: HK$53.8 million) were
pledged to the financial institutions to secure margin and securities
facilities granted to the Group in respect of securities transactions, of
which HK$7,330.5 million (2017: HK$9,873.7 million) was utilised

as at 31st December, 2018 as borrowings due within one year.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS (contd)

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group had pledged the following assets

with their respective carrying amounts: (Cont'd)

(c) Interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged
as part of the security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to

the Group.

FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/
EXPENSES

Interest income was included in revenue, investment income and other
income. Interest income for the Year was HK$673.3 million, representing
a decrease of 60.2% over last year of HK$1,691.7 million, mainly due to
no imputed interest income from deferred consideration receivable was
recognised during the Year (2017: HK$772.6 million).

Finance costs included interest expenses on bank and other borrowings;
exchange difference on translation of foreign currency borrowings; and
arrangement fee and facility and commitment fee expenses. Interest
expenses for the Year amounted to HK$342.4 million, representing an
increase of 45.9% over last year of HK$234.6 million. No interest was
capitalised for the Year (2017: HK$0.1 million). The increase in interest
expenses was mainly due to the increase in interest rates during the Year.
The average interest rate over the year under review was 2.28% (2017:
1.55%), which was expressed as a percentage of total interest paid over

the average total interest-bearing borrowings.

REMUNERATION POLICIES, SHARE OPTION
SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD SCHEME

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group employed a total of 476 staff
(2017: 528 staff) including about 237 staff (2017: 254 staff) employed

under the estate management company in Hong Kong.

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. Remuneration packages
comprised salary and year-end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The executive Directors continued
to review employees’ contributions and to provide them with necessary
incentives and flexibility for their better commitment and performance. No

share option scheme was adopted during the Year.
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REMUNERATION POLICIES, SHARE OPTION
SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD SCHEME (contd)

The Company had adopted a share award scheme (“Share Award
Scheme") in 2009. The Share Award Scheme is to recognise and reward
certain employees for their contributions to the Group and to give long-
term incentives for retaining them for the continued operations and
development of the Group. Details of the Share Award Scheme were
set out in the Company's circular dated 23rd December, 2008, and also
disclosed in the paragraph headed “Share Award Scheme” in the section
headed "Directors’ Report” of this annual report. No share was granted

under the Share Award Scheme during the Year.

UNITED KINGDOM AND MAINLAND CHINA

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group's investment properties in the
United Kingdom with carrying amount of GBP855.4 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,501.5 million) (2017: GBP878.3 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$9,231.2 million)) incurred a net loss of HK$21.4
million (2017: net profit of HK$291.5 million) to the Group for the Year,
the loss (2017: profit) mainly included in gross profit, fair value changes
on investment properties, finance costs and taxation. GBP exchange loss
of foreign operations included in other comprehensive expenses for the
Year amounted to HK$259.5 million (2017: exchange gain of HK$385.6
million included in other comprehensive income). As at 31st December,
2018, the Group's net investment in the United Kingdom amounted to
HK$4,826.2 million (2017: HK$5,095.2 million) representing 14.1%
(2017: 14.0%) of the Group's total equity.

Profit contribution from the Group's investment in Mainland China (mainly
included in other income, fair value changes on investment properties
and share of results of associates) for the Year amounted to HK$69.0
million (2017: HK$68.6 million mainly included in gross profit, fair value
changes on investment properties, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, share
of results of associates and taxation). RMB exchange loss of foreign
operations included in other comprehensive expenses (including share of
an associate) for the Year amounted to HK$25.4 million (2017: exchange
gain of HK$34.0 million included in other comprehensive income). The
Group's net investment in Mainland China as at 31st December, 2018
amounted to HK$574.1 million (2017: HK$533.3 million) representing
1.7% (2017: 1.5%) of the Group's total equity.
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW Bf #& % %% [ E&

PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group's investment properties in
Hong Kong and Mainland China as at 31st December, 2018 and 2017
were carried out by B.l. Appraisals, independent qualified professional
valuer. For the investment properties in the United Kingdom, the property
valuations as at 31st December, 2018 and 2017 were carried out by Peak
Vision Appraisals, another independent qualified professional valuer. Their
valuations were based on investment method and/or direct comparison
method as the valuation methodologies and were used in preparing 2018

final results.

The Group's investment properties were valued at HK$15,280.8 million
(2017: HK$15,650.0 million), a 0.8% increase over 2017 after adjusted
for the exchange adjustments of investment properties during the Year.
The increase in fair value of HK$122.3 million was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the Year. The Group
also shared an increase in fair value of investment properties of associates

and a joint venture of HK$173.8 million in total for the Year.

The increase in fair value of HK$122.3 million was mainly derived from
increase in fair value of Harcourt House while decrease in fair value of 14
St George Street located in London, the United Kingdom. The fair value

change is a non-cash item and will not affect the cash flow of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) and management
of the Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) are
committed to principles of good corporate governance so as to safeguard

the interests of shareholders and enhance value to the shareholders.

Throughout the year ended 31st December, 2018 (the "Year"), the
Company had applied the principles and complied with substantial
code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) and certain recommended best
practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code")
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”).

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors (“ED(s)"), two
Non-executive Directors ("NED(s)") and three Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INED(s)"), with INEDs representing one-third of the Board.
Names of each member of the Board are set out in this Corporate

Governance Report.

During the Year, Mr. Lau, Ming-wai acted as the Chairman of the Board
(the “Chairman”) and Ms. Chan, Sze-wan acted as the Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ"). The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated

and their respective roles and responsibilities were set out in writing.

“List of Directors and their Role and Function” has been maintained at
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Directors’
biographies and the relationship among the Board members, if any, are
set out in the Profiles of Directors of this annual report and available on
the Company's website. Save as disclosed in such profiles, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship among

the Directors.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Responsibilities of Directors

The NEDs and INEDs with diversified expertise, skills and experience play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that the Board
maintains high standards of corporate governance as well as taking the
lead where potential conflict of interests arises. The Board has received
from each INED a written annual confirmation of his/her independence
and satisfied that the independence of INEDs up to the date of this

annual report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.

On monthly basis, senior management provides the Directors with
operational and financial reports of the Group's performance, position and
prospects. All Directors are kept informed of and duly briefed of major
changes and information that may affect the Group's businesses in a

timely manner.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged
to access and consult with the Company's senior management or the

company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) independently.
Retirement by Rotation and Specific Term of Office

The Company's Bye-laws provides that no Director (save for the executive
chairman and any managing director) shall hold office for a continuous
period in excess of three years, or past the third annual general meeting,
following the Directors’ appointment or re-election, whichever is longer,
without submitting himself/herself for re-election by the shareholders at
the annual general meetings. Accordingly, Directors shall retire by rotation
at least once every three years and a specific term of office has been
fixed for appointment of Directors. During the Year, there was no executive

chairman or managing director in the Board.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Board Meetings

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ ERB|EE
BEEZw
Ezeel
BEENAFEENTHMNEE I N EBEEER.

The Board met regularly throughout the Year to discuss the overall
strategy, the operational and financial performance of the Group. Four
regular Board meetings were held during the Year. Advance notices of not
less than fourteen days were served upon each Director for regular Board
meetings. All accompanying Board papers were sent to the Directors in a
timely manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such other
period as agreed). Adequate explanation and information were given to
the Directors by the management to facilitate the Directors in decision-
making. Each Director has to declare his/her interest and abstain from
voting on any Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associate
has a material interest in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company

and the Listing Rules.

The agenda of each Board meeting is set by the Chairman in consultation
with members of the Board such that they are given an opportunity to
include agenda items. Draft and executed Board minutes were sent in
good time to all Directors for their comments and records. Minutes of the
Board meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company

Secretary.

Board and Management Functions

The functions reserved to the Board are basically provided in the Bye-
laws of the Company and the Board from time to time delegates certain
functions to senior management whenever required. In short, the Board
has reserved for its decision on matters relating to the Group's strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, major capital expenditure, annual and
interim results, Directors’ appointment and other significant financial and

operational issues.

On top of daily business operation, senior management is responsible for
the preparation of annual and interim consolidated financial statements
for the Board's approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate system of internal
control and sound risk management practices and is required to report to
the Board and obtain its prior approval on important matters at all times.
Notwithstanding the delegation, the Directors acknowledge that it is the
responsibility of the Board for preparing the financial statements, which

give a true and fair view of the financial results of the Group.
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THE BOARD (contd) BEESw

Directors’ Training and Support BEERIIRXE

The Company encourages its Directors to possess up-to-date knowledge AN AFHEIETEERAUEBERRTNBUBTHRE -
in order to discharge their duties. Information regarding major changes BB BHHREER R EMRBIARE AR
in Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Listing Rules as well as {6 A EAEZE  ERDIRETEES-
other laws/rules/regulations had been provided to the Directors.

During the Year, the Company has arranged Directors’ training regarding R AFEE AR RIZH TEREI AAEH[ES
“Duties of Directors and Role and Function of Board Committee”. HWEBtENMNEEZECMAGKEE] -EILFAR 2
Meanwhile, Directors had provided their record of trainings to the FEERAQBIREHFZIEH - ESERABESMH
Company. The Board considered the trainings attended by the Directors 282 FIIBUBERERBITEBRE -ESHNAFE
are sufficient to discharge their duties. A summary of the trainings RFT2EZEZINRHBMT : —

attended by the Directors during the Year is as follows:—

Training Matters 3% 3| =18

Business/
Economic/
Management/
Accounting/ Information
Corporate Regulatory/ Tax/Finance Technology
Governance Legal git,/ mERE/
Name of Directors EEng C¥ER EERERE BE/BE  BE/EARE
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan BRERZ L b b - c
(CFO) (7TEA#E%)
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan BRelRE et b b = =
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan PR LT b b = €
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai MAE T E ab&c ab&c a&ec a&ec
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai 2B b b = =
(Chairman) (/)
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai 2AEELL b b = €
Independent Non-executive Directors BV FHTES
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai PRBA{E A4 ab&c ab&c a&c a&ec
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping BEYLT b&c ab&c € €
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun BSRELE b&c b&c a&c a
Notes:— PitaE: —
Training Method #3752
a:  attending training session/seminar/conference/course a: Z2HEIJIREMEE S gH R
b:  viewing webcast b: BEEBEN
¢ selfreading c: Bf7BE
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”) with

clear written terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ ERB|EE
EEEREES
EERT TBENEES FMESSRIERESR
g (SB[ EEQETEES]) FELEWNER
BMESE GXTERNFRTAFS - 5588
Vi

those set out in the CG Code. Details of the respective committee’s terms
of reference are available at the Company’s and the Stock Exchange's
websites. All the INEDs, i.e. Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-
ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun are members of the Board Committees with
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai acts as chairman of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee while Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping acts as chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The members of Audit Committee
possess appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or related
financial management expertise, which is higher than the Listing Rules’

requirement.

All accompanying meeting papers were sent to the members in a timely
manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such other period
as agreed). Draft and executed minutes of the meetings were sent in
good time to all members for their comments and records. Minutes of
the meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company
Secretary. Professional advice and sufficient resources would be given
whenever necessary to allow the Board Committees to discharge their

duties.

Audit Committee

Role and Function

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group's corporate
governance, financial reporting, risk management and internal control. It

plays an advisory role and makes relevant recommendations to the Board.

Meetings

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year, with the
presence of the representative(s) of the Group's internal audit department
(the “Internal Audit Department”) in those meetings involving discussion
on internal audit reports prepared by Internal Audit Department. Senior
management was co-opted to join the meetings of the Audit Committee
to explain the financial and business conditions of the Group to the

committee members from time to time.

B 1 0 (B S 1 AT AN 8 ) B B 52 P AR i B B
AZEBBYIFNTES IREELSE BB
TERBHERE HREFEHETLZEEKE  HA
REEEEHEERRZEGRFMEZES IR M
ERFULTHIRZZEGIR -EREZEENKE
BEHEENEEER S ARV BEEEXEMN
BB EMRAZERBR

FERBEREXHHCRERBTARI=A (K
H At 2 i) R X 2B K E - G2 VIR
MEBRTERRZEZESR &EML&%%MME&T
- RAWERERFHAFRAH ZEZRLE A
@ﬁ%%y%@ﬁi%@%?i%ﬁ%{ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
RARER NEERITRE-

EREEY
B kiR
ERZECARRM RENAEEZOEER M
e EREE N ARE R - TR E B R E TR

AR YREFSRHEMEEEZE-

L
ERZAERAFEATNREH AEENDE
BB ([POBE 0] ) 2 (R H 5 B o 5 e
BELHEMZNBBELRE 2GR BREEE
FABERERERERRRY NEARRAR
BAEE B REBHKR -

SE-NEER EAEXEE

47

\ g



¢

48

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ ER|EE

BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

Works Performed

The works performed by the Audit Committee in the Year are summarised

below:—

M

@)

3)

4

€)

6

)

®

€)

reviewed the Group's final and interim results and draft
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2017 and for the six months ended 30th June, 2018
respectively before recommending them to the Board for approval,
with the presence of the Company's external auditors (the

“Independent Auditors”) in the meeting reviewing final results;

reviewed the overall performance including the performance of

investment properties and development properties of the Group;

reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and the requirements of the Listing Rules and statutory

compliance;

recommended to the Board the re-appointment of the Independent

Auditors for shareholders' approval;

reviewed the Group's internal control, risk management, financial

reporting and auditing matters;

reviewed and discussed significant audit findings in a meeting with

the presence of Independent Auditors;

prepared and submitted to the Board an audit committee report
detailing the works performed by the Audit Committee during 2017,
presented its findings and made recommendations to the Board for

consideration;

carried out annual review on the continuing connected transactions

of the Group;

reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group's accounting, financial reporting and internal

audit functions, and their training programmes and budget;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

Works Performed (Cont'd)

(10)

an

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

a7

(18)

(19)

(20)

@n

(22)

discussed with Independent Auditors the nature and scope of the
annual audit and reporting obligations of the Independent Auditors
for the Year; reviewed and approved the terms of engagement

letters, and fees for audit and non-audit services for the Year;
reviewed the arrangement for employees to raise concemns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other

related matters;

reviewed and discussed internal audit reports prepared by Internal

Audit Department;

considered and approved the internal audit plan for the year 2019;
reviewed the effectiveness of internal audit function;

reviewed the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance, compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report;

reviewed the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and the compliance of such

policies and practices;

reviewed the code of conduct for the Directors and the compliance

of such code;

reviewed the code of practice for employees;

reviewed the sufficiency of training and continuous professional

development for the Directors and senior executives;

reviewed the progress of risk management;

reviewed the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management and

internal control systems; and

reviewed the impact of adoption of new Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed (Cont'd)

In March 2019, the Audit Committee reviewed (i) the Group's final results
and draft audited consolidated financial statements for the Year; (ii) the
Company's compliance with the CG Code during the Year and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report; (iii) the sufficiency of training and
continuous professional development for Directors and senior executives
for the Year; (iv) the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management
and internal control systems for the Year; and (v) the effectiveness of
internal audit function of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee also
made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring
Independent Auditors for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming

annual general meeting (the “2019 AGM").
Independent Auditors

In order to enhance independent reporting by Independent Auditors, the
engagement director of the Independent Auditors is subject to periodical
rotation, and the nature and ratio of annual fees payable to Independent
Auditors for non-audit services and for audit services are subject to
scrutiny by the Audit Committee. A policy of non-audit services from
Independent Auditors was established. The Audit Committee considers
whether there is clear efficiency and value-added benefit to the Company
from that work being undertaken by the Independent Auditors; whether
there is adverse effect on the independence of their audit work or the
perception of such independence; the nature of the non-audit services
envisaged to be provided by the Independent Auditors; and the related
fee levels individually and in aggregate relative to the audit fees. In
addition, a policy restricting the employment of employees or former
employees of Independent Auditors as senior executives or financial

positions with the Group has also been in place.

During the Year, the Independent Auditors had been engaged in providing
non-audit services in relation to annual review of continuing connected
transaction at a fee of HK$100,000. The audit fees of the Independent
Auditors for auditing the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31st December, 2018 was HK$2,014,100. The
relevant engagement letters had been reviewed and approved by the

Audit Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Independent Auditors (Cont'd)

Prior to the commencement of the audit of accounts of the Group, the
Audit Committee had reviewed the Independent Auditors’ independence
and objectivity as required under the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, reviewed the terms of their engagement as well as the

nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations.

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the findings of their review of the
engagement process, effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the

Independent Auditors.
Remuneration Committee
Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policies for all Directors and senior executives. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible to review regularly and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of
individual EDs and senior executives as well as the remuneration of NEDs.
It would consult the Chairman or the CEO on the remuneration proposals

whenever it thinks fit.

The objective of remunerating the Directors and senior executives of the
Company is to ensure that there is an appropriate level of remuneration
to attract and retain experienced businessmen or professionals of high
calibre to act as the Directors and senior executives to oversee the

Company's businesses and development.
Meetings

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed

The works performed by the Remuneration Committee in the Year are

summarised below:—

(1) assessed the performance of EDs, reviewed and recommended to
the Board the EDs' and senior executives’ remuneration packages

for the Year;
(2) noted the annual discretionary bonus to employees;

(3) recommended to the Board the renewal of service agreement with

a director of a subsidiary of the Company; and

(4) recommended to the Board to fix the Directors’ fee of NEDs for the
Year.

In January 2019, the Remuneration Committee made recommendation to
the Board and the Board has approved the adjustment of ED's monthly
salary of (i) Ms. Chan, Sze-wan to HK$120,000, (ii) Ms. Chan, Lok-wan
to HK$60,000, and (i) Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai to HK$189,400 for the
year ending 31st December, 2019 with reference to their duties and

responsibilities in the Group as well as the prevailing market conditions.
Remuneration Policy for EDs

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on EDs' remuneration
package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate EDs by linking
their reward with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
In determining guidelines for each reward element, the Company refers to

remuneration surveys on companies operating in similar businesses.
Remuneration Policy for NEDs and INEDs

The Directors' fees of NEDs and INEDs are subject to annual assessment
with reference to their duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market

conditions as appropriate. Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket

expenses incurred in connection with performance of their duties.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee

Role and Function

The role of the Nomination Committee is to lead the process and make
recommendations for appointments to the Board, whether as additional
appointment or to fill up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when
they arise, in the light of challenges and opportunities facing the Company,
as well as business development and requirements of the Company.
Meeting

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year.

Works Performed

The works performed by the Nomination Committee in the Year are

summarised below:—
(1) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

(2) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors for

shareholders' approval; and

(3) assessed the independence of INEDs, including those served more
than 9 years who are subject to re-election at the relevant annual

general meeting.

After the Year end, the Nomination Committee made recommendation
to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring Directors for shareholders’
approval at the 2019 AGM.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee (Cont'd)
Nomination Policy, Procedures, Process and Criteria

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size, composition
and diversity (including the evaluation of skills, knowledge, professional
experience, cultural and educational background, gender and age of the
Board members and assessment on the independence of the INEDs) of
the Board at least annually. It is responsible for making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy and succession planning for the Directors from time
to time and selecting suitable and qualified individuals to become Board
members. In evaluating and selecting candidate(s) for directorship,
the Nomination Committee considers the character and integrity; skills
and expertise; professional and educational background; potential time
commitment for the board and/or committee responsibilities; and
the elements of the Board Diversity Policy as stated below etc. The
Nomination Committee makes recommendation to the Board to appoint
the appropriate person among the candidates nominated for directorship.
The Board appoints suitable candidate(s) in accordance with the Bye-laws

of the Company and the Listing Rules.
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefit of having a diverse
board, and sees increasing diversity at board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage and achieving long-term
sustainable growth for the Group. A board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) has been adopted since September 2013. Elements of
the Board Diversity Policy include gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge of Directors.
The said elements have substantially been included in the current Board

composition.

SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Special Committee had been established since 24th May, 2012,
comprising all the INEDs as members with written terms of reference
in place. It is empowered to handle all matters from the Company's
perspective arising out of the prosecution against Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-
hung, a former ED, Chairman and CEO of the Company, by the Macau
Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China ("Macau")
relating to the acquisition of a piece of land in Macau. The Special
Committee has been dissolved in February 2018 after reviewing of the

position of the Group by the Board.
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Investment Committee had been established since 15th April, 2014,
comprising Ms. Chan, Sze-wan as chairman, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai as chief
investment officer, Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun as members
with written terms of reference in place. It is empowered to manage the
investment business of the Group (other than real estate investment) (the
“Investment”) and to make recommendations and provide advice to the

Board in relation to Investment or potential Investment.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

Attendance record of each of the Board members is as follows:—

REZESE

REZEGE T NFEATHBKY AR
BATHEER MEFEERERELRE RERE
FER SRR LR B AKX B E R E T
BEHE - REZEGERREEARBEZRER
(FHERERIN) (RE]) URREHKRESR
BEREHRBRNESTEREEZRLER -

EEHFERTE

BREZGNBZHFELERIIMT : —

Attendance Record of Directors == i E 37 &

No. of meetings attended/held in 2018 (Percentage of attendance in total) R =2 — \EHE  BTEEEAE (AHER)

Regular Audit  Remuneration Nomination Investment  Annual
Board Committee Committee =~ Committee ~Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EHEEE ENZEE FHZEE REZEET REZEE RREEF
Name of Directors EZpg = = = 23 23 -1
Executive Directors HTES
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan (CEO) BREFBA T (770485) 4/4(100%) N/ATER NATER NATER  4/4(100%) 1/1 (100%)
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan Bl L+ 4/4(100%) N/ARER NATEA NATEA NATRER  Absent HfE
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan BREBERL 4/4 (100%) N/ATER NATEAE NATER  NATER  1/1 (100%)
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai WEE & 4/4 (100%) N/ATEA NATEAR  NATER  4/4 (100%) 1/1 (100%)
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman) BSBEE(ZE) 2/4(50%)  N/ATER  NATER NATER NATERB  Absent #E
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai HES - Y'an 4/4 (100%) N/ATERA NATER NATER NATEB  Absent HfE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFH{TES
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai BB £ & 4/4(100%)  4/4 (100%)  2/2 (100%) 1/1 (100%)  4/4 (100%) 1/1 (100%)
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping BESLT 4/4 (100%)  4/4 (100%)  2/2 (100%) 1/1(100%) N/A F@F  1/1 (100%)
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun SREEE 4/4 (100%)  4/4 (100%) 2/2 (100%) 1/1(100%)  4/4 (100%) 1/1 (100%)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms without deviation from the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code"). All Directors, after specific enquiries by the Company,
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in

the Model Code and the said code of conduct during the Year.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
(Cont'd)

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant employees
(the "Relevant Employees”) who, because of office or employment, are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation
to the Group's securities had been requested to follow such code when
dealing in the securities of the Company. All Relevant Employees, after
specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed that they had complied with

the required standard set out in the said code during the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that the Group
maintains an effective risk management and internal control systems
and review of their effectiveness through the Audit Committee at least
annually. The Board oversees the Company's senior management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems and acknowledges that such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. Internal Audit
Department is responsible for reviewing relevant financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions, and reporting their

findings and advice to the Audit Committee.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee and is

independent of the Company’s management, with key tasks to:—

(1) assess and monitor internal controls of the Group with unrestricted
direct access right to any levels of management whenever it

considered necessary;
(2) conduct comprehensive internal audits of the practices and
procedures, income and expenditures, and internal control of all

business units of the Group on a regular basis; and

(3) carry out special reviews and investigations on areas of concern

identified by the management for corrective actions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Internal Audit (Cont'd)

Internal Audit Department produces an annual internal audit plan
based on a risk assessment methodology for the Audit Committee’s
approval. Internal audits are carried out on a regular basis according to
the approved plan. Internal audit reports summarising audit findings
and recommendations are prepared from time to time for the Audit
Committee's review and discussion. Management is responsible for
ensuring that control weaknesses highlighted in internal audits are rectified
within a reasonable period. Internal Audit Department would monitor the

proper implementation of corrective measures.

During the Year, Internal Audit Department had conducted seven internal
audits, relevant reports had been submitted to the Audit Committee for
consideration. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the scope and
quality of works done, and the extent and frequency of communication
of internal audit reports by the Internal Audit Department. The Audit
Committee was also satisfied with the effectiveness of the internal audit

function of the Group.

Risk Management

Risk Management Framework

The Company established an Enterprise Risk Management Framework
that includes a risk management policy and procedures, as well as
a designated risk management officer who helps to deploy the risk

management process across the business.

Risk Management Process

Our risk management process includes risk identification, risk assessment
and prioritisation, risk owner appointment, risk treatment and upward
reporting and monitoring of identified risks to the Audit Committee. A
corporate risk register has been established to track and document the
identified risks, risk owners, mitigating actions and control measures, and

facilitates continuous update of risk treatments.

Half-yearly reviews were conducted to follow up on the significant risks
and related actions as documented in the corporate risk register, and the
results reported to the Audit Committee. The year end risk management
assessment result was reported to the Board through the Audit
Committee. The Company will continue to enhance and standardize our

approach to manage risks.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Risk Management (Cont'd)

Risk Management Process (Cont'd)

Subsequent to the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
effectiveness and adequacy of risk management system for the Year and
the Board is satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
management system of the Group and considered that the Company had
complied with the Code Provisions in respect of risk management during
the Year.

Internal Control

Annual Review

Based on the annual assessment made by the Independent Auditors and
the works done by Internal Audit Department, the Audit Committee and
the Board are satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the system

of internal control of the Group and concluded that:—

(1) the Company had complied with the Code Provisions in respect of

internal control during the Year;

(2) aframework of prudent and effective controls had been established

to identify, evaluate and manage the risks;

(3) internal control and accounting systems of the Group were efficient

and adequate;

(4) significant risks and control failings or weaknesses (if any) that
may influence the Group and the changes since last annual review
had been identified, evaluated and managed through the ongoing

monitoring process;

(5) material transactions were executed with the management's

authorisation;

(6) the Company's processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules

compliance were effective; and
(7) the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's

accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions, and their

training programmes and budget were adequate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with shareholders that the Directors and the
chairmen of the Board Committees are encouraged to attend and answer
questions from shareholders at general meetings. The chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee as well as the Independent Auditors had attended the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 18th May, 2018 (2018 AGM")
to answer questions from shareholders.

At the commencement of each general meeting, the chairman of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll to the
shareholders and the shareholders were allowed to raise any question
concerning the poll procedures. At each of the meetings, separate
resolutions were proposed by the chairman of the meeting and put
forward to the shareholders for poll voting. Details of poll results are

available at the Company's website (www.chineseestates.com).

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a corporate website (www.chineseestates.com) to disseminate

the Group's information.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the corporate communications manual to
ensure inside information remains confidential until the disclosure of
such information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of
such information is efficiently and consistently made. Such manual also
provides guidance for coordinating the disclosure of material information
to investors, analysts and media, identifies who could speak on the
Company's behalf, and outlines the responsibility for communication with

various stakeholder groups.

A shareholders’ communication policy for enhancement of the corporate
governance had been established and the Board had reviewed the

shareholders’ communication policy during the Year.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Subsequent to the Year, the Board has approved and adopted a dividend
policy for the Company on 5th March, 2019 that aims to set out the
principles and guidelines of the Company in relation to the declaration,
recommendation and payment of dividends to its shareholders (the
“Dividend Policy").

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend payout ratio. Distribution of dividends should be
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. When
considering dividend declaration or recommendation, the Board shall take

into account the following factors:—

(1) business condition and strategy of the Group;

(2) capital requirement for the Group's existing/potential project or

investment;

(3) earnings, financial and cash flow position and distributable reserves

of the Company and the Group; and

(4) other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends is subject to the provisions of
the Bye-laws of the Company, the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended from time to time) and any other applicable laws, rules and

regulations.

The Company's dividend distribution record in the past may not be used
as a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be

declared or paid by the Company in future.

The Board has the sole discretion to recommend or not to recommend
final dividends to the shareholders for approval; and to declare or not to
declare any other dividends, including but not limited to interim and/or
special dividends, after taking into consideration the factors as stated in
(1) to (4) above.

The Dividend Policy may be updated, amended, modified and/or

cancelled from time to time as the Board may think fit and necessary.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convene a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company can at all times submit
a signed written requisition, specifying the purpose, to the Board or the
Company Secretary to request the convening of a special general meeting
("SGM") and deposit the requisition at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at 26th Floor, China Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in

Bermuda at Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene the SGM, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene a SCM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from twenty-one days of the deposit.
Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting at
the date of the requisition or shareholders not less than 100 in total can
submit a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to

propose a resolution at the general meeting (the "Written Requisition”).

The Written Requisition must be accompanied by (i) the proposed
resolution; and (ii) a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the general meeting. The Written Requisition
must contain the signatures of all the requisitionist(s). The Written
Requisition must be deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong at 26th Floor, China Evergrande Centre, 38 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda
at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda not less
than six weeks before the general meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before the

general meeting in the case of any other requisition.

B SRR

BRERRERIAE

BRERE(REEEAERKABPEE TR EAQREH
RERA+DZ —MEEMNAREARBIREAE L
BEZRD)AIERAZEZTEXAFAMERREE
EWHAENZERER ERBRAKRERFIRE
(IREFRIARE]) WKZERERXRERAARA
BEERER It RBERBEF S LITEISRPEH
BERPL26EHARANEFETMIPERE ik
& Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,

Bermuda °

HWEFSRENZEARRA T -HABHAKRR
FRIAE AREEBRALTIHAZRBIEHERA
TZBFBERERZEFNERATABTARK
REFIAE  HEFMELABRZBREN KRG A
MWEEHPE -+ R =@ ®ET-

RBERASREES

AN
*E%Hx%'ﬂﬁﬂé%ﬁi Tﬁéihig e
RERRRE LRREABR ([E@WER]) -

R
n& ES

EMEREBEERGIES O EESN
—TFEHARE /%E;%%FEMZ%EE}ZH N &SN
BLREZEHR RIE EHEREREEREXK
AL ZBER - MZERESZFHRERRY EHE
RARBRR R RN DR/ E L BATR LK AA
BEERER WILRBERBEHF S LITEISRFPEH
BERAL26EHARANEFETMIPERE ik
& Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda : ZAE A ER E M Z 5k RIZER IR K A]
LR — B2 HRTRE-

“E-\FFHR EABXEE

61

\ g



¢

62

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ ER|EE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (contd)

Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting (Cont'd)

Provided that if, after a copy of the Written Requisition requiring notice of
a resolution has been deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, an
annual general meeting is called for a date which is six weeks or less after
the copy has been deposited, the copy though not deposited within the
time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the

purposes thereof.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement given by the requisitionists to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the applicable

laws and rules.

Propose a Candidate for Election as a Director at an Annual

General Meeting

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director had been established and published at the Company's website

(www.chineseestates.com).
Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the Company
Secretary in writing by sending such written enquiries to the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong at 26th Floor, China Evergrande
Centre, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email at
investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the Company's constitutional

documents.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

RERER @
REEAREDEE (8)

MAFELABRBNZ EMELBIARD XERARA
ERIEMERAARANARELMMER M
ARBRZEI N R ZEANEERLPRANEEHZ
B ARBREBEF RS B BMEZ B AR ERH
WX ZE TR AF R BRsE

BRFBEFHR—EARINARRRBERNERR
GEPIREMMEBECRXERZEBANERHEL
ATRZHRAEFEENFEXNEE R B HTHIA

REABRRRBEFASSRES

ARRCDHERRERAZBEENESF  WRAK

A B4 15 B AT (www.chineseestates.com) ©

BRREH
BERANEESIAMEFSFHRAAWMEEEH Z
EHERAAEAREZEARABELIENEER MUt A
ERBEHELITEISRFRBEERPLO26EHEHE

investor.relations@chineseestates.com ° % 5 J1 & #

RERAE EFHER -

AEBERH

MAFE ARBZEBEEXF LB ENESD-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ ER|ESE

DEVIATIONS FROM CODE PROVISIONS

Non-executive Directors Attending General Meeting

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai, a NED, was unable to attend the 2018 AGM as he
had business engagement. Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai, another NED, was also

unable to attend the 2018 AGM as she was not in Hong Kong on that day.

Chairman Attending Annual General Meeting

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai, the Chairman, was unable to attend the 2018 AGM
as he had business engagement. Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, the chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, was elected as
the chairman of the 2018 AGM to ensure effective communication with
shareholders of the Company at the 2018 AGM. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping had also attended the
2018 AGM.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that corporate governance principles and practices
are essential to the business communities. Ongoing effort will be put
to review its corporate governance practices from time to time so as
to accommodate the changing circumstances. The Company will strive
to maintain and strengthen the standard and quality of its corporate

governance.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
ESEREE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”) are pleased
to present to the shareholders their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2018 (the “Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Company acted as an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in property investment
and development, brokerage, securities investment, money lending and

cosmetics distribution and trading.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year, discussion on
the Group's future business development and description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement of this annual report. Furthermore, the financial
risk management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the Year
are contained in the Chairman’s Statement of this annual report. An
analysis of the Group's performance during the Year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Financial Operation Review of
this annual report. Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and
performance, relationships with its key stakeholders, and compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group are provided/will be provided in the Chairman’s Statement, the
Corporate Governance Report, the Directors’ Report of this annual report
and/or the 2018 Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be
available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the "Stock Exchange") and the Company respectively.

OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION

The Group's revenue and contribution to profit for the Year from
operations analysed by principal activities are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURE

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture as at 31st December, 2018 are set out in Notes 50 and 51 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on pages 91 to 92.

During the Year, the Board had declared and paid an interim dividend of
HK1 cent per share (payment date: 17th September, 2018) (2017: HK20

cents per share).

The Board resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK10 cents per share (2017: HK10 cents per share) for the Year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five years is set out on pages 254 to 255.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

Details of the principal properties and property development rights of the
Group as at 31st December, 2018 are set out on pages 256 to 260.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the Year are set out

in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the Year, the Group did not acquire or dispose of any
investment properties (2017: acquired one freehold property in the
United Kingdom (through acquisition of a subsidiary) of equivalent to
approximately HK$1,779,563,000 and disposed of investment properties
in Mainland China with an aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
HK$347,162,000).

Details of the above and other movements in investment properties
during the Year are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$173,000 (2017: HK$158,000).
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GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Details of secured bank borrowings and other borrowings repayable
within one year or on demand, long-term secured bank borrowings and
loan from a Director are shown in Notes 35 and 37 to the consolidated

financial statements.

During the Year, no interest capitalised (2017: HK$140,000) by the
Group.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on
pages 96 to 100.

As at 31st December, 2018, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), amounted of approximately HK$16,631,893,000
(2017: HK$16,836,014,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set

out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda, being the

jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share award scheme adopted on 14th January, 2009, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement for the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of

the Company's businesses were entered into or existed during the Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The revenue and aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's largest
customer and five largest customers accounted for approximately 32%

and 64% of the Group's total revenue for the Year respectively.

The purchases and aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest
supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 319% and

48% of the Group's total purchases for the Year respectively.

At no time during the Year did a Director, a close associate of a Director or
a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) have an interest in

any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this Directors’ Report

are:—

Executive Directors:

Ms. Chan, Sze-wan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan

Ms. Chan, Lok-wan

Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai

Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun

Ms. Chan, Lok-wan, Mr. Lau, Ming-wai and Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai will retire
from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to Bye-
law 111 of the Bye-laws of the Company and all being eligible will offer
themselves for re-election.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employer within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31st December, 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Appendix 10 of Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:—

1 The Company
Number of

Shares Held
G EE

Name of Directors

EEpS

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai 1,430,700,768 3
(“Mr. MW Lau")

RSB LE (TRIBELE])

Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan 1,430,700,768 &

("Ms. HW Chan")
BReleE £ (IR L ])

EERRSTHRAERAEALQTRE
BEEzESER

R-ZE-NEF+-_A=+t—R EFREARAES
THBRAEBRARRHEEMEREE CERREE
EPIFESTIEES KB ([F5RBEERG)
SFEXVER) 2B i ~ MHEAR O kB HEH 2 s Mok
B BRARFRREEZLMERIIEIREEZE
O AT B AR BB S P8 2 BT AR R ([ LA
fiEx+ (EMBEBTAZEFETESIZNRETHD
HMERRR RBZAIMT : —

Percentage of
Issued Share
Capital
ERTREAFIL

Capacity
514

Interest in controlled corporation 74.99%
and other
MRS R R 2 e wm M EH A
Interest in controlled 74.99%

corporation, trustee, interest
of children under 18 and
other

N Ee i NG Enl
BEEA - RMI8HE T HZ
T R E A

Notes:

* Mr. MW Lau was deemed to be interested in 1,430,700,768 shares of
the Company in aggregate. 476,425,000 shares of the Company were
directly owned by Century Frontier Limited, which was wholly owned
by Mr. MW Lau. Mr. MW Lau was also deemed to be interested in
954,275,768 shares of the Company indirectly held by Ms. HW Chan as
the trustee for her minor children Lau, Chung-hok and Lau, Sau-wah by
virtue of the right of first refusal granted to Century Frontier Limited for
those 954,275,768 shares under a right of first refusal deed.

# Ms. HW Chan was deemed to be interested in 1,430,700,768 shares
of the Company in aggregate. 954,275,768 shares of the Company
were indirectly owned by Sino Omen Holdings Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which was held by Ms. HW Chan as the trustee of her
minor children Lau, Chung-hok and Lau, Sau-wah. Ms. HW Chan was
also deemed to be interested in 476,425,000 shares of the Company
indirectly held by Mr. MW Lau by virtue of the right of first refusal
granted to Sino Omen Holdings Limited, Solar Bright Ltd. and Joseph
Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited for those 476,425,000 shares
under a right of first refusal deed.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(Cont'd)

Il Associated corporations of the Company

Name of Name of Associated Number of
Director Corporations Share(s) Held
EEHSR HBEE AR RO EE

Ms. HW Chan Sino Omen Holdings Limited 1,000 &
BslE Lt

Ms. HW Chan Solar Bright Ltd. 1 *
CEk -

DIRECTORS' REPORT EEEH|EE

EENRBRSTHRAERAELQTRE
BEE RS ERS )

N RATZHEBEE

Percentage of
Issued Share

Capacity Capital
6 | EROTRABOL
Trustee and 100%
interest of children under 18
BREARKMI8FH F L
Interest in controlled corporation, 100%

trustee and

interest of children under 18
IREED DR 2 e EEAR
o185 T 2 2 s

Note:

* Ms. HW Chan (as the trustee for her minor children Lau, Chung-hok and
Lau, Sau-wah) directly held the entire issued share capital of Sino Omen
Holdings Limited. Sino Omen Holdings Limited directly held the entire
issued share capital of Solar Bright Ltd.. Therefore, Ms. HW Chan as the
trustee for her said minor children was also regarded as interested in the
entire issued share capital of Solar Bright Ltd..

The interests stated above represent long position. The percentage
shown was the number of shares the relevant Director was interested
in expressed as a percentage of the number of issued shares as at 31st
December, 2018.

Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors and chief executives
of the Company had or were deemed under the SFO to have any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as at 31st December, 2018.

During the Year, none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age were
granted or had exercised any right to subscribe for any securities of the

Company or any of its associated corporations.

BT -

* RELBZ L (FEREARKFEFRBIHE N BIFHE
ZA=FEA) BB Sino Omen Holdings Limited
2 ZEBE EEATIRAN » Sino Omen Holdings Limited
HE#HBSolar Bright Ltd.z 2860 B1TAA
it BRVE R T ERE P AKFF R ZETEA
TR 1% A% G Solar Bright Ltd. 2 2F B 31T IR o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN FERERAA T ZH A5 ER
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2018, so far as are known to any Directors or chief EEERARARGZSITHRABMAE R2Z—N
executives of the Company, the following parties (other than Directors or  F+Z=ZA=+—H AR RREZFF LB E KOS
chief executives of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by — 336{§7B#&E7F 2 B MATESE K BITHME A QR &H
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to % sk I B ¥ B s 448 BB R QA RI B 81T R 5%
the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be A L Z AL (BEERARAHSTHRABR

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:— SN I - —

Percentage of

Name of Substantial Number of Issued Share

Shareholders Shares Held Capacity Capital

TERRER RGO &R § B | ERTREAES

Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung 1,430,700,768 & Interest of spouse, interest of 74.99%
(“Mr. Joseph Lau") children under 18 and other
Rl ([B18HxE]) BBz e AMISKR TR Z
e & E A

Sino Omen Holdings Limited 1,430,700,768 @ Interest in controlled corporation 74.99%
and other

RS Rz m R EA

Solar Bright Ltd. 1,430,700,768 & Beneficial owner, interest in 74.99%
controlled corporation and

other

Century Frontier Limited 1,430,700,768 3 Beneficial owner and other 74.99%
EmEA AREM

Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments 707,409,820 @ Beneficial owner and other 37.08%
Limited BEnlia AREM
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (contd)

Notes:

o Mr. Joseph Lau was deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
shares that his spouse, Ms. HW Chan, and his minor children, Lau,
Chung-hok and Lau, Sau-wah, deemed to have interests.

* Sino Omen Holdings Limited held the entire issued share capital of
Solar Bright Ltd. and therefore was regarded as interested in the same
parcel of shares held by Solar Bright Ltd.. Solar Bright Ltd. held the entire
issued share capital of Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited
and therefore was regarded as interested in the same parcel of shares
held by Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited. Joseph Lau Luen
Hung Investments Limited directly held 230,984,820 shares of the
Company while Solar Bright Ltd. directly held 723,290,948 shares of
the Company. Sino Omen Holdings Limited, Solar Bright Ltd. and Joseph
Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited were also deemed to be interested
in 476,425,000 shares of the Company directly held by Century
Frontier Limited by virtue of the right of first refusal granted to them for
those 476,425,000 shares under a right of first refusal deed. As such,
Solar Bright Ltd. and Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited were
deemed to be interested in 1,430,700,768 shares and 707,409,820
shares of the Company in aggregate respectively; Sino Omen Holdings
Limited was deemed to be interested in 1,430,700,768 shares of the
Company, which were referred to in the interests of Ms. HW Chan
as disclosed under “Directors’ and Chief Executives' Interests in the
Securities of the Company and Associated Corporations”.

* Century Frontier Limited directly held 476,425,000 shares of the
Company. Century Frontier Limited was also deemed to be interested
in 954,275,768 shares of the Company directly held by Solar Bright Ltd.
and Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited in aggregate by virtue
of the right of first refusal granted to it for those 954,275,768 shares
under a right of first refusal deed. As such, Century Frontier Limited was
deemed to be interested in 1,430,700,768 shares of the Company
in aggregate, which were referred to in the interests of Mr. MW Lau
as disclosed under “Directors’ and Chief Executives' Interests in the
Securities of the Company and Associated Corporations”.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31st
December, 2018, no short positions were recorded in the register kept by

the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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Sino Omen Holdings Limited$§% Solar Bright Ltd.2
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Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited > % #f
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the Year, Ms. Chan, Sze-wan, Ms. HW Chan and Mr. MW Lau had
personal and/or directorship interests in private companies engaged in
property investment business and securities investment business. As
such, he/she was regarded as being interested in such businesses, which

competed or might compete with the Group.

In addition, Mr. Joseph Lau, a former executive Director, Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, had through certain
private companies wholly-owned by him acquired the retail shops of
York Place, Excelsior Plaza (include Laforet) and Southorn Centre (also
known as Wanchai Computer Centre) from the Group in 2010, certain
floors and car parking spaces constituted part of the properties known
as Silvercord and the properties known as The ONE from the Group
in 2015 as well as the properties known as Windsor House from the
Group in 2016 (collectively the “Private Properties”). Each of Ms. Chan,
Sze-wan, Ms. HW Chan and Mr. MW Lau was a director of or deemed
to have certain interests in one or more of the said companies during
the Year. There might be potential leasing competition for existing and
prospective tenancies between the Private Properties and investment
properties held by the Group. In order to manage such potential leasing
competition, Mr. Joseph Lau had provided certain undertakings and the
Company had agreed with the Stock Exchange to implement certain
measures for monitoring the compliance of such undertakings. Details of
such undertakings and monitoring measures were set out in the circulars
of the Company dated 18th June, 2010, 23rd September, 2014, 7th
January, 2015 and 15th January, 2016. The independent non-executive
directors of the Company (“INEDs") had carried out an annual review on
the compliance of the said undertakings and monitoring measures and
confirmed that such undertakings and monitoring measures were duly
complied with and considered adequate monitoring measures were in

place to avoid the potential leasing competition during the Year.

The Directors are aware of their fiduciary duties and will act honestly and
in good faith in the interests of the Company and will avoid any potential
conflict of interests and duties. The Company comprises three INEDs and
all of them are audit committee members of the Company, so that the

interest of its shareholders can be adequately represented.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors were interested in
any businesses apart from the Company’s businesses, which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s

businesses.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

According to the Company's Bye-laws, each Director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the extent allowed by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended)) which such Director may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of the Director's office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has provided indemnity to INEDs since July 2014
by issuing a letter to each of the INEDs. The Company has also arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors and officers of the Group which was in force during the Year and

up to the date of this Directors’ Report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as the agreement(s) disclosed under the heading “Connected
Transactions” below and the facility agreement(s) entered into between
the Group and Ms. HW Chan as disclosed under “Loan from a Director”
in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, there were no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Company's businesses, to which the Company or any of the Company's
subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year, and in which a Director or an entity connected with a
Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a material interest, nor there
were any other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Company's businesses between the Company or any of
the Company's subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its

subsidiaries.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 31st October, 2017, Chinese Estates, Limited (being a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) (“CEL") entered into a contract
for services with Mr. Joseph Lau regarding the provision of (i) leasing
administration services (including without limitation matters relating
to dealing with tenants, rent collection and taking legal actions, but
excluding services in relation to the referral of potential tenants and the
negotiation with existing and/or potential tenants regarding terms of
lease of properties), (ii) sale administration services (including without
limitation the appointment of and coordination with estate agents for such
sale but excluding any sale agency service), (iii) property management
services (including matters relating to management, maintenance,
operation, servicing and repairs of properties), (iv) property administration
services (including without limitation accounting, company secretarial,
recruitment, human resources administration works, taxation, marketing
and information technology services) (the “Property Administration
Services”), (v) asset management and maintenance services (including
property, household and other management and maintenance services
in relation to properties and assets) (the “Asset Management and
Maintenance Services”), (vi) rental services (including rental of motor
vehicles, car plates, vessels, car parking spaces, premises and such other
rental services) (the “Rental Services”), (vii) advisory and consultancy
services (including general advisory, consultancy, administration, liaison,
personnel support services and such other services (including without
limitation accounting, taxation and company secretarial services) ancillary
and/or incidental thereto) (the “Advisory and Consultancy Services"),
and (viii) other ordinary services (including without limitation securities
and other financial services) to Mr. Joseph Lau, his associates and/or
relatives for a term of 3 years commencing from 1st November, 2017
to 31st October, 2020 (the “Contract”). The cap of the service charges
payable by Mr. Joseph Lau to CEL for the Year under the Contract was
set at HK$116,000,000 (the “Cap”) as disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 31st October, 2017.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

Mr. Joseph Lau being the spouse of, and accordingly an associate of,
Ms. HW Chan (an executive Director and a trustee of the substantial
shareholders of the Company (who are her two minor children)).
Therefore, Mr. Joseph Lau was a connected person of the Company and
the Contract and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the Listing
Rules. As the applicable percentage ratios for the annual caps for the
transactions contemplated under the Contract exceeded 0.1% but were
less than 5% at the date of entering into the Contract, the Contract
and the annual caps were only subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements but exempted from the independent
shareholders' approval requirement pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions, the
INEDs, pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules on the requirement
to carry out an annual review on the continuing connected transactions,
confirmed that the transactions were made in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Company (other than household management
and maintenance services under the Asset Management and Maintenance
Services, the Property Administration Services, the Rental Services and
the Advisory and Consultancy Services), on normal commercial terms and
in accordance with the Contract governing them on terms that were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole. Having considered the reasons and benefits in respect of the
provision of household management and maintenance services under the
Asset Management and Maintenance Services, the Property Administration
Services, the Rental Services and the Advisory and Consultancy Services
as mentioned in the Company's announcement dated 31st October,
2017, the INEDs were of the view that, although the provision of such
services contemplated under the Contract were not in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group, the terms of such services were
fair and reasonable so far as the Group were concerned and on normal
commercial terms, and were in the interests of the Company and its

shareholders as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

The Company's auditors was engaged to report on the subject continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements other
than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors has issued
an unqualified report containing their findings and conclusions in respect
of the subject continuing connected transactions in accordance with rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of such report
to the Stock Exchange.

Save as aforesaid, there were no other discloseable non-exempted
connected transaction or non-exempted continuing connected transaction

under the Listing Rules during the Year.

Save as aforesaid, none of the “Material Related Party Transactions” for
the Year as disclosed in Note 49 to the consolidated financial statements
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-

exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

To the extent of the above “Material Related Party Transactions”
constituted connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
as defined in the Listing Rules, the Company had complied with the
relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the

Year.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 23rd November,
2018, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Borrower”) as borrower has on 23rd November, 2018 entered into a
facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) with a bank (the "Bank”) as
lender in respect of a term loan facility (the “Facility”) in the principal sum
of up to HK$674,000,000 and it is a term of the Facility Agreement that
the Company entered into a guarantee (the “Guarantee”). The Facility
will be repayable in 12 successive quarterly instalments with the final
repayment date falling 36 months after the date on which the advance

under the Facility is made.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement and the Guarantee, the Borrower
and the Company shall procure that the substantial shareholders of the
Company (as disclosed at pages 69 to 70 of the 2017 annual report of
the Company) and/or their ultimate beneficial owners together with their
respective associates and connected persons in aggregate shall maintain
not less than 30% shareholding in and remain a single largest shareholder

of the Company.

A breach of the abovementioned undertaking may constitute an event
of default under the Facility Agreement, whereby the Bank may, among
others, cancel the Facility and declare that all sums accrued or outstanding
(including accrued interest) under the Facility Agreement be immediately
due and payable. The occurrence of such event may trigger the cross
default provisions of other banking or credit facilities available to the
Group and, as a possible consequence, these other facilities may also be

declared by the relevant lenders to be immediately due and payable.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:—

(1) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the "ORSO Scheme"); and

(2) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the "MPF Scheme").

Both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes are managing by their
respective trustees accordingly.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (contd)

The ORSO Scheme is available to the Group's full-time permanent staff
employed in Hong Kong before 1st December, 2000. Contributions to
the ORSO Scheme are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% based
on the staff's basic salary depending on the length of service. Staff
members are entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together with
accrued returns after completing 10 years of service or more, or attaining
the retirement age, or are entitled at a reduced scale between 30% to
90% of the Group's contributions after completing a period of service
of at least 3 years but less than 10 years. The ORSO Scheme allowed
any forfeited contributions (made by the Group for any staff member
who subsequently left the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to be used by the Group to offset the current level of

contributions of the Group.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and with
at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's
relevant income. The maximum relevant income for contribution purpose
is HK$30,000 per month. Staff members are entitled to 100% of the
Group's contributions together with accrued returns irrespective of their
length of service with the Group, but the benefits are required by law to

be preserved until the retirement age of 65.

In order to provide similar benefits to those who joined the MPF Scheme
and the ORSO Scheme, the Group provided an additional portion (the
“Top-up Portion”) for those who joined the MPF Scheme. The purpose
of the Top-up Portion is to match up the benefits of the MPF Scheme
with that of the ORSO Scheme by providing those staff under the MPF
Scheme with basic salary over HK$30,000 and/or years of service over 5.
Contributions to the Top-up Portion are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5%
or 10% of the staff's basic salary less the Group's mandatory contribution

under the MPF Scheme as mentioned above.

The Group's total cost for the schemes charged to consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31st December, 2018
amounted to approximately HK$8,450,000 (2017: HK$10,030,000). In
addition, an amount of forfeited employer's contributions for the schemes
amounted to approximately HK$716,000 (2017: HK$213,000) was
utilised towards reducing the Group's contributions during the Year. As at
31st December, 2018, the balance available to reduce future contributions
amounted to approximately HK$46,000 (2017: nil).
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) to recognise the contributions of certain employees and help
in retaining them for the Group's operations and further development. It
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 14th January, 2009 (the “Adoption Date”) and valid and
effective until 13th January 2019.

The Board may from time to time, at its absolute discretion and subject
to such terms and conditions as it may think fit (including the basis of
eligibility of each employee determined by the Board from time to time),
after having taken into account recommendations made by members of
the Group and assessment of individual performance pursuant to internal
appraisal system, select an employee for participation in the Share Award
Scheme as a Selected Employee (“Selected Employee”) and determine
the number of shares which may be awarded to such Selected Employee
pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme (“Awarded Share(s)").
A Selected Employee shall qualify to be allotted and issued the Awarded
Shares after all the qualifying conditions have been fulfilled, unless

otherwise determined by the Board at its discretion.

The issue price for each Awarded Share shall, subject to the terms of
the Share Award Scheme, be an amount equal to its nominal value and
shall be paid or satisfied in cash by the relevant member of the Group
engaging the Selected Employee or, if payment by the relevant member
of the Group engaging the Selected Employee is not permitted under
applicable law, any member of the Group, upon the allotment and issue
of the Awarded Shares.

The total number of shares which may be issued in response to the
Share Award Scheme and any other incentive or option schemes of
the Company (if any) shall not in aggregate exceed 207,775,007, being
10% of the total number of shares in issue on the Adoption Date. The
maximum number of Awarded Shares to be granted to each Selected
Employee under the Share Award Scheme in any 12-month period shall
not exceed in aggregate 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of such

grant.

As at the date of this Directors’ Report, the Share Award Scheme has been
expired. No granting of Awarded Shares has been made for the Year and

during the life of the Share Award Scheme.

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 23rd December, 2008.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of

this annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") who would retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed to the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint HLB

as the auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lam, Kwong-wai

Director

Hong Kong, 5th March, 2019
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese Estates
Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 91 to 253, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st December,
2018, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st
December, 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidation financial statements

As at 31st December, 2018,
the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current
assets by approximately

HK$2,749,823,000.

To support the going
concern basis in preparing
the consolidated financial
statements, management of
the Group has prepared a
cash flow projections of the
Group covering a period of not
less than twelve months from
31st December, 2018 and
concluded that there would
be sufficient funds from the
Group's existing cash resources,
available facilities from banks
and a director and cash flows
to be generated from its
operations to finance its future
operations and enable it to
meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due in the
next twelve months from 31st
December, 2018.

The cash flow projections involved
key assumptions such as revenue
growth, gross profit margin,
planned capital expenditures,
and availability of facilities to the

Group.

Our procedures in relation to the
preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on a going
concern basis included, but were not

limited to:

- assessing the appropriateness
of the key assumptions in the
cash flow projections, including
revenue growth, gross profit
margin and planned capital
expenditures by referencing to
actual historical performance
of the Group and making
reference to the Group's future
development plan, and testing
the mathematical accuracy of

the projections;

- confirming the cash resources
and available facilities from
banks and the director as at
year end by circularisation of
confirmations and assessing the
probability of banking facilities
renewal during the projections
period by examining historical
records of renewal pattern,
and reviewing management
assessment on the present and
forecast status of compliance
with restrictive loan covenants,

where relevant, and;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis (Cont'd)

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidation financial statements (Cont'd)

Our procedures in relation to the
preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on a going
concern basis included, but were not
limited to: (Cont'd)

- evaluating the sensitivity of the
projected available cash by
considering downside scenarios
through applying reasonably
plausible changes to the key
assumptions, including revenue
growth and gross profit margin.
We have also considered the
appropriateness of the relevant

disclosures.

We found the use of going concern
basis of accounting to be supportable

by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the

key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to Notes 19 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements

Management has estimated the fair
value of the Group’s investment
properties to be approximately
HK$15,280,848,000 as at 31st
December, 2018 with a net gain
on fair value changes for the year
ended 31st December, 2018
recorded in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income of approximately
HK$122,301,000. Independent
external valuations were obtained
in respect of all of the portfolio of
the Group, also with the investment
properties held by its associates
and joint venture in order to

support management's estimates.

The valuations are dependent
on certain key assumptions that
require significant management
judgment including reversionary
yield and rental income from
future reversion leases in light of

current market conditions.

Our procedures in relation to
management’'s valuation of
investment properties included, but

were not limited to:

- evaluating the independent
external valuers’ competence,

capabilities and objectivity;

- assessing the methodologies
used and the appropriateness
of the key assumptions and
parameters based on our
knowledge of the property
industry and using our audit

valuation experts; and

- checking, on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the

input data used.

We found the key assumptions were

supported by the available evidence.
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Key audit matter
key a

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT B #Z B Fi R &=

How our audit addressed the

udit matter

Classification and fair value measurement on financial

assets

Refer to Notes 5(c), 26 and 27 to the consolidated financial

statements

As at 31st December, 2018, the
Group had equity securities with
carrying amount of approximately
HK$21,367,307,000 which
were irrevocably elected and
designated as financial assets
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. -

Our

As at 31st December, 2018,
the Group held unlisted equity
including limited
partnership, club and
corporate debentures and a

securities,

derivative financial instrument
with carrying amount of
approximately HK$1,200,307,000, -
HK$78,481,000 and HK$1,921,000
respectively. These financial
instruments do not have a
quoted market price in an
active market (the "Unquoted
Investments”). They were
classified as financial assets
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income or
financial assets measured at fair -
value through profit or loss and
measured at fair value.

procedures over the

classification of financial assets
and fair value measurement of the
Group'
Investments included, but were not

s portfolio of the Unquoted

limited to:

assessing management’s
evaluation in relation to the
classification of financial
assets based on the Group's
business model for managing
the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial
assets;

reviewing management'’s
memorandum for the
classification of financial assets
and the irrevocable election
to designate investment in
equity instruments that would
be measured subsequent
changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income;

enquiring the management
including fund manager and
assessing the methodologies
used in fair value measurement
and the appropriateness of
the key assumptions and
parameters based on our
knowledge of the investment
and using our audit valuation
experts;

enquiring the management
the assumptions around the
sustainability of earnings based
on the plans of the investee
companies and whether these
were achievable;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Classification and fair value measurement on financial

assets (Cont'd)

Refer to Notes 5(c), 26 and 27 to the consolidated financial

statements (Cont'd)

The valuation of the Unquoted
Investments is complex and
requires the application of
significant judgment by the
management.

The Unquoted Investments are
valued on a basis considered
the most appropriate by the
management and independent
external valuers, depending on
the nature of the underlying
business which has been
invested in.

Our procedures over the
classification of financial assets
and fair value measurement of the
Group's portfolio of the Unquoted
Investments included, but were not
limited to: (Cont'd)

- obtaining management
information including budgets
and forecasts from the
portfolio companies being
valued and using these to
corroborate the key inputs in
the valuation model;

- checking, on sample basis,
the accuracy and relevance
of the input data used such
as comparing key underlying
financial data inputs to
external sources and investee
companies’ audited financial
statements and management
information as applicable;

- obtaining market second
hand prices independently
and comparing them to the
valuation model;

- evaluating the independent
external valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity; and

- checking the arithmetical
accuracy on the valuation
model.

We considered management's
classification and fair value
measurement on financial assets
were supported by the available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the Group's 2018
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements

and our auditors' report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.

FHRAZHEMES

EERHEMEERAR EMEERE EEEC
T N\EEHRAZABELS ETERREEEMB R
RERESZEHBMBE ([HHELS]) -

EEHBRAMBHRRZERY MRERMBIES -
ENTHZEEMERBEREAN A ZRESER

BEBSHRAVMBHRRZET BEZRMEH
HHMES HHBREST TEHMEELSTHREA

HHERE TS EEARRBR TR ZBRFEEX
BEBIUTFEERBRBRAZ2BER - EREE
HITZIE WESERAHMEB LR EXNERR
e EEFEREZEE - FEME  EFLE
EfHRE -

Eﬁiﬁﬁﬂgéﬁiéﬁﬂﬁé‘
/A *FEZ %Fc

SRR

EREAERERESHMASEMZEATHR
ERAREBEBRRAGN 2 HEEREEETR
NEMIBGENBRE EFAHERBARGE
RAEMBRE 2GR FEARN R M8
EAHERBUAMEOADBELEESE -

ERLEGE

=1
_J,Z; Z<<< AA

Rk EFABETNE EX5H
N WHERBLTHRERSELE
BRZER UREAKELLASER RIFE
EZEER BEREBRIFULELE SHEEGLE
RZBRAR

B
W
v
]
o3
il

BRER

BEEBEZYBREBE-

5= A
i o

“E-\FFHR EABXEE

87

L g



¢

88

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT B Y #Z H iR &=

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (contd)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also: (Cont'd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (contd)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent

auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: PO6417

Hong Kong, 5th March, 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Investment income, net

Administrative expenses

Gain on disposals of equipment, net

Fair value changes on investment properties

Finance costs

Other gains and losses, net

Share of results of investments accounted
for using the equity method

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (expenses) income
Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Gains and losses on investments in equity
instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Share of other comprehensive income of
investments accounted for using the
equity method

Items that may be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Reclassification adjustment related to
foreign operations disposed of

Share of other comprehensive (expenses)
income of investments accounted for
using the equity method

Other comprehensive (expenses) income
for the year (net of tax)

Total comprehensive (expenses) income
for the year

REETHEWRERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #Z - —\F+_A=+—HILFE

Notes

B 5E

A 7
$HE A

EF

Hbug A 9
BN FHE 10
THAX

S E 2 s F

RENEZ N FEE 19
B 58 A 11
Hpth U a5 & B8R 58 12
BR AR EARKEEZ

EX

R 7 AT T
FriS R > 13

REE A 14

H2H (X H) K
TEENTHEERBEZ
=
BBE M2 E A SRR
RV EFEZBRATA
wEZ W R EE
BEAEREARKEZ
HAh 2 W

BEATEES T EEREZ
HH
BONEEREEZ
PE N ZERR
BRLERIINEBZ
B OBERE
BEAEDEAREREZ
Ht2m| () Wa

AEFEMEE () K
(BRMEIR)

REERHE (XH) REHE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
843,618 1,516,655
(124,507) (546,813)
719,111 969,842
173,062 132,020
542,002 2,701,708
(255,506) (279,254)
1,181 1,832
122,301 564,502
(344,990) (295,173)
(2,559) 140,283
232,252 189,922
1,186,854 4,125,682
(127,041) (327,049)
1,059,813 3,798,633
(2,847,447) 12,217,167
132 306
(2,847,315) 12,217,473
(274,773) 405,284
- 409
(10,182) 16,658
(284,955) 422,351
(3,132,270) 12,639,824
(2,072,457) 16,438,457
—E-N\FFEHR EABEEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #R&Z2HEWHE R X
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Notes
B 5
Profit for the year attributable to: AR FERF
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZ 2SN
Non-controlling interests SRR
Total comprehensive (expenses) income EBEAEFE2ZE (XH)
for the year attributable to: W sBEE:
Owners of the Company PA/NEIEZ ZS DN
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR =
Earnings per share (HK$) BREF (B) 18
Basic and diluted EREEE

2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
1,015,290 3,708,886
44,523 89,747
1,059,813 3,798,633
(2,116,980) 16,348,710
44,523 89,747
(2,072,457) 16,438,457
0.532 1.944

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated #R& B BHEM TG AEMBREN—ID -

financial statements.
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Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Gooduwill

Investments accounted for
using the equity method

Advances to associates

Advance to a joint venture

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Advances to investee companies

Advance to a non-controlling shareholder

Deferred tax assets

Pledged deposits

Current assets

Stock of properties

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Inventories

Debtors, deposits, other receivables and
prepayments

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Tax recoverable

Pledged deposits

Time deposits, bank balances and cash

Sales proceeds held by stakeholders

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B MR R B R

RE ANFH5 I & PSR

At 31st December, 2018 R =& —

Notes
Ff 51
FREBEE
wEME 19
M- BB &R 20
mEEE 21
EES 22
EZREARZIRE
23
BT R R FRIE 24
BN—EEERFIRE 25
BRBER AR
NTEFECERMEE 26
378 38 FC A 2 TET U 2 DA F B
AFEFEZCBEE 27
BB ERRFE 28(a)
B — IR AR R R 28(b)
RIEBIEEE 29
EIRFR 30(a)
REBEE
MEFE 31
BiEE AR
NV EFEZEMEE 26
rE 32
FEUERTE - 24 - EibEUERTE
R FER FRIE 33
FEW B 532 5 BRI8 R AFR 30(b)
AJ Y [E 7R
HIFIF R 30(a)
EHTFH - R1T4 %&ﬁ% 30(c)

NE+=A=+—8

2018 2017
HK$"000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
15,280,848 15,649,991
36,654 43,117
322,938 322,938
2,276,177 2,115,228
49,259 49,199
154,218 -
1,350,090 2,049,276
21,367,307 24,141,960
652,304 605,204
11,170 14,908
1,899 2,419
83,203 90,541
41,586,067 45,084,781
228,799 296,513
5,415,827 8,759,356
3,187 2,660
517,562 916,113
22,497 112,611
15,670 2,155
154,195 172,972
714,572 659,402
32,327 56,792
7,104,636 10,978,574
—E-N\FFEHR EABEEE

93

\ g



94

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31st December, 2018 R=_E— \F+_A=+—H

Current liabilities
Creditors and accruals
Securities trading and margin payable
Deposits and receipts in advance
Tax liabilities

Borrowings

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of

the Company

Share capital

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
reserve

Statutory reserve

Special reserve

Capital redemption reserve

Translation reserve

Retained profits
— proposed final dividend

— others

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

REBEE
FE A BR IR & FE 5t 5R0R
ENEFRPERELRESR
B& kIR
BIRRE

fBE

RBEEFRE

EEAERRBEE

RARERARGERE S

&N

3 3B H At 2 T U 35 DA
R FEAEZ
TREEZFHE

EERE

GSHl A

N el

P 3O B

Oyl
— R R H B B
—HAh

RS

RAERBE

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

RE MR /R

Notes

ot

34

35

36

2018 2017
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FAT
247,187 345,201
22,295 116,983
218,633 241,168
62,656 316,502
9,303,688 12,763,546
9,854,459 13,783,400
(2,749,823) (2,804,826)
38,836,244 42,279,955
190,762 190,762
7,016,367 10,204,417
668 668
2,499,685 2,499,685
138,062 138,062
(593,208) (308,253)
190,762 190,762
24,619,270 23,469,813
34,062,368 36,385,916
81,201 107,086
34,143,569 36,493,002




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current liabilities FREBEME
Borrowings BE
Loan from a director BEEXN
Amounts due to associates RE S R RFRIE
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders RE R FKRIA
Deferred tax liabilities RIEBIEEE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 5th
March, 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Chan, Sze-wan [
Director EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

REMBRRER

At 31st December, 2018 R=_ZE—N\F+_A=+—H

2018 2017

Notes HK$"000 HK$'000
faE FTET TAET
35 4,443,987 3,709,467
37 - 1,835,500
38 171,619 142,419
38 24,177 49,202
29 52,892 50,365
4,692,675 5,786,953

38,836,244 42,279,955

EREFEN_T-NF=A O AHERKEREM

THTINEEKREFEHRE:

Lam, Kwong-wai R
Director EE

RAMBHREAMENGAMBEHRERN—# -

B \EEH

.

L

ABXEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERETEREFX

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HZ =T — ) \F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

¢

96

ERAREARGRFER
Financial assets
measured
at fair value
Properties through other
Share revaluation  comprehensive  Statutory
capital reserve  income reserve reserve
EBEM2ENR
nE URMAFEHE
TN EftfiE ZeREEZRB EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FET FET
(note (i) (note (ii))
(WEEQ)  (BEEG))
At Tst January, 2017 RZZ—+%—-A—H 190,762 18,632 (2,255,201) 668
Profit for the year REFHER - - - -
Gains and losses on investments in A E 2 A DA R
equity instruments measured at AVEFEBZRATIEREZ
fair value through other comprehensive income Wz R &5 18
- Listed equity investments —EmRAKRE - - 12,052,597 -
~ Unlisted investments —¥LmRE - - 164,570 -
Exchange differences on translation of BHEBHEECERER
foreign operations - - - -
Redlassification adjustment related to BRHERN B ZENHEHE
foreign operations disposed of - - - -
Share of other comprehensive income of BN ERENRREZ
investments accounted for using Hip2EiR
the equity method - - 306 -
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFEANREE - - 12217473 -
Transfer of negative reserve upon disposal of REERBEM 2B ARE
the investment in an equity instrument ATEHEZRATARER
measured at fair value through other BEBEEE
comprehensive income - - 242,145 -
Release of reserve upon sales of MHE BRI E R 2 FHE
completed properties - (18,632) - -
Dividend paid to a non-controlling shareholder B —RI3EZE BB RIS - - - -
Interim dividend for 2017 paid BRZZ—tFHHRE - - - -
Final dividend for 2016 paid ERZZ-RERBRE - - - -
Special interim dividends for 2016 ENZE-RERZT—t4F
and 2017 paid FRlhHRE - - - -
At 31st December, 2017 RZB—tF+-A=t-H 190,762 - 10,204,417 668

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018




Attributable to owners of the Company

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZREeRAERZ S H X
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

ARARFARERAES
Capital Non-
Other Special redemption Translation Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
&X RAES
Hitfkf KRG BERE B %A REBEF BE FERES B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TEL FHEL FEL THEL TEL TEL FET
(note (iii)) (note (iv))
RO (PF=EGiv))
(2,378) 2,499,685 138,062 (728,226) 29,942,212 29,804,216 95,639 29,899,855
- - - - 3,708,886 3,708,886 89,747 3,798,633
- - - - - 12,052,597 - 12,052,597
- - - - - 164,570 - 164,570
- - - 405,284 - 405,284 - 405,284
- - - 409 - 409 - 409
2,378 - - 14,280 - 16,964 - 16,964
2,378 - - 419,973 3,708,886 16,348,710 89,747 16,438,457
- - - - (242,145) - - -
- - - - 18,632 - - -
3 _ _ _ - - (78,300) (78,300)
- - - - (381,524) (381,524) - (381,524)
- - - - (19,076) (19,076) - (19,076)
- - - - (9,366,410) (9,366,410) - (9,366,410)
- 2,499,685 138,062 (308,253) 23,660,575 36,385,916 107,086 36,493,002
—E-N\EEH  FAREES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZEeRAEZ ST &
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

98

ADABEARGERARS
Financial assets
measured
at fair value
Properties through other
Share revaluation  comprehensive  Statutory
capital reserve  income reserve reserve
BRHEMZERS
¥ URMATENE
B EftfhE 2eREEZRB EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL FHEL
(note (i) (note (ii))
(MEEQ)  (FEEG))
At Tst January, 2018 RZE-N\F—H—H 190,762 - 10,204,417 668
Profit for the year KERRH - - = =
Gains and losses on investments in BBE M2 WG AR
equity instruments measured at RTEFEZRATEREZ
fair value through other comprehensive income Yas R g
~ Listed equity investment — EWRARE - - (3.016,524) -
~ Unlisted investments —JFERE - - 169,077 -
Exchange differences on translation of BONEBREECERER
foreign operations - - - -
Share of other comprehensive income (expenses)  # {5 EZEANRIRE 2
of investments accounted for using Hit 2 E U (i)
the equity method - - 132 -
Total comprehensive (expenses) income AFEERE (XH)RELEE
for the year - - (2,8417,315) -
Transfer of reserve upon disposal of PR B E A 2 T R DA S B
the investment in an equity instrument AVEHEZRATARER
measured at fair value through other BRHE
comprehensive income - - (340,735) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders ERFEERRERS - - - -
Interim dividend for 2018 paid ERNZE-NFHHRE - - - -
Final dividend for 2017 paid BERZZE—+FRARE - - - -
Unclaimed dividends forfeited (note (v)) BMABERZBRE (HEW) - - - -
At 31st December, 2018 R-ZB-NE+ZRA=+-H 190,762 - 7,016,367 668
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZREeRAERZ S H X
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERREEARGRAES
Capital Non-
Other Special redemption Translation Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
&K RARER
Hit e BRlfRE RO E R REEF BE FERESR BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THEL THEL FiET FET FET THEL FEL
(note (i) (note (iv))
(Bt =E (i) ) GEIO
- 2,499,685 138,062 (308,253) 23,660,575 36,385,916 107,086 36,493,002
- - - - 1,015,290 1,015,290 44,523 1,059,813
- - - - - (3,016,524) - (3.016,524)
- - - - - 169,077 - 169,077
- - - (274,173) - (274,173) - (274,173)
- - - (10,182) - (10,050) - (10,050)
- - - (284,955) 1,015,290 (2.116,980) 44,523 (2,072,457)
- - - - 340,735 - - -
= = = = = = (70,408) (70,408)
- - - - (19,076) (19,076) - (19,076)
- - - - (190,762) (190,762) - (190,762)
- - - - 3,270 3,270 - 3,270
- 2,499,685 138,062 (593,208) 24,810,032 34,062,368 81,201 34,143,569
“E-\FFHR EABXEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZEeRAEZ ST &
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Notes: BT -

(i)  The cumulative amount of the gain on a listed equity investment () RKZZ—N\F+ZA=+—H0 LWRAKES

classified as financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") was approximately
HK$6,571,043,000 as at 31st December, 2018 (2017:
HK$9,928,302,000).

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group disposed
of a subsidiary, whose principal asset was its holding of a block of
577,180,500 H shares of Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2066)
("SJB Shares"). At the date of completion of the disposal, the SJB Shares
were carried at their fair value determined based on the consideration of
the disposal transaction. The resulting gain on fair value change of the
SJB Shares, as well as the transaction costs of the disposal, amounting
to approximately HK$2,124,295,000, was recognised as part of the
other comprehensive income of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2017. Upon completion of the disposal, the negative balance
in the financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve that related to the
SJB Shares disposed of, amounted to approximately HK$242,145,000,
was transferred to retained profits.

During the year ended 31st December, 2018, the loss from shares of
China Evergrande Group (stock code: 3333) (“Evergrande Shares")
was recorded in financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve of
approximately HK$3,016,524,000 including unrealised loss of
approximately HK$3,052,253,000, realised gain of approximately
HK$36,715,000 and the transaction costs of the disposal of certain
Evergrande Shares of approximately HK$986,000 (2017: unrealised
gain of HK$9,928,302,000). Upon completion of the disposal of certain
Evergrande Shares, the cumulative fair value gain and the transaction
costs in the financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve that related
to the disposal amounted to approximately HK$340,735,000 was
transferred to retained profits.

The statutory reserve of the Group refers to the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC") statutory reserve fund. Appropriations to such reserve
fund are made out of profit after tax as recorded in the statutory
financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries. The amount should not be
less than 10% of the profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial
statements unless the aggregate amount exceeds 50% of the registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The statutory reserve can be used to
make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into
the PRC subsidiaries’ capital by means of capitalisation issue.

The movement of other reserve represented the release of the negative
reserve held by an associate of the Group upon the disposals of the
relevant properties.

Special reserve represented the difference arising from the aggregate of
the share capital and premium amount of the former holding company
and the Company upon redomicile of the holding company as a
Bermuda Company in 1989 and is non-distributable.

Unclaimed dividends forfeited represented dividends declared by the
Company on or before 17th August, 2011 remaining unclaimed by
shareholders of the Company on 28th February, 2018. During the
year ended 31st December, 2018, unclaimed dividends amounted to
approximately HK$3,270,000 (2017: nil) were forfeited and transferred
to retained profits.

BARBHMEERGEARBRATE ([BBEM
PEAREARBAFE]FEZSREE Y R
I 2554 56,571,043,0008 0 (— T — 4
9,928,302,000/% 7T ) °

REBEE-ZT—+tF+-_A=+—"BILEER &
SEHE—MWBERAR EXZEEARBE It
577,180,5000% 5% R iR 1TR% 15 A PR A FIHAR (IR %
R 5% 2066) I fH (TR FIBITRG]) -HREER
KA BRRBITRNIZHERGREMETEA
FEIE - RBEE-_ZE—+F+-_A=+—H1t
FEN BRBRITROZAFEZHURBER
ST ES 2 W& 584 52,124,295,000/8 7T
THERAAAEEZHoHME2ERE REER
KE RBBHEMEEREARBAFEFEZ
CREEZRETERALERARITROZAE
BREE#I242,145,000/8 T E BB ZREBEF| -

RBE-_Z-N\E+-_A=+—HBILFEXN @&
BEAEPEEKZURBRAFEFEZEHEEY
EETERATBEERER (BRHDASE: 3333)
& (MERERD]) 2 B84 A3,016,524,000%8
JC B HE R B IR 518 493,052,253,00058 7T« B &
I %5 #936,715,0009%8 7T R B E & FT1EKRD 2
X 5K AN #)986,0008 70 (—F —tF  REMUK
#39,928,302,0007% 7T ) ° AT H & & T 15 K%
DR BREMmE2ERSIARBATFEFEZS
REE REBETRFBRALE 225 A FEREER
SRR & B 49340,735,000/8 LB B E = (R B %
F o

REEEAEREETEARLNE ([HE])EE
ERHES - MZFEEESELAEYE B DB
BRBEEMBHMROBHZGEN - IESBETNS
EFOZFE M T M A8 Z BRI R F 2 100 BR
FEARERAR B B A BIREM & AN 2 50% < VA TE fh
BIONERBEFEEE () RIEL - LAEB
ERMCETRBALBRTRKEARZER-

HipEEEEIIEAEE Y —HMBERARRHE
ERMERBOMASEZAERE-

R DR AE R QA R EAD R —LNANF
BMZERAFRRBRERRR 2RA L EER
BEEEZEZERRTIAIDE -

RIMAEBR 2 RETIIEARRTRZE——F )\
ATHtHAKZAERMARBZERREA=ZZE—N
FZAZFNBNARERZRE -REBEE=F—N
FH+ZA=Z+T—HLEFEARN DREERZRE
©FX 53,270,000 70 (Z T —+F &) BEL
Y I B 1 = R BB A o

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated 4R A B HEM TG AMBREN — 2D °

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERERX

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #ZE—FT—\F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hit =% FHT FHT
Operating activities REER
Profit before tax R 750 A4 A 1,186,854 4,125,682
Adjustments for: I IES
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- BERRETE 6,806 8,680
Interest expenses FEMAEZ 342,356 234,631
Interest income R B A (672,652) (1,690,936)
Dividends income from listed and EHmRIFLETRE
unlisted investments & B WA (1,161,570) (164,110)
Allowance for doubtful debt (reversed) MEWE SRERERE
recognised in respect of trade receivables (B E) R (7) 250
Write-off of trade receivables HIEWE 5 HR1E 2 i 13 114
Impairment loss reversed in respect of B—IEHE M EUARIER B 2
an other receivable BB R (49,245) (2,632)
Write-off of other receivables L E fh FE ML AR 1B 2 i8R 247 132
Unrealised loss (gain) arising from change in BEAHZ N T EE
fair value of bonds MEEZ REIREE (W) 1,255,094 (600,296)
Unrealised gain arising from change in SERAFGEFZATEEZY
fair value of club and corporate B 4 2 REBR U F R
debentures, net (8,592) (7,082)
Unrealised gain arising from change in MTESMITEZATEES
fair value of derivative financial instrument ME£ 2 REH K= (1,921) -
Gain on disposals of equipment, net HERE W mFRE (1,181) (1,832)
Share of results of investments accounted for BABEREAREEZ
using the equity method ES (232,252) (189,922)
Fair value changes on investment properties "EWMEZ NTFEE (122,301) (564,502)
Write-down of stock of properties MEFEZRE 2,549 3,830
Exchange (gain) loss, net PE 3 (Mzs) 518558 (11,227) 40,389
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HENBAR 2 W 39 - (144,126)
—z-nF5%  #AExzm 101
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #HREBRE&RER

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_—Z

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease in stock of properties

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Decrease (increase) in debtors, deposits,
other receivables and prepayments

Decrease in financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease (increase) in securities trading
receivables and deposits

(Increase) decrease in sales proceeds held by
stakeholders

Decrease in creditors and accruals

(Decrease) increase in securities trading and
margin payable

Decrease in deposits and receipts in advance

Cash generated from operating activities

Income tax paid, net

Net cash generated from operating

activities

“NET A=+ HILFE

Notes

ot

FEURIE & - b EYIRTE K
?EH/TAIE@Z (#&n)
BBERNANRAFEEZ
ERMEERD

U 7E 75 R 5 BRI K 7 3K
A (1)

RE NPT HE PTSBUR
(#&pn) B

JE A BRIA I B 5t SRR R A
ENEFRZREAR
RER O )18

Be RIBWGIER D

REKEEB RS
ERFTSHF5E

REBEER RS FE
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2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
532,971 1,048,270
71,064 420,044
(527) 200
307,085 (448,743)
2,798,134 4.814,419
90,114 (84,790)
(42,217) 50,525
(90,149) (65,944)
(94,688) 107764
(16,621) (97,610)
3,555,166 5,744,135
(388,284) (276,440)
3,166,882 5,467,695




Investing activities

Dividends received from listed and unlisted
investments

Dividends received from associates

Interest received

Payments for investment properties

Purchases of equipment

Payments for stock of properties

Proceeds from disposals of equipment

Subscription of equity interest in a joint venture

Advance to a joint venture

Advances to associates

Advances from associates

Advances to investee companies

Advance from an investee company

Decrease in pledged deposits

Increase in time deposits with maturity greater
than three months

Purchase of a financial asset measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Net proceed from disposal of a financial asset
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Net cash inflow arising from disposals of
subsidiaries

Net cash outflow arising from acquisition of
assets through acquisition of a subsidiary

Deferred considerations received in respect of
disposals of subsidiaries in prior years

Net return of capital contribution from a financial
asset measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Net cash generated from (used in)

investing activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #ZERE&REXR
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-T— \F+-_A=+—HILFE
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Notes
Ff 51

39

40

2018 2017
HK$"000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
1,106,820 1,092
61,500 75,100
809,407 1,007,997
- (937)
(2,130) (5,131)
(15,136) (463)
1,563 2,688
(150) -
(154,218) -
(55) (28,319)
29,200 32,451
(46,350) (8,850)
54,000 -
18,344 694,590
(19,876) (88,824)
(546,352) (13,182,428)
473,558 -
- 1,777,903
- (1,689,819)
- 5,873,280
- 16,205
1,770,125 (5,523,465)
—E-N\FFEHR EABEEE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #ZEaRE&FREXR
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iks3 FHT FHT
Financing activities EE=E 73
Dividends paid [RENEEESN (209,838) (4,747,543)
Interest paid 2 F & (343,343) (232,819)
New bank borrowings and MIBRITIEER
other borrowings raised HEppEE 7,859,842 20,148,553
Loans from a director raised FIEEER 410,229 3,689,070
Repayments of bank borrowings and BEBITIEER
other borrowings HMEE (10,347,409) (17,430,898)
Repayments of loans from a director BEREEEEN (2,245,346) (1,848,540)
Repayment to a non-controlling shareholder B8 — B SRR IR R 2 /I8 (25,000) (25,000)
Net cash used in financing activities FARRMEXB 2 RELERE 42 (4,900,865) (447,177)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and ReRAELEEERZ
cash equivalents B CED) FH 36,142 (502,947)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January HR—F—HZEH&RK
RE%EEE 570,578 1,070,471
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEFHoE (848) 3,054
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZB=+—-H2
31st December ReRkFALEEER 605,872 570,578
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBESSEEBEEEHRIN
cash equivalents
Time deposits, bank balances and cash EHGFHR RITEHB LIRS 714,572 659,402
Less: Time deposits with maturity greater than W ERBHER=EAZ
three months TEETF 30(c) (108,700) (88,824)
605,872 570,578

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated #R& M EHEAM TGS Y BREN—E 5 -

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #ZE—FT—\F+_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
Company's registered office and principal office in Hong Kong
are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” of
this annual report. Details of the substantial shareholders of the
Company are disclosed in the paragraph headed “Substantial
Shareholders' Interests in the Securities of the Company” in the

section headed "Directors’ Report” of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar ("HK$"), which is same as the functional currency of the
Company and all amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

The Company's principal activity is investment holding and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 50

and principal associates and joint venture are set out in Note 51.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs

The accounting policies adopted in these consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2018 are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) for the

year ended 31st December, 2017 except as described below.

1.

—REH

ARBRR—HRBRETMR L2 ER AR
RE EROREEBARZAER AR ([H
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FiEm| —BRATURE-

REEEMBHRABIT (BT 25 BT
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ARRZETEXRBR/FEER MEATEME
RAEZ EBEBHEIIN M50 K = 2B &
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FE R R R RIERT BB M5 R
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AR
BRTESN BE—_FT-N\F+_A=1+—H
LEFEZGAVBRRMER G BRE
BERARBREMNBAR ([RNEEDH#EE—
E—tF+ A=+ -HILFEZGELUB
WARMREE B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (cont'd)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,

the following new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

("HKFRSs"), new interpretation and amendments to existing

HKFRSs (2018 new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), which are effective for the

current financial year of the Group. The 2018 new HKFRSs adopted

by the Group in these consolidated financial statements are set out
below:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle relating to
Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of HKFRSs and
Amendments to HKAS 28
Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and Measurement of

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 (Amendments)

Share-based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15

HKAS 40 (Amendments) Transfers of Investment Property

HK(IFRIC) = Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (cont'd)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Accounting policies applied from 1st January, 2018

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue
is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles of HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgments and estimates. The standard superseded the revenue
recognition guidance including Hong Kong Accounting Standard
("HKAS") 18 "Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and
the related interpretations when it became effective. Amendments
to HKFRS 15 address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on principal versus

agent and licences of intellectual property, and transition.

The Group adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified retrospective
approach which means that the cumulative impact of the adoption
(if any) would be recognised in retained profits as of 1st January,
2018 and that comparatives have not been restated. The Group
assessed the impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on these consolidated
financial statements. Based on the assessment, the adoption of
HKFRS 15 does not have a material impact on the timing and
amounts of revenue recognition of the Group. Furthermore, the
Group's dividend income, interest income and rental income are
not within the scope of HKFRS 15. The adoption of HKFRS 15
has no impact on the net cash flow from operating, investing and

financing activities in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, change in the Group's

accounting policy is as follows:

e Revenue from sales of properties held for sale is recognised
when the legal assignment is completed, which is the point
in time when the purchaser has the ability to direct the use
of the property and obtain substantially all of the remaining

benefits of the property.

BRI REEIT BRI BER

£ 28| )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (cont'd)

Save as disclosed above, the application of the 2018 new HKFRSs
had no material effect on how the results and financial position for
the current or prior accounting periods are prepared and presented.

Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early adopted the following new HKFRSs, new
interpretation and amendments to existing HKFRSs (“new and

amended HKFRSs") that have been issued but are not yet effective.

FERFTR] RAEERT BB BR

fE A
£ 28| )

BRIAEPrIREE A T N\FHI BB

SRATEH A AR BE S HM
ZERERFBRRZBER 25T ABERE
AFE WHAELBEHMAE-

AEE W AREFEFAT I EBRMEDRER
ZHRIRAMBREEN FIRERERA
BEMBHMSEA ZER] ([FRIREETE

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

Definition of a Business?
Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets

BB mEREA]) o

(Amendments) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
HKFRS 16 Leases'
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material?
(Amendments)

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

Settlement!

HKAS 28 (Amendments) Long-term Interests in Associates

and Joint Ventures'

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2021

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 “Leases” and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective. It distinguishes
leases and service contracts on the basis of whether an identified
asset is controlled by a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires
sales and leaseback transactions to be determined based on
the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the
relevant asset should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also

includes requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Subject to limited exceptions for short-term leases and low value
assets, distinctions of operating and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for
all leases by lessees. However, the standard does not significantly

change the accounting of lessors.

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately HK$20,138,000.
A preliminary assessment indicates that these lease arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the
Group will recognise right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities
in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or

short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd)

In addition, the application of new requirements may result changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. Subsequently, the lease
liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst other. Lessees are required
to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
are allocated into a principal and an interest portion which are

presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

The Group applies the standard from its mandatory adoption date
of 1st January, 2019. The Group, as lessee, intends to apply the
simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first adoption. All right-of-use assets
will be measured at the amount of the lease liabilities on adoption

(adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease expenses).

Save as described above, the directors of the Company (“Directors”)
are in the process of assessing the potential impact of the new
and amended HKFRSs but are not yet in a position to determine
whether the new and amended HKFRSs will have a significant
impact on how the Group's results of operations and financial
position are prepared and presented. The new and amended
HKFRSs may result in changes in the future as to how the results

and financial position are prepared and presented.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, HKASs and Interpretations) issued by the
HKICPA and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. In addition, these consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622).

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately HK$2,749,823,000 (2017:
HK$2,804,826,000). Notwithstanding the above result, these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going

concern basis.

The management closely monitors the Group's financial
performance and liquidity position. The validity of the going concern
basis depends upon the success of the Group's future operations,
its ability to generate adequate cash flows in order to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due, and its ability to
refinance or restructure its borrowings such that the Group can

meet its future working capital and financing requirements.

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group had unutilised bank
facilities. Based on the latest communications with the banks, the
Directors are not aware of any intention of the principal banks to
withdraw their bank facilities or require early repayment of the
borrowings, and the Directors believe that the existing bank facilities
will be renewed or roll-overed when their current terms expire given
the good track records and relationships the Group has with the
banks. Further, the Group has unutilised loan facility from a Director
(Note 37). In addition, the Group held a portfolio of listed securities
investments and treasury products presented as non-current
assets as at 31st December, 2018 in aggregate of approximately
HK$21,438,609,000 (2017: HK$25,090,117,000) (Notes 26 and

27), which could be realised into cash, if necessary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

The Directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow projections
prepared by the management. The cash flow projections cover
a period of not less than twelve months from 31st December,
2018. Based on the cash flow projections, the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due in the coming twelve months from 31st
December, 2018. The management has made key assumptions
on the projections with regard to the anticipated cash flows from
the Group's operations, capital expenditures and the continuous
availability of bank facilities. The Group's ability to achieve the
projected cash flows depends on the continuous availability of bank

facilities from the banks.

In view of the above, the Directors are of the opinion that there will
be sufficient financial resources available to the Group to enable
it to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared these

consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at their fair values as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.
Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value-in-use in HKAS 36

“Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #Z-ZT—\F+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the

degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are

observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

(a) Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company: (i) has
power over the investee; (ii) is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

(i) has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.

Total comprehensive income and expense of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in

existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary, that is, reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs. The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost that is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments”, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint

venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see the

accounting policy above).

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss

as a bargain purchase gain.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating-units (“CGUs")
(or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the gain or loss

on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(9

Investments accounted for using the equity method

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified
as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations”. Under the equity method,
investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group's share of losses
of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments

on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_—Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(9

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is

acquired.

The requirements of HKFRS 9 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in an associate or a
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value-in-use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE =%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(9

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a
joint venture, or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is
classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate or joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9. The difference between the carrying amount of
the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method
was discontinued and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity

method is discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related

assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_—Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(9

(d)

(e)

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related

to the Group.

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and intangible

assets with indefinite useful lives)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation including land held for
a currently undetermined future use. On initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(e)

Investment properties (Cont'd)

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use is regarded
as held for capital appreciation purpose and classified as an
investment property, and carried at fair value. Changes in fair
value of the leasehold land are recognised directly in profit or

loss for the period in which changes take place.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the property) is
included in profit or loss for the period in which the property

is derecognised.

An investment property is transferred at fair value to property,
plant and equipment when the property begins to be
occupied by the owner or of development with a view to
owner-occupation. Gain or loss arising from change in fair
value of the investment property upon the transfer is included

in profit or loss.

An owner-occupied property is transferred from property,
plant and equipment to investment properties at fair value
when it is evidenced by the end of owner-occupation. The
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accounted for as a revaluation increase or
decrease in accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”. On the subsequent sale or retirement of assets,
the relevant revaluation reserve is transferred directly to

retained profits.

A property is transferred from investment property to stock
of properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of development with a view to
sale. Any difference between the fair value of the property at
the date of change in use and its previous carrying amount is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

®

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold land classified as finance leases (other than
properties under development) are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,

where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,

plant and equipment (other than properties under

development) over their estimated useful lives and after

taking into account their estimated residual values, using the

straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Type Basis

Leasehold land Over the remaining lives of the
leases

Buildings Over the shorter of the
remaining unexpired period

of the lease and 40 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years
equipment
Yachts and motor vehicles 3 to 10 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in

the period in which the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(8

Stock of properties

Stock of properties including completed properties and
properties under development, which are held-for-trading, are

stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The cost of completed properties held for sale is determined
by apportionment of the total development costs, including
borrowing costs capitalised, attributable to unsold units.
Net realisable value is estimated by the management of
the Group based on prevailing market conditions, which
represents the estimated selling price less estimated costs to

be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of properties under development held for sale
includes identified costs including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, borrowing costs capitalised,
material and supplies, wages, other direct expenses and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value
is estimated by the management of the Group taking into
account the expected price that can ultimately be achieved
based on prevailing market conditions, the anticipated costs

of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

The amount of any write-down of or provision for completed
properties held for sale and properties under development
held for sale is recognised as an expense in the period when
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down or provision, arising from an increase in net
realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
completed properties held for sale recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_—Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(h)

@M

@)

Inventories

Inventories comprise finished goods and raw materials for
cosmetic products, which are stated at the lower of cost and

net realisable value.

Cost represents the invoiced cost of inventories. Costs are
assigned to individual items on the weighted-average basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.

Intangible assets

Trading rights, exchange rights and trademark

Trading rights, gold and silver exchange rights and trademark
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less any
identified impairment loss. The amortisation period adopted

for intangible assets is 5 years.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instruments. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. A financial asset
or financial liability (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially measured

at the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE =%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in

their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending

on the classification of the financial assets.

®

Classification and measurement

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost less
impairment loss (except for debt investments that are

designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition):

the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order

to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset shall be measured at FVTOC! if both of

the following conditions are met:

the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling

financial asset; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)
(1) Cassification and measurement (Cont'd)
All other financial assets that are other than those

categorised as amortised cost and FVTOCI above, are

categorised as measured at FVTPL.

(1) Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount at

initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised using effective
interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
revenue, other income or investment income as

appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

3. FESTHHRERE e

1)

(1) Cassification and measurement (Cont'd)

(2) Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

On the date of initial application of HKFRS 9,

the Group may make an irrevocable election (on

an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate

investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCL.

Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the

equity investment is held-for-trading. A financial

asset is held-for-trading if it has been acquired

principally for the purpose of selling it in the near

term or it is a derivative that is not designated

and effective as a hedging instrument.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are

initially measured at fair value plus transaction

costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair

value with gains and losses arising from changes

in fair value recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in the financial assets

measured at FVTOCI reserve. Fair value is

determined in the manner described in Note

5(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss

and included in investment income.

The Group has designated all investments in

equity instruments (listed or unlisted) that are
not held-for-trading as at FVTOCI since the

application of HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(1) Cassification and measurement (Cont'd)

(3) Financial assets measured at FVTPL

3. FESTHERE W
() &=®MIAEE
LREE ()
() PERHE (E)

Financial assets measured at FVTPL comprise

derivatives that are not designated and effective
as hedging instruments and club and corporate

debentures.

Investments in equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, unless the Group designates such

investment that is not held-for-trading as at
FVTOCI on initial recognition (see (i)(2) above).

Debt instruments that do not meet the

amortised cost and FVTOCI criteria (see above)
are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria
but are designated as at FVTPL are measured
at FVTPL. A debt instrument may be designated
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a

measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on

them on different bases.

Financial assets measured at FVTPL are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period, with any gains or losses arising from

remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss

is included in investment income. Fair value is

determined in the manner described in Note
5(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest income on debt instruments at FVTPL
is recognised in profit or loss and is included in

investment income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECLs") on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. An impairment gain or loss, the amount
of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at reporting date is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. For trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach to providing for ECLs
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Group's historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result
from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_—Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument's external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market

indicators of credit risk;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE =%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

. an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to

meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is

more appropriate.

A M BB R M
—NE+-A=t+-BLFE

3. FESTHHRERE e

1)

ERIA (8

ETHEE (#)

(i) ZTEEEZFBE (&)

sE R AEE N (8)

. B AZ BEE 7 sk BT
REEBRIEHEHREAT
MEH SHEBABITH
B E F 2 e 1B KR
550

ANam L il S 45 R AN - A A1
FOBHAEBE30H - IR EESRTE
EERERB N FERARENIE
g RFEREEERERAER
BRATERERR - B SR

REBTFHREEARAEERR
BB BE L MR Z AR A
HIEET - e AR A RIS

HTA IR B A ARl 15 B R
REEIE I

BUOEE

HRARMEERREENS  ~N&E
RS N EBE L I BB AR
ﬁéﬂ?ﬁm EBATAARERE
BERA (BREAEE) X NEBEHK
HE - RIHBREOEFo

Eim LA HE A ER IS
BOOR AKEBEHRIFEHLE
#RRIFAKEBERSENRAER
ERERARRRZENEREER
g RIS ERIG -

“E-\FFHR EABXEE

131



132

¢

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over 1 year past due, whichever
occurs sooner, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate a later period
is more appropriate. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are

recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses over the expected life of the financial assets.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are
due to the entity in accordance with the contract and

the cash flows that the entity expects to receive).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses on a
forward-looking basis whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
“credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows

of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data of the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

. a breach of contract such as a default or past
due event;

. the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not

otherwise consider; or

. it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-
organisation, or the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or,
the financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the financial assets to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, except for an
investment in equity instrument that is classified as
FVTOCI, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and

receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
that is classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit

or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

®

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or equity instruments according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& Bt 3R &R M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

®

Classification and measurement (Cont'd)

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group's financial
liabilities are generally classified into (i) financial
liabilities at FVTPL and (ii) other financial liabilities
subsequently measured at amortised cost. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

(1) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL, representing those
as held-for-trading, comprise derivatives that
are not designated and effective as hedging

instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

3. FESTHHRERE e

1)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

(1) Cassification and measurement (Cont'd)

(2) Other financial liabilities subsequently measured

at amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of

calculating the amortised cost of a financial

liability and allocating interest expense over the

relevant period. The effective interest rate is

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future

cash payments (including all fees and points

paid or received that form an integral part of the

effective interest rate, transaction costs and other

premiums or discounts) through the expected

life of the financial liability or, where appropriate,

a shorter period, to the net carrying amount at

initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised using effective

interest method for financial liabilities, other than

those financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method. Interest expense that is not

capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included

in finance costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TESHHERBE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)
(j)  Financial instruments (Cont'd) (G) =®IA (&)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd) EHEBERREITA (&)
(i) Classification and measurement (Cont'd) ) DHEREFE(E)
(3) Equity instruments 3) BAIA
Equity instruments issued by the Company are RRBETZRATLERE
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct W RS FIBINBR BB BT
issue costs. ZAUN:
Consideration paid to repurchase the Company's BERABZRATAMX
own equity instruments is deducted from equity. Rz RERBREEZ SN
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on oM E  BE - BT
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the AR B Z A T BRI
Company's own equity instruments. Wan sk BEN B HER -
(i) Derecognition of financial liabilities () BUEEREHEE
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the EAREEBHEHNZEERETE
Group's obligation specified in the relevant contract fRBR -HUBSKEI B @ REBEK
is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference WEUHHER - BUERRZ RAE
between the carrying amount of the financial liability FHENENERENREZE
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is TR B R -

recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments TEEHMTA

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date METRYSRITETAGHNZEEH
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 2R EER BEREENRSEHR
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting Z AV EENGE  TEEZ W e
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss BRI R B R AR o

immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or

modified terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at
their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL and do not
arise from a transfer of an asset, are measured subsequently
at the higher of:

the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (see financial assets above);

and

the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with

the revenue recognition policies.

Revenue recognition

Upon application of HKFRS 15

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance

obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE =%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Upon application of HKFRS 15 (Cont'd)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as

the Group performs;

the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional

right to consideration.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)

from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract

are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Upon application of HKFRS 15 (Cont'd)

Revenue from sales of properties held for sale in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the legal assignment
is completed, which is the point in time when the purchaser
has the ability to direct the use of the property and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of the property.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold prior
to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under contract

liabilities.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
properties under operating leases, is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant

leases.

Sales of securities investments are recognised on a trade date

basis.

Brokerage income on dealings in securities and futures
contracts is recognised at the point in time when the relevant

contract notes are executed.

Management fee income is recognised in accordance with
terms of respective agreements over the relevant period in

which the services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group's right to receive payment has been established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Upon application of HKFRS 15 (Cont'd)

Revenue from sales of cosmetic products is recognised at the
point in time when goods are delivered and titles have been

passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount at initial recognition.

Prior to 1st January, 2018

Revenue from properties developed for sale is recognised
upon completion of sales agreement and by reference to
the timing of the execution of deed of legal assignment or

delivery of property to the purchaser, whichever is earlier.

Revenue from properties held for sale is recognised on the
execution of a binding sales agreement. Payments received
from the purchasers prior to this stage are recorded as
deposits received on sales of properties and are grouped

under current liabilities.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
properties under operating leases, is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant

leases.

Sale of securities investments are recognised on a trade date

basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_—Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Prior to 1st January, 2018 (Cont'd)

Brokerage income on dealings in securities and futures
contracts and the profit and loss on trade in securities and
futures contracts are recognised on the transaction dates

when the relevant contract notes are executed.

Management fee income is recognised in accordance with
terms of respective agreements over the relevant period in

which the services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group's right to receive payment has been established.

Revenue from sales of cosmetic products is recognised when

goods are delivered and titles have been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE =%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and join venture, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Current and
deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for

the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

(m)

Taxation (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the
entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a

net basis.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of

rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(m)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising from a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case, the exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and will be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the
foreign operation. Exchange differences arising from the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising from the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised

directly in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_—Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(m)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case, the exchange rates at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
translation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is

disposed of.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal of an interest in
a joint venture or involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in the translation reserve
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the

Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences is
reattributed to non-controlling interests and is not recognised
in profit or loss. For partial disposals of associates or joint
venture that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control, the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(0)

(p)

(@)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as expenses when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present

value of those cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(r) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

Q)

@

3

has control or joint control of the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group's parent.

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

Q)

@

3

)

©

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

one entity is an associate or a joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or a joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is

a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE =%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(U]

(s)

Related parties (Cont'd)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Cont'd)

(6) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

(8) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services
or obligations between the Group and a related party,

regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it

will then be recognised as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

®

(u)

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal management reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. Segment assets consist
primarily of investment properties, financial assets and other
assets. Segment liabilities comprise financial liabilities and
other liabilities. The Group evaluates performance on the
basis of profit or loss from operations after tax expense and
non-controlling interests but not including the major non-
cash items. The major non-cash items are unrealised fair
value changes on investment properties and other properties
together with their, if applicable, respective deferred tax. No
intersegment revenue is accounted for as the intersegment
revenue is mainly the rental income for administrative

purpose.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company's shareholders or directors, where

appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE =%

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the management of the Group is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if

the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations, that the management of the Group has made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in these

consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of unquoted financial assets measured at
Fvroci

As described in Note 5(c), the management of the Group uses
its judgments in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The Group's unlisted equity securities with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$1,200,307,000 (2017: HK$1,031,230,000) are
valued using a discounted cash flow analysis and with reference
to the fair values of the underlying properties and assets based
on assumptions supported, where possible, by observable market
prices or rates. The estimation of fair value of these unlisted equity
securities also includes some assumptions not supported by

observable market prices or rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (contd)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Cont'd)
Impairment loss in respect of trade and other receivables

The Group determines the impairment loss in respect of trade and
other receivables based on the ECLs. Impairment loss in respect of
trade receivables is assessed on lifetime ECL while other receivables
is assessed on 12-month ECLs as there had been no significant

increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The policy for impairment loss in respect of trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of accounts and on management's judgment.
A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor. If
the financial conditions of debtors of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their abilities to make payments,

additional allowances may be required.
Fair value of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuations performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based on methods of
valuation which involve certain estimates. In relying on the valuation
reports, the management of the Group has exercised its judgments
and is satisfied that the methods of valuation are reflective of the
current market conditions, as detailed in Note 19. Should there be
any changes in assumptions due to change in market conditions,

the fair value of the investment properties will change in future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year.
Deferred tax assets

As at 31st December, 2018, a deferred tax asset of approximately
HK$2,059,000 (2017: HK$2,521,000) in relation to unused tax
losses has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal
of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the period in

which such a reversal takes place.
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has been
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets in accordance with
the accounting policies stated in Note 3. The recoverable amounts
of CGUs are determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by the management of the Group on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions underlying

the value-in-use calculations.
Write-down of stock of properties

In accordance with the accounting policies as stated in Note 3, the
Group performs regular reviews on the estimated net realisable
values of the stock of properties in order to assess if, when the
estimated net realisable values declining below the corresponding
carrying amounts, any write-down of stock of properties is required.
The management of the Group has taken into account the
prevailing market conditions, valuations or estimated unit selling
price from independent property valuers and internally available
information and exercised considerable judgments in making these

estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4R& Bt 3R &R M &

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 4,

AND ESTIMATES (contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

Impairment loss in respect of investments accounted for

using the equity method

The management of the Group determines whether investments
accounted for using the equity method have suffered any
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable, according to their
recoverable amounts determined by the CGUs based on value-
in-use calculations. The determination of impairment indication
requires significant judgments, and the calculations require the use
of estimates which are subject to change of economic environment

in future.

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

BRI HE REFT @

R THBEEE 2 EZ R (8)

FHUBRE ZARZREZ BEEE

1 1 3 A R A R A PR 2
ZEEETETTRE ARE > &2 ERE
PR (B 5 B DA T 7 2 WA R T
B4 % AT ERE R RE - T
PR B AR B A KT - SRR R B
M EEA AR MR AP

EWMTH

(a) £WIAEH

2018 2017
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Financial assets LREE
Financial assets measured at fair value BBBEIRBRATEFEZ
through profit or loss EREE 6,765,917 10,808,632
Financial assets measured at fair value 33 2 T U A A e e
through other comprehensive income NFEFEZEMEE 21,367,307 24,141,960
Amortised cost AR 2,363,120 2,643,938
Financial liabilities A= =R
Amortised cost BESH AR AR 14,350,602 19,100,426
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE =%

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
investments, bonds, club and corporate debentures, derivative
financial instrument, advances to/from associates/joint
venture/investee companies/non-controlling shareholders,
debtors, deposits and other receivables, securities trading
receivables and deposits, pledged deposits, time deposits,
bank balances and cash, sales proceeds held by stakeholders,
borrowings, loan from a director, creditors and accruals,
securities trading and margin payable and deposits received.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management of the Group manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group's risk exposure
relating to financial instruments or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_—Z

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk

®

Foreign currency risk

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial transactions, and
from recognised assets and liabilities. The functional
currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries in
Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of the transactions
are denominated. The functional currencies of those
subsidiaries operating in the United Kingdom and the
PRC are Pound Sterling ("GBP") and Renminbi ("RMB")
respectively in which most of their transactions are
denominated. The Group is mainly exposed to foreign
exchange risk in respect of exchange fluctuations
of HK$ against GBP and RMB. The conversion of
RMB into other currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the government of the PRC. The Group currently does
not have foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

Assets BE

United States dollar ("US$") i ([%Ex])
GBP £

RMB AR

Euro ("EUR") BT (TRoTl)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE =%

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

0)

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the

end of the reporting period is as follows: (Cont'd)

Liabilities =L
us$ 3
GBP HEE
RMB AR

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currencies. As HK$ is pegged to USY, it is
assumed that there would be no material currency risk
exposure between US$ and HK$ and therefore US$ is

excluded from the sensitivity analysis below.

5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management's assessment of the

reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts
their translations at the end of the reporting period for
a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes external loans as well as loans to/
from foreign operations within the Group where the
denomination of the loan is in a currency other than
the functional currency of the lender or the borrower;
but excluding exposure resulting from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into the

, .
Group's presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)
(1) Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)

Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

A positive number below indicates an increase in profit
where the relevant currencies strengthen 5% against
HK$. For a 5% weakening of the relevant currencies
against HK$, there would be an equal and opposite

impact on the profit.

Impact of -7
GBP HeE
RMB AR
EUR BT

There would be no material impact on the Group's
other components of equity for the years ended 31st
December, 2018 and 2017.

The net effect of the Group's sensitivity to foreign
currency risk was attributable to the Group’s monetary
assets and liabilities with exposure to foreign currency

risk at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE =%

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(i) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has variable-rate interest-bearing assets
and liabilities including advance to an associate, time
deposits, bank balances, sales proceeds held by a
stakeholder and a third party and borrowings and
is therefore exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The Group currently does not have
interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
of the Group monitors interest rate exposure and will

consider hedging significant interest rate exposure

should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR"), London Interbank Offered
Rate (“LIBOR"), prime rate (“Prime") or costs of funds

of financial institutions or a bank.

Sensitivity analysis

The following demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonable possible change in interest rates with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
before tax (through the impact of floating rates in
advance to an associate, time deposits, bank balances,

sales proceeds held by a stakeholder and a third party

and borrowings).

If the floating rates had been 50 basis points

higher/lower,

constant, the Group's profit before tax for the year
ended 31st December, 2018 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$64,582,000 (2017
HK$77,200,000). This was mainly attributable to the

Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate

borrowings.

with all other variables held
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_—Z

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk (Cont'd)

Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

There would be no material impact on the Group's
other components of equity for the years ended 31st
December, 2018 and 2017.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has decreased
during the current year mainly due to the decrease in

net debt carries at variable-rate.

Price risk

The Group's investments classified as financial assets
measured at FVTPL and financial assets measured at
FVTOC!I which are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period and expose the Group to price
risk. At the end of the reporting period, the Group held
investments in certain high yield and fixed-rate bonds.
High vyield bonds are bonds that are typically rated
below investment grade or are unrated and therefore
are generally more vulnerable to economic cycles as
they typically fall more in value than investment grade
bonds given higher default risk and higher investors
risk adversity. For bonds with fixed-rate coupons, they
are more susceptible to fluctuations in interest rates. As
interest rates move upward, the value of the bonds wiill
generally fall. Furthermore, the longer the tenor of the
bonds, the more sensitive they will be to interest rate

changes.

The management of the Group manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles. In addition, the Group has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will consider

hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)
(i) Price risk (Cont'd)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end of the

reporting period.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's
profit before tax for the year ended 31st December,
2018 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$338,296,000 (2017: HK$540,432,000). This was
due to the changes in fair value of financial assets
measured at FVTPL.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's
other components of equity for the year ended
31st December, 2018 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$1,068,365,000 (2017:
HK$1,207,098,000) as a result of the changes in fair

value of financial assets measured at FVTOCI.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31st December, 2018 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group's time deposits and bank balances are deposited with
banks of high credit quality in Hong Kong, Mainland China

and overseas.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group made transactions with counterparties with
acceptable credit quality in conformance to the Group's
treasury policies to minimise credit exposure. Acceptable
credit ratings from reputable credit rating agencies and
scrutiny of financials for non-rated counterparties are two
important criteria in the selection of counterparties. The
credit quality of counterparties will be closely monitored over
the life of the transaction. The Group reviews its financial
counterparties periodically in order to reduce credit risk
concentrations relative to the underlying size and credit

strength of each counterparty.

In an attempt to forestall adverse market movement, the
Group also monitors potential exposures to each financial
institution counterparty. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime ECL provision for trade receivables. To measure the
ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics. The Group has performed historical
analysis and identified the key economic variables impacting
credit risk and ECLs, and also considers the available

reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #Z-ZT—\F+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

As at 31st December, 2018, trade receivables that are
individually significant have been separately assessed for
impairment. The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the background and
reputation of the customers, historical settlement records and

past experience.

For all other receivables, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.

The credit quality of the advances to related parties has been
assessed with reference to historical information about the
default rates and financial position of the counterparties.
The Directors are of the opinion that the credit risk of
the advances to related parties is low due to the current
creditworthiness of the debtors and sound collection history
of the receivables due from them. For the year ended 31st

December, 2018, no provision was made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_—Z

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Investments in bonds are limited to financial institutions or
investment counterparties with high quality. When making
decisions on investments in bonds, the management of
the Group has also made reference to the credit ratings
of the issuers and guarantors (if any) which, however,
are not an assurance as to the issuers’ and/or guarantors’
creditworthiness or the risks, returns or suitability of the
bonds. Risks in particular specific to certain types of bonds
held by the Group are: (i) high yield bonds — they in general
carry high credit risk as they are often subject to higher risk
of issuer default as they are typically rated below investment
grade or are unrated; (ii) perpetual bonds — their coupon
payments may be deferred or suspended subject to the
terms and conditions of the bonds and they are often callable
after a call protection period (related risk is detailed in the
liquidity risk below); and (iii) contingent convertible bonds —
issued by financial institutions that are deeply subordinated in
the capital structure, typically Tier 1 or Tier 2 securities. The
key characteristic of contingent convertible bonds is that the
issuer can either write off the principal amount or convert it
to shares without causing a default on the bond. There could
be a specific hard capital ratio trigger or declaration of non-
viability event by the regulator for the write off or conversion
to equity to happen. The Group may be exposed to a higher
issuer credit risk and may experience substantial losses or
lose the entire value of investment as a result of a trigger
event. Other than the above, there may be additional risks
associated with trading of bonds over-the-counter (“OTC")
because OTC transactions are generally subject to limited
regulation and therefore less transparent in transaction details
such as volume, price formation, etc. There may also be
additional risks for investments located in an emerging market
which may involve certain risks associated with political and
economic uncertainty. In view of the specific risks above, the
Group has appointed the special team as disclosed in Note

5(b)(iii) above to closely monitor the risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong, Europe and Mainland
China. As at 31st December, 2018, the Group was
subject to investment concentration risk as there
were (i) bonds investment with four (2017: three)
issuers with their respective amount of approximately
HK$1,307,142,000, HK$1,271,609,000, HK$1,062,969,000
and HK$688,001,000 (2017: HK$1,808,729,000,
HK$1,427,589,000 and HK$1,080,970,000) presented
as financial assets measured at FVTPL; and (ii) equity
security of a listed company of HK$20,167,000,000 (2017:
HK$23,110,730,000) presented as financial assets measured
at FVTOCI, which represented a major portion of the Group's
investment portfolio as determined by the management of
the Group. Investment concentration risk may materialise
when the market in which those bonds are traded is
constricted (related risk is detailed in liquidity risk below), or
when the fair value of those bonds/that listed equity security
are declined (related risk is detailed in price risk above). The
Group also monitors regularly to avoid over-concentration
(such as investment products and underlying foreign

exchange, etc.) of the investment portfolio.

Liquidity risk

The Group's certain bonds and listed equity securities
were pledged to the financial institutions to secure margin
and securities facilities granted to the Group in respect of
securities transactions. Under adverse market conditions,
the Group may be called by the financial institutions upon
at short notice to make deposits to repay the margin loans.
If the required deposits are not made within the prescribed
time, the Group's securities may be liquidated by the financial

institutions without the Group's consent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_—Z

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Certain bonds held by the Group carried fixed-rate coupon
are accompanied with call rights, the issuers may call and
redeem the bonds early if interest rates fall. The Group may
face reinvestment risk when issuers exercised its right to
redeem the bond before it matures. Besides, some bonds
may not have an active secondary market. In case of the
market in which the bonds are traded is illiquid, the Group
may run the risk of either having to retain the investment
until the end of the term or selling it before maturity at an

unfavourable price.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
bank deposits and cash, monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets

and financial liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by the
management of the Group. Reports with maturity dates
of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity requirement
are provided to the management of the Group for review
periodically. The management of the Group will contact the

bankers for renewals of bank borrowings whenever necessary.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal

cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE =%

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings

Creditors and accruals

Securities trading and margin payable
Amounts due to associates

Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder

Total

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings

Creditors and accruals

Securities trading and margin payable
Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
Loan from a director

Total
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Weighted
average
effective On demand Total Total
interest or within Within 2 to undiscounted carrying
rate 1 year 5 years cash flows amount
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3.32% 9,725,156 4,694,784 14,419,940 13,747,675
- 247,181 - 241181 247,181
- 22,295 - 22,295 22,295
- - 171,619 171,619 171,619
- - 2,111 24,177 2,171
9,994,638 4,890,580 14,885,218 14,212,953
At 31st December, 2017
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Weighted

average
effective On demand Total Total
interest or within Within 2 to Over  undiscounted carrying
rate 1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
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- - 142,419 = 142,419 142,419
- - 49,202 - 49,202 49,202
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In addition to the items as set out in the above liquidity risk

tables, the maximum amount the Group could be required

to settle under financial guarantees provided by the Group

in respect of banking facilities utilised by investee companies
is approximately HK$625,178,000 in aggregate (2017: a

financial guarantee of HK$5,025,000), if such amount is

claimed by the counterparties to the guarantees at any time

within the guaranteed period. Details of the guarantees are

set out in Note 45.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Secured bank borrowing with a repayment on demand clause
is included in the "On demand or within 1 year” time band of
maturity analysis in the above liquidity risk tables. At the end
of the reporting period, the total undiscounted cash flows of
the borrowing amounted to approximately HK$650,307,000
(2017: HK$722,651,000). Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the Directors do not believe that it
is probable that the financial institution will exercise its
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
Directors believe that such borrowing will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates as set out in
the loan agreement, details of which are set out in the tables

below (include both interest and principal cash flows):

Maturity analysis — secured bank borrowing with a repayment

on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

REMBRRME

5. @@ TR ®

(b)

cREREEERREE (E)

RBELEE (&)

MERERERERZBEERRITES
REMBBERERSIEXZEIEBHS T
FEATREXRS—FRIRKEAR -
RBERR - BEZRUBREREREL
BH 4 /650,307,000 7L (ZF —+E4F:
722,651,000/ 7T ) < £ & AL B 2 Bt
B EEALTEEeREESITE
HMEHERARER -EFHE FH
BEBRRBRERBEMSEZBEERE
HEE  EFBEHR TR (EREERNS
kExezHens):

BT — W e B K IE R IRAZ B
FRIRTTIE B A AT EN

At 31st December, 2018
RZB-NE+t=A=t-H
Total Total
Within Within2  undiscounted carrying
1 year to 5 years cash flows amount
AERRE REE
—£R MEERF RELR ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TET
Non-derivative financial liability =~ F#fT£¢REE
Borrowing e 13,829 636,478 650,307 601,279
At 31st December, 2017
RZE—tFTZA=+—-A
Total Total
Within Within 2 undiscounted carrying
1 year to 5 years cash flows amount
KAUBE S FREE
—FR WEZREF MELE FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TEL TEL
Non-derivative financial liability =~ F#fT£¢BEE
Borrowing EE 12,542 710,109 722,651 665,781
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #Z-ZT—\F+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its derivative financial instrument. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross cash
inflows and outflows on the derivative that requires gross
settlement. For cash flows denominated in currency other
than HK$, the prevailing foreign exchange rate at the end of
the reporting period is used to convert the cash flows into
HKS.

Derivative gross settlement METRAZRRAE
Cross currency swap Btk 1

Inflow mA

Outflow i

The Group had no derivative financial instrument as at 31st
December, 2017.

5.

EBT R

b) SHAREEEBRIE (4

RBELEE (&)

TRANAEETESZMTABRTEH
BEZBER TRILDEMTETATER
WHREZ ARBRBSRALR L LR
o BTN ERFEZRSRE %
BEPRERZEXTEZRASREE R
RETTe

At 31st December, 2018
R-E-NF+=-A=+-—H

Total Total
Within undiscounted carrying
1 year cash flows amount
RERRE BRE {8
—FR) hEARE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
THERT THER TR
1,921
1,252,092 1,252,092
(1,247,710) (1,247,710)

R-ZE—+tF+-_A=+—8 ~&£H
WELRITESRBT A

“E-\FFHR EABXEE
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(9

Fair value measurements

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table analysed the financial instruments which
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period

into the three-level hierarchy.

Financial assets

TREE

Listed equity securities presented as
financial assets measured at FVTOC
i BRRE M2 ANEARBATE
FEVEREEC EMRAES

Bonds presented as financial assets
measured at FVTPL

LI ARBRRARRATET B
EREEZES

Unlisted club and corporate debentures
presented as financial assets measured
at FVTPL

R RBBRRARMATEHEY
CREEZHLTRERRAES

Derivative financial instrument presented
as financial assets measured at FVTPL
— Cross currency swap

2 RRBREARRATEHEY
CREEITEERIA
- EhEH

Unlisted equity securities presented as
financial assets measured at FYTOCI
2 ABRAMPENENRBRATE
TEZRRERE I ETRAES

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Fair value
AVE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FEL
20,167,000 23,110,730
6,685,515 10,738,743
78,481 69,889
1,921 -
1,200,307 1,031,230
28,133,224 34,950,592

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

5. @@ TR ®

() AFEFTE

URFEFEZZMTA

Valuation
techniques and
key inputs
RERTR T EHE

Fair value
hierarchy
RNHESRE

Quoted prices in
active markets

REMS B

Quoted prices in
active markets

ERTH BB

Market comparison

EPAAE S

Discounted cash flow
methodology based
on spot and forward

exchange rates and yield

curves of the currency

YREEREL RIS

AR HEER
W g

Discounted cash flow:
forecast distribution,
discount rate and
contract terms (if any)

BRRERE:

Level 3

£=4

BRHzOR BEER

Ak (nF)

Reference to the fair value of
the underlying property
SERBNELLTE

Net asset value (note (i)

BEFE (W)

"

TERARRERARARFEAEZERE
TRZ=ZBOEH -

Significant
unobservable
inputs

EXFUBRLE

N/A
TEA

N/A
TER

N/A
iR

N/A
TER

Forecast distribution taking
into account management's
experience and the estimated
terminal value (note (7))
BEZHRN2RERELS
Rt 2 miBME (M)

Discount rate 24.33% (2017
ranging from 1% below Prime
to 23.20%) (note (7))

BRERUIBE(CT—LF:
NIREENEHIEE23.20
B) (Wsq))

Fair value of the underlying
property based on valuation
model (note (7))

EMEERAERIEENE 2
N (HFEG))

N/A
TER
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

Notes:

(i)  The higher the forecast distribution, estimated terminal
value and fair value of the underlying property, the higher
the fair value. The higher the discount rate, the lower the
fair value.

(i)  The Group has determined that the net asset value
represents the fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of
fair value hierarchy levels as at the date of the events or

changes in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers amongst Level 1, Level 2 and Level
3 in the fair value hierarchy during the years ended 31st
December, 2018 and 2017 and no change in valuation

techniques used in the prior years.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of each
reporting period. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included

in Level 1.

5.

E@MIAE W
(0 ATEINE (S

URFEFEZZHMTA (E)

G2

() TR a2 B BRI
ME 2 AFEEE D FEBE -
REWE AT EBE-

(i) FAEHEEEERBRERRZEEF
BERAFE-

AEBZBERAREHER 2 EZMHIT
mE e AH BRI FEIRZEDN
o

NEEIHREANE—F F_ARE=
BERBEZZT—NFER=ZT—tF
TZA=T—BUEFERTEESEUAR
BRAFEMAZ GERMIEEE-

RERMSZEEZSMTAZAFER
BWEHR 2T IHME - BB N E B
BRR G X5 &L FRAR -
HMERGREERBRSRE BZF
ERBERLEHIZAFEELETZH
B 5 RITIG R AR AR B o AN E FT
REMEEMAZTSHRERBANZE
ANE-HETAEFHAE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5.

(c) Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

The movement during the year in the balances of Level 3 fair

value measurement is as follows:

EBT R

(9

DFEFE (E)

URFEFEZZHMTA (E)

EERATEHBELEBREEE 2D
M

Unlisted equity
securities
presented as
financial assets

measured

at FVTOCI

ElRERHM

2 W R B

AFEFEZ

ERMEEZ

FLETRAES

HK$'000

FA&T

At st January, 2017 RZZE—+F—H—H 882,865

Net return of capital contribution during the year MAFERETEEANFHE (16,205)

Net unrealised gain recognised in other RAF E E Ay 2 I & R

comprehensive income during the year (note) RER W aFEE (M) 164,570

At 31st December, 2017 R-ZT—tF+-A=+—~H 1,031,230
Net unrealised gain recognised in other RN Aty 2 W e R

comprehensive income during the year (note) REIR W T8 (M) 169,077

At 31st December, 2018 R-ZB-NFE+=ZBA=+—H 1,200,307

Note: All of the above gains included in other comprehensive
income for the relevant years related to unlisted equity
securities held at the end of the reporting periods are
reported as changes of financial assets measured at
FVTOCI reserve.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the

Group's financial instruments that are not measured at fair

value approximate to their fair values.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

HEE: BB RIS 2
ABEFEHTABRERERLMEE
Wz 2 Wk B R BB £ 2 T M
HURBATES S22 MEEY
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders of the Company and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of

risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Directors actively and regularly review and manage the Group's
capital structure to maximise the returns to shareholders of the
Company through the optimisation of the debt afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions. The Group's overall

strategy remains unchanged from 2017.

As at 31st December, 2018, the capital structure of the Group
mainly consists of debts, which include borrowings from banks
and other financial institutions, pledged deposits, time deposits,
bank balances and cash, and total equity, comprising issued share
capital, reserves, retained profits and non-controlling interests. The
Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital to monitor its capital structure on the basis of
a gearing ratio. The Group has a target gearing ratio not higher than
50%, determined as the proportion of net debt to equity. This ratio
is expressed by as a percentage of net borrowings over the total
equity. Net borrowings are calculated as total borrowings (as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and

bank balances and pledged deposits.

6.

EAE kg EE

AR BB AR R KT 48 T B dn R RS AR
EEE ANREREZAEXRADSREZDR
BEEREN IRZEBRARBAKEZERSGE
REZBES  URRAKBERERARAIBERS
BIRHE® YARMESAEERENS-

EFERELTHRNRERARE L AAR
B EBIAS B B AR X BB TS RAE
TGt B R BES WA AR R B AR
AFBREF REA 2 B4 - A5 B R 0 5 05 52
ST ERRTE

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—RH AEEZEXK
RETIZHER (BERRTREMSREREZ
fEE) EREFR EHER RTEHLAR
NN A EE AR (BREEBEITRA -

REBEN N IR ERS) K -EEZEER
AR EBBRARB2ER  MZRERERE
HEEEHEARBE AEB2EREAFL
K2 BBETNSR50% 3% (B 765 78 B A 55
Z L DIEETE o ik b R R 73 8 B 5 R S AN 4
SRBZENL -EEFRNREERE (W
FAEMBARMENT) BIR S RIRITAERRIA
RERFHREH -
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6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd) 6. EXEBERE @
The gearing ratios were as follows: BREEELERMNT
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Borrowings — current (note (i)) BE-REME (WEG) 9,303,688 12,763,546
Borrowings — non-current (note (i)) BE-FERBHELE (WE0)) 4,443,987 3,709,467
Loan from a director EEER - 1,835,500
Total debt [ECEEGE] 13,747,675 18,308,513
Less: Cash and bank balances and R e RIRITARRA KR
pledged deposits (note (ii)) HIRF R (P EED) ) (951,970) (922,915)
Net debt B F5E
(total debt less cash and (EBREERE e K
bank balances and pledged deposits) RITHE R IARERFR) 12,795,705 17,385,598
Listed securities investments and EmREEFRER
treasury products (note (i) W& E m (KEEEGI)) 26,852,515 33,849,473
Less: Net debt o ETEFE (12,795,705) (17,385,598)
Net cash e FEE
(listed securities investments and (ETHEFEER
treasury products less net debt) MEEmRESFHE) 14,056,810 16,463,875
Total equity (note (iv)) B 7 fE 2 4B BB (B 3E(Gv) ) 34,143,569 36,493,002
Net debt to equity ratio BB FE MR AN s L
(excluding listed securities (T"EELITEFKRER
investments and treasury products) MEEM) 37.5% 47.6%
Net debt to equity ratio 7% 5 78 B IR AN i 2 b 36 Net cash Net cash
(including listed securities (BHELITEFRER position position
investments and treasury products) MEEM) REFEMRR BEFERR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd)

Notes:
(i)  Borrowings are detailed in Note 35.

(i) Cash and bank balances and pledged deposits comprise time
deposits, bank balances and cash and pledged deposits at the
end of the reporting period.

(i) Listed securities investments and treasury products are detailed in
Notes 26(i) and 27(i).

(iv) Total equity includes issued share capital, reserves, retained
profits and non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting
period.

The decrease in net debt to equity ratio (excluding listed securities
investments and treasury products) was mainly due to the decrease

in net debt.

In relation to brokerage business, Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited,
Fair Eagle Futures Company Limited and Fair Eagle Securities
Company Limited, three wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
are required to maintain financial resources in accordance with
the specified amount requirements that apply to them under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance imposed by Securities and Futures
Commission. The requirements are internally reviewed on a daily
basis and reports are required to submit to Securities and Futures

Commission monthly. Full compliance is observed during the year.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

6.

BEXARARER ®

() EERME3SFL-

(i) PMEBRZHEE MRITHESRAREREF
REREMFR RITEHREASANE
WER-

@iy EHEHFRERMEEMPME260) %
27(@) &t

(v) REBERRZBABDEERRDHETR
AR RN MR RS

BERFRERAERL X (TEELMESFR
BRMEER)ZRLY  TEANEEFER
D PR

MELEBME AR =HA2EEBMEAR
RIREEMBRAR  REHBEFR ARG LK
ERLH5ERAFERBLFNPESTHERZ
BEEMBEMERARESEZZHFRBERIZ
RESHEERMREMBER ZEEKEAH
NEERWETARNES A ESHER
g

ZEEERME - RAFRCEHET -

B E XX EEE N NARSE M B A AL
PNRIMNRBAZ R ZBRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_—Z

7. REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate amounts of sales of properties
held for sale, commission from brokerage, settlement charges from
brokerage, cosmetic goods sold less returns, amounts received and

receivable from property rental income and interest income from

loan financing, are analysed as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers:
Recognised at a point in time
Sales of properties held for sale

Brokerage and cosmetic income

Revenue from other sources:
Property rental income

Interest income from loan financing

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports

reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that are used to

make strategic decisions.

“NET A=+ HILFE

7. WA

WATSERFELEMEZHE KiefBes &
iEHW%Zx% BH KRS
BB ERZERSWANRERRE

5 1& 2 AL an 35

The Group has six reportable segments — (i) property development
and trading; (ii) property leasing for retail; (i) property leasing
for non-retail; (iv) listed equity investments at FVTOCI; (v) listed
investments and treasury products at FVTPL; and (vi) unlisted
investments, investment holding and brokerage. The segmentations
are based on the information about the operation of the Group that

management of the Group uses to make decisions.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

%IJ,%\LBU\Z Axt&E AT
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
HEEAEHZHA:
RE—f 2057
BIELEMEZHEE 273,989 990,106
4D BR TS AL Ak S 8 B WA 25,096 20,748
299,085 1,010,854
H ARz WA
MERES WA 544,533 505,743
ERREEF B A - 58
544,533 505,801
843,618 1,516,655
8. % ‘ yaN *E
ﬁ‘i%iﬁifi '@?&fﬁ% RAEH R BE R
BRI ZHRENETCEENA
AEBBEAANBEAERSIBE-(OVEERK

Ef%(ii);ﬁ’%%%ﬁ C(iNEEEMEME
(iv)i Ei\ﬁﬂ%ﬁu&z AR AT EZ EHR
B -(VEBERARBAFEZ EFHRE
EHEEMURV)FLTRE REZEBER
R DB A TVERANEE 2 28
BHUARRNEEEEEBFELRR A -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

PR R M

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #Z-ZT—\F+_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Principal activities are as follows:

Property development
and trading
Property leasing
— Retail

— Non-retail

Listed equity investments
at FVTOCI

Listed investments and
treasury products
at FVTPL

Unlisted investments,

investment holding

Property development and sales

of trading properties

Property leasing from retail
properties

Property leasing from non-retail
properties

Listed equity securities at FVTOCI

Listed securities investments in
investments held-for-trading,
OTC trading and structured
products

Unlisted securities investments,

trading and brokerage

ITBEHEHNT
MEBHRLESR MEEZERIESR
ES
MERE
—-ZE KETEMEHEE
—#TE KEFTEME
HE
BREMEEK S BEHEMEEKE
ARBR A FEZ AR AFEZ
EHRRARE LR ARE
EREEE PN TS REBEEREZ L™
NFEZ LT BEHERE BN
BRENVEER K AERE I
2
FLETHRE KE FELETRAHRE
78 B % A AT AR TS BE MR

and brokerage

The Group evaluates performance on the basis of profit or loss from
operations after tax expense and non-controlling interests but not
including the major non-cash items. The major non-cash items are
unrealised fair value changes on investment properties and other
properties together with their, if applicable, respective deferred tax.
No intersegment revenue is accounted for as the intersegment

revenue is mainly the rental income for administrative purpose.

Unallocated corporate assets mainly comprised leasehold land and
building for own use, advance to a non-controlling shareholder,
deferred tax assets, tax recoverable and derivative financial

instrument.

Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly comprised tax liabilities,
bank borrowings, amounts due to associates, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders and deferred tax liabilities (2017: also

included loan from a director).

AEBAMBRHIAR X MOFERERE KA
ReEzBED ETERIENRESCER)RE
BERT - T E2FRSHB RREMERE
WHEZARERRAFESZHEREMEZE
ERIE (ER) - RO BHZBRATER
MITHR B B 2B WA - E I #4525 $8 1 2
WANER

Aoz RAREETEZREERZEE L
KRBT - B SE IR AR R BIR R IR
BE AIREHRFRARTESRIA -

FOVaR /N %%Ig@%ﬁﬁ%%‘ﬁﬂ?ﬂﬁ
- RamEna %KIE R A FEE AR R K
MELEHHEEB(ZZE—+F: B8 %é%fﬁ
) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

The Group's measurement methods used to determine reported

segment profit or loss remain unchanged from 2017.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that
operate different activities. They are managed separately because
each business unit has different markets and requires different

marketing strategies.

Further, the business units are also managed to operate in different
countries separately. Revenue and results are attributed to countries

on the basis of the property or asset location.

There were two (2017: three) major customers who individually
accounted for 109% or more of the Group's revenue. Revenue of
approximately HK$273,989,000 was derived from a customer in
property development and trading segment in Hong Kong and
revenue of approximately HK$183,303,000 was derived from a
customer in non-retail property leasing segment in the United
Kingdom (2017: HK$321,160,000 and HK$186,620,000 were
derived from each of the two customers in property development
and trading segment in Hong Kong and HK$175,744,000 was
derived from a customer in non-retail property leasing segment in
the United Kingdom).

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

REMBRRME

SEDE @

AEEAEETESRHBREIHESR
e e = F

AEBAIERVBREETREH ZREEE
BET - ARSEBELHATATS BE
KRS R MREZERIERE -

AN EBETTRAIAERZ BRI EEE
2o ZBRIEWAREENRMEREEME
HmERE-

M (ZE—+F =) FTEFZF ZERIK
AEREBERA Z10%FH A Fe—fIREF
EMEERRREEDEZREPIEE ZIRA
#4)/5273,989,000/8 70 LA K — IR B8 EEH I
TEMEREDBE2EPMEEZRALN A
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Operating segment information is presented below:

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31st December, 2018

Major cash items excluding
in revenue
- Hong Kong
- Other countries

Revenue

Revenue from external customers
- Hong Kong
~ United Kingdom

Revenue from external customers
after non-controlling interests
Attributable property sales from
associates/investee company
- Hong Kong
Attributable rental revenue from
associates/joint venture/investee
company
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China

Result

Segment result
- Hong Kong
- United Kingdom
- Mainland China
- Other countries

DAY

EE

w00 )

LESREMZIWT:

FEETHKWBER
BE—F-NF1+ZA=1+—HALFE
Listed Unlisted
Property leasing Listed  investments investments,
Property ERE equity and treasury  investment
development investments products  holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FvToCl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BRER
BREMRE MR
g R B NVEZ  KLTRE
NERER APEZET LTRER  REEBRK &
E® 2E *EE RERE HEER BLRY HEtAR =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TER TR TER TER TR
WA Z
TERSER
&% - - - - 4,931,129 - - 4,931,129
—EfER - - - - 443,255 - - 443,255
- - - - 5,380,984 - - 5,380,984
'O
RENDEPZWA
) 273,989 42,886 139,203 - - 14,073 11,023 481,174
= - 36,241 326,203 - - - - 362,444
273,989 19,127 465,406 - - 14,073 11,023 843,618
REMMRIEERERR
LINBEERA 191,792 19,127 465,403 - - 14,073 11,023 761,418
EEBENF/BR
RARAYEHE
-E# 18,993 - - - - - - 78,993
EEBENF/AE
N/ BRRERR
EELION
-E% - 20,408 45,840 - - - - 66,248
~PEAR - 64,153 8,894 - - - - 73,041
210,185 163,688 520,137 - - 14,073 11,023 979,706
PREHR
&% 231,13 37,281 133,255 1,107,228 (289,080) 26,380 19,454 1,266,231
- - 35,052 321,114 - - 81 - 356,853
~PE AR - - - - - 2,891 - 2,891
~EtER - - - - (350,734) - - (350,734)
231,13 12,333 454,969 1,107,228 (639,814) 29,358 19,454 1,275,241
—E-N\EFER  zAExzE 179
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8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd)
For the year ended 31st December, 2018

Share of results of investments
accounted for using the equity
method
- Attributable property sales, net
- Hong Kong

- Attributable gross income
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China

- Attributable operating cost
- Hong Kong
~ Mainland China

Non-controlling interests

Finance costs

Other gains and losses, net

Share of results of investments
accounted for using the equity
method
- Income tax and others

Unallocated items
Unallocated corporate expenses, net

Unallocated finance costs
Income tax expense
Unallocated non-controlling interests

Operating profit for the year
attributable to owners
of the Company
Major non-cash items
- Unrealised fair value changes on
investment properties (including
share of results of investments
accounted for using the equity
method)
- Deferred tax credit

Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Core profit for the year
attributable to owners of
the Company

Bl EREAR
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REEHETE
5%
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%
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8. EESTE
FErTHBHERR (B
BE—F-\F1+ZA=1—HALFE

Listed Unlisted

Property leasing Listed  investments investments,

Property NEHE equity and treasury  investment

development investments products  holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail at Fvtocl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BREMZE BUR B
g R B AVEZ  FLTRE
NEBRER DFEZET  LTRER  REERK i)

E® 28 *EE RERE HEER BLRH Egupk] g4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERL TR TR TR TER TR TR
3,851 - - - - - - 3,857
- 19,574 44,821 - - - 2221 66,622
- 64,153 8,894 - - - - 13,047
- (105) (8,585) - - - - (9.290)
- (26,572) (2,830) - - - - (29,402)
(52,310) - ) - - - - (52,313)
183,260 128,783 497,266 1,107,228 (639,814) 29,358 21,681 1,321,762
- - - (115,650) (10,980) - - (186,630)
(2,549) - - - - - - (2,549)
(1,038) (36,858) (8,026) - - - (502) (a6,424)
179,673 91,925 489,240 991,578 (710,794) 29,358 21,179 1,092,159
(95,401)
(158,360)
(121,847)
1190
nsu
296,143
806
1,015,290
718,341
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Contd) 8. EENE
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position SGERBKRRBER
At 31st December, 2018 R-E-NF+=-F=+—H

Listed Unlisted

Property leasing Listed investments investments,
Property NEHE equity andtreasury  investment
development investments products  holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail at Fvtocl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BREMZE HRB
LE-DYTA RPEZ  KFLTRE
NERER DFEZET  LHRER  REERR FiE
E® 28 *EE RiRg HEER SRR At AR &8

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TR FER

Assets 43
Segment assets PREE
- Hong Kong -EB 1,651,525 1,948,679 5,253,665 20,167,010 5,499,322 420,325 16,278 35,016,804
- United Kingdom ~ 5B - 1,632,210 7,433,806 - - - - 9,066,016
- Mainland China -hEAE 267,880 - 29,045 - - 6,821 - 303,746
- Other countries -EEX - - - - 1,272,109 493,267 - 1,765,376
Investments accounted for using IERENE RE
the equity method
- Hong Kong -& 68,750 424,507 1,582,710 - - 2,161 6,549 2,084,683
- Mainland China ~RE AR - 141,553 49,941 - - - - 191,494
Advances 10 associates and ARBERE R
a joint venture BERARE
- Hong Kong & 1,000 - 154,306 - - 2 1,160 156,468
- Mainland China ~PEAR - 34,51 12,258 - - - - 47,009
Reportable segment assets NERSEARE 1,989,155 4,181,700 14515731 20,167,010 6,771,431 922,582 83,987 48,631,596
Unallocated corporate assets RPEZARARE 59,107
Consolidated total assets GREELE 48,690,703
Liabilities =
Segment liabiities SHREE
- Hong Kong & 165,431 20,593 69,688 3,809,914 3,091,361 35,868 8,452 1.201,307
- United Kingdom -% - 16,464 167234 - - - - 183,698
- Mainland China -HEAE 718 - 3 - - 7 - 816
- Other countries —EER - - - - 432,759 9 - 432,768
Reportable segment liabilfes AZHAEEE 166,209 37,057 236953 3809914 3,524,120 35,884 8452 7818589
Unallocated corporate liabilites RABINAEE 6,128,545
Consolidated total liabilities GRRBELE 14,547,134
Additions to non-current assets  FHEEERE
(other than financial instruments (&BIEREE
and deferred tax assets) HEEERD) - - 2224 - - 40 16

"
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Other Material Items

For the year ended 31st December, 2018

Interest income
Finance costs

Net income (expense)

Depreciation

Fair value changes on investment
properties

Write-down of stock of properties

Share of results of investments
accounted for using the equity method

Income tax (expense) credit

Non-controlling interests

8. &

AY

Eo¥E @

HibEKRIEHHE

BE-_FE—/\F+-A=+—HIFE

Adjustments Adjustments  Consolidated

for for major  statement of

Reportable unallocated non-cash comprehensive

segments items items income

28 TEFRSE REZH

EES: ¥k HEZBRE HEZRE Ut €S

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TER TR TiEn

MBMA 673,317 - - 673,317

HEER (186,630) (158,360) - (344,990)

WA (%) F8 486,687 (158,360) - 328,327

& - (6,306) - (6.806)
BRENELATEED

- - 122,301 122,301

MEFREZAE (2,549) - - (2,549)
BEARREARRE

S 58,410 - 173,842 232,252

P M ()& E - (127,847) 806 (127,041)

FEBES (52,313) 7,790 - (44,523)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 &%= —

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 3 1st December, 2017

Major cash items excluding
in revenue
- Hong Kong
- Other countries

Revenue

Revenue from external customers
- Hong Kong
- United Kingdom
- Mainland China

Revenue from external customers
after non-controlling interests

Attributable property sales from
associates/investee company
- Hong Kong

Attributable rental revenue from
associates/investee company
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China

Result

Segment result
- Hong Kong
- United Kingdom
- Mainland China
- Other countries

Share of results of investments
accounted for using the equity
method
- Attributable property sales, net
~ Hong Kong

- Attributable gross income
~ Hong Kong
- Mainland China

- Attributable operating cost
~ Hong Kong
- Mainland China

Non-controlling interests
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& Bt 3R &R M 5

—N\EFE+ZA=+—HILFE

s N * o
8. EESTH W
FETERBRR
BE—F—+F+_H=1—HIFE
Listed Unlisted
Property leasing Listed investments  investments,
Property NERE equity  and treasury investment
development investments products holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FVT0CI at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BBRE
BBAMEE JARER )
W A N¥EZ  FLWRA
%%é’i‘ﬁé N¥EZEW  LWRER  RABERR iR
BE TE FTE RA%E BEER BB Efn g g4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TET TAT TETL TET TER TET TET
- - - - 9,150,032 - - 9,150,032
- - - - 1,172,645 - - 1,172,645
- - - - 10322,677 - - 10322,677
990,106 49293 132,878 - - 10516 10,290 1,193,083
- 35,053 285,597 - - - - 320650
- 2922 - - - - - 2922
990,106 87268 418,475 - - 10516 10,290 1,516,655
752,590 86,474 418,162 - - 10516 10,290 1,278,032
134,637 - - - - - - 134,637
- 19,996 33,868 - - - - 53,864
- 78,969 9,626 - - - - 88,595
887227 185,439 461,656 - - 10516 10,290 1,555,128
467611 44,043 130,819 164,110 1,567,666 18,221 21,151 2,413,621
- 34,031 280,018 - - 4 - 314,090
- 2,630 - - - 1,958 - 4588
- - - - 183,850 792 - 184,642
467611 80,704 410,837 164,110 1751516 21,012 21,151 2916941
87736 - - - - - - 87736
- 19,184 32,636 - - - 2276 54,096
- 78,969 9,626 - - - - 88,595
- 917) (7641) - - - - (8558)
- (31,382) (2781) - - - - (34,163)
(101,129) (640) (256) - - - - (102,025)
454218 145918 442,421 164,110 1,751,516 21012 23427 3,002,622
“E-\FFHR EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd) FEZEWRERE (B
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 Bz —F—+F+-_A=1+—HIFFEZ
Listed Unlisted
Property leasing Listed investments investments,
Property w3 equity  and treasury investment
development investments products holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retai at FVT0CI at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BBRE
BREMEE SARER
W A R R¥Ez  FLTRA-
NELER DTEZES  EHRER REAERR iR
E® g #TE A& HEER BRI Bt ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn ThR TEL TER Thn FEL TER Thr
Other income -0 ON 14,725 - - - - - - 14725
Finance costs - - - (86,287) (104,358) - - (190,645)
Other gains and losses, net BRFE (3,830) - - - - - - (3,830)
Share of results of investments ol NS
accounted for using the equity REZ¥E
method
- Income tax and others —-EHREM (9238) (40,709) (31311) - - - (47) (81,735)
Income tax expense R - - - (16,302) - - - (16302)
455,875 105,209 411,110 61,521 1,647,158 21,012 22,950 2,724,835
Unallocated items ROBIER
Unallocated corporate expenses, net kA% 2 AEIHX
e (178,115)
Unallocated finance costs KOEHBER (104,528)
Imputed interest income from ERRER BFEL
deferred consideration receivables ZAZFBYA 712,584
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR 2 K 144,126
Unallocated income tax expense FOBLFEHAX (308,640)
Unallocated non-controlling interests & 7% 2 FE BB 12278
Operating profit for the year RAREE AR
attributable to owners REEZEERR
of the Company 3,062,540
Major non-cash items TEHRSER
- Unrealised fair value changes o~ —~ &M% 2 KEH
investment properties (Including ATEZE (B
share of results of investments BEABREAR
accounted for using the equity REZEE)
method) 648,453
- Deferred tax expense -EERBERY (2,107)
Profit for the year attributable to 72 7 %H A (5
owners of the Company REE 2T 3,708,886
Core profit (excluding major BLER (FEEXES
non-cash items) BeER)
Operating profit for the year ARRERAERE
attributable to owners REE 2 BERT
of the Company 3,062,540
Major accumulated realised fair  RAEEHEREY
value changes together with ERNEFEZE
their respective deferred tax ZERCARLY
on disposals of investment ERHERLAN
properties and stock of ZBEE (BF
properties in current year BERARNEERR
(including fair value changes BZATEEE)
recognised in properties BB EERER
revaluation reserve) after #
non-controlling interest
~ Recognised in prior years -RBRFRERR 336,182
Core profit for the year RAREE AR
attributable to owners REEZBOER
of the Company
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& Bt 3R &R M 5
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

gt Y2 3 B
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. BESEw
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position FEMBERRBER
At 31st December, 2017 Ro-FE—+FF+-H=4+—H
Listed Unlisted
Property leasing Listgd investments inlvestments,
Property nEmRE equty  and treasury investment
development - investments poducts  holding and All other
and trading Retal Non-retail at Fv1oCl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
RpER
BREMEE ARB
W DA AEZ  FLETRE
NEERR AVEzZET  LWRER REBRR i
R £ ¥TE RAKE HEER FEE KA fa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T TiEn TET T TiEn THEr T
Assets gE
Segment assets AREE
- Hong Kong -E% 1527289 2113870 4765802 23110731 8,683,598 489,120 67742 40758192
- United Kingdom ~HE = 1,684,765 8,174,205 - - - - 9,858,970
~ Mainland China —REARE 216,054 - 29510 - - 2,967 6,023 254,554
- Other countries ~HER - - - - 2,286,336 690,927 - 2,977,263
Investments accounted for using NEREAEZRE
the equity method
- Hong Kong -E% 100,367 396,709 1408461 - - 2322 7404 1,915,263
- Mainland China —hEAE - 140,367 59,598 - - - - 199,965
Advances to associates BRBEARE
- Hong Kong -&# 1,047 - 77 - - 2 1,151 2271
~ Mainland China —hEKE - 32,937 13,985 - - - - 46922
Reportable segment assets AE2RHEEE 1,844,757 4,368,648 14,451,678 23,110,731 10,969,934 1,185,338 82,320 56,013,406
Unallocated corporate assets FABLNAEE 49949
Consolidated total assets SREELEE 56,063,355
Liabilities &%
Segment liabiliies AREE
- Hong Kong -EE 266,001 21705 74995 4604773 4,602,587 119,839 6552 9,696,452
- United Kingdom ~HE - 15,759 194,798 - - - - 210,557
~ Mainland China —thEKE 407 - 17 - - 5 80 509
- Other countries -HHER - - 14 - 669,469 1 - 669,494
Reportable segment liabilies BEE DT 266,408 37464 269,824 4604773 5,272,056 119,855 6632 10577012
Unallocated corporate liabilities x- PANGIE-L 8,993,341
Consolidated total liabilties GREREE 19,570,353
Additions to non-current assets ~ FREBEERE
(other than financial instruments  ($HIAREL
and deferred tax assets) REZERM) - 1424 1,783,806 - - 30 855
—z-N\EEH FAEx£E 185
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4R& Bt 3R &R M &
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EBIBmwm
Other Material Items HithE KEH
For the year ended 31st December, 2017 Bz —F—+F+-_A=1+—HIFFEZ
Adjustments Adjustments Consolidated
for for major statement of
Reportable unallocated non-cash  comprehensive
segments items items income
AOB TEHERS R
RS ERZAE HEZRE W mK
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FET TEL TEL

Interest income FEKA 919,110 772,584 - 1,691,694

Finance costs HBER (190,645) (104,528) - (295,173)

Net income LON: 728,465 668,056 - 1,396,521

Depreciation nE - (8,680) - (8,680)

Fair value changes on investment properties &% 2 AT EEE) - - 564,502 564,502

Write-down of stock of properties MEFEZAE (3,830) - - (3,830)

Share of results of investments BENBRENRRE

accounted for using the equity method ZEE 105,971 - 83,951 189,922
Income tax expense ERAX (16,302) (308,640) (2,107) (327,049)
Non-controlling interests R (102,025) 12,278 - (89,747)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=

OTHER INCOME

Included in other income are:

Building management fee income

Building management fee expenses

Rental services income

Property management services,
leasing administration services and
property administration services income

Advisory and consultancy services income

Asset management and maintenance services
income

Consultancy fee income

Exchange gain, net

Reversal of impairment in respect of
other receivable and interest thereon
of approximately HK$39,941,000
(2017: HK$2,055,000)

Forfeiture of deposits received on sales of

stock of properties

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

9. HtW A
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
H U A B
BFEEBRA 35,086 34,675
EFERBMY (19,037) (16,700)
16,049 17,975
AERBEUA 6,693 11,681
MEEERE -
MBTHRRE R
YT BURTS YA 29,797 52,208
R M E R AR YA 37 46
BEERERREREWA
5 973
B ERA 14,766 12,073
[E 5 U 58 4,301 11,847
¢ O] H Ath fEURBRTB 2 BB R
AR E.4939,941,000/8 7T
(ZZF—+%:2,055000/7T)
89,186 4,687
RIBHEMEGFTERS
- 14,725
—E-\EFR  EABEEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

10. INVESTMENT INCOME, NET 10. REWAFEE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Financial assets measured at fair value BBBRURBRATFEHEZ
through profit or loss: TREE
Unrealised (loss) gain arising from change BEFZ A FEZSmMEEZ
in fair value of bonds AEIR (B8 K= (1,255,094) 600,296
Realised (loss) gain arising from change BEHECATFEEHMEEZ
in fair value of bonds EER (e ks
— Change in fair value —NFEEE (24,721) 179,505
— Exchange component of change — & 5 &5 g 4,593 47,488
Net (loss) gain arising from change in fair value BEFEZ A FEZSGMEEZ
of bonds (B8 =58 (1,275,222) 827,289
Unrealised gain arising from change in fair value =~ @f#RARIESF 2 AFEEES
of club and corporate debentures, net MEE 2z REF W FRE 8,592 7,082
Unrealised gain arising from change in fair value ~ $T4SBTAZ AFEEH
of derivative financial instrument MmEEz RERKE 1,921 -
Other investment income, net HEAaiE WA FRE 12,450 14,370
Dividends income on: REWAZKR :
Listed investment EWEE 1,106,820 163,018
Unlisted investments JFELETIRE 54,750 1,092
Interest income LB A 632,691 1,688,857
542,002 2,701,708

Interest income mainly included interest income from bonds of
approximately HK$623,366,000 (2017: interest income from
bonds of HK$910,949,000 and imputed interest income from
deferred consideration receivables of HK$772,584,000 of which
HK$631,402,000 was arose from repayment of the deferred

consideration receivables before their respective maturity dates).

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BBEA
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
FER FA&T
Interest on: B
Bank borrowings RITIEE 146,250 96,362
Other borrowings HEEE 196,106 138,409
Total interest (Note 42) 24858 (FiEt42) 342,356 234771
Exchange (gain) loss on translation of foreign ~ SMNEIRIT R EMEE 2B K
currency bank and other borrowings, net (U ) Bs 1B F 58 (6,926) 52,236
Other finance costs HEM%ER 9,560 8,306
344,990 295,313
Less: Interest capitalised to stock of properties i : B FE & {E R & 2 B R T
under development held for sale MEFEERLZHE = (140)
344,990 295,173
During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group had REZE-Z—+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE K
capitalised borrowing costs at a rate of 2.58% per annum EEERFNE2SBEFEERAEREESR
amounting to HK$140,000 on qualifying assets. b 2 BB KA 75140,00078 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

12. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

Included in other gains and losses, net are:

REMBRRME

12. EtR B R EEFEEE

Hil s MBS IEFHEERE

Write-down of stock of properties MEFEZME
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QR Z U

— Pinecrest Group (note (i) —Pinecrests& & (MH5E@) )
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWEB QR Z W

— Win Kings Group (note (ii))

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

-U

Notes:

(i)

(iif)

nion Wings (note (iii))

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries arose from the disposal of the
Group's entire issued share capital of Pinecrest International
Limited (“Pinecrest”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively “Pinecrest Group")
("Pinecrest Disposal”) on 10th February, 2017. At the time
of disposal, the Pinecrest Group held certain shops of Lowu
Commercial Plaza located in Shenzhen, the PRC. Details of the
Pinecrest Disposal are set out in Note 39(a).

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries arose from the disposal of
the Group's entire issued share capital of Win Kings Holding
Ltd. ("Win Kings"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and its subsidiary (collectively “Win Kings Group”)
("Win Kings Disposal”) on 10th February, 2017. At the time of
disposal, the Win Kings Group held a property development
situated at No. 12 Shiu Fai Terrace, Mid-Levels East, Hong Kong.
Details of the Win Kings Disposal are set out in Note 39(b).

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary arose from the disposal of the
Group's entire issued share capital of Union Wings Investments
Limited (“Union Wings"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (“Union Wings Disposal”) on 24th July, 2017. At
the time of disposal, Union Wings held a vehicle registration mark
registered in Hong Kong. Details of the Union Wings Disposal are
set out in Note 39(d).
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—Win Kings&e 3 (B 3£ (i) )
HE— R B AR Z s
—iR& (M)

P& -

0]

(i)

(iif)

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(2.549) (3,830)

- 114,368

- 28,958

- 800

HEKMBARZEKZIRARZZE
—+tFZ A+ B8 HEREBERPinecrest
International Limited ([Pinecrest]) (&2
Al —HHE2EHBEHBAR) 22F
BEITRARENE AR (475 [Pinecrest
SE]) ([Pinecresti &) - R H &
Pinecrest [E#5 A iz 1A F BRI T 28 7 %
Y T R4  Pinecrestth & 2 s 15 &5 R K
#39(a) °

HEHMBARZWRIRER T —LF
ZA+HHEREERWIN Kings Holding
Ltd. ([Win Kings 1) (&RRA Rz —fEfEE 2
EHENBRAR 22 HBEBITRARE
M E 2B (5% [Win Kings&e®]) ([Win
KingstH & 1) o A I &8 - Win Kings%e B #
BUREEFILRRBEEZ 2R 2 ME
FRIEE - Win Kingstt & 2 #1535 A M
£39(b) °

HE-—HBARZEkEzIRER -F
—tEEA-THREEAEERERE
BERAR([ER]) (ARAz—HEH
ExERBEMBAR) 2B BHITRA
(MEEHE]) - RHER  ZREHE AR
EEERZEMECRB - BREEZF
TBEF R FE39(d) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The charge comprises: X
Current tax: EHNE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBENEH
Other than Hong Kong EH B LA R

Underprovision (overprovision) in prior years:

Hong Kong Profits Tax EBENED

Other than Hong Kong &8 LASM R
Deferred tax: (Note 29) RAETIE

Current year charge REFEZH

For the year ended 31st December, 2017, Hong Kong Profits Tax
was calculated at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits. On
21st March, 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (“Bill") which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28th March, 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%. The PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the PRC subsidiaries are
calculated at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 25% (2017:
250%0). Taxation arising from other jurisdictions is calculated at the

rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

(B 5E29)

13. iBHEAX

BEFEREBN R (BEREE)

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
73,155 234,131
46,938 73,382
120,093 307,513
4,644 (288)
(2,297) 6,774
2,347 6,486
4,601 13,050
127,041 327,049

HE-_Z—+tF+-_A=Z+BLEE BB
RIS FE T AR R A 51 FE AR B 0 T 4= T % 16.5%5
E-RN-_ZT—NFE=ZA-_+—HB BELZEE
BB T —HFRB (BT (B75%) B0
BR) (HEPIEZR]) » 5| AFIF R R o 15
PIERR - N\F=A=ZF\BEEXEE
B URBATE-REMNESHMAES 64
1% 5 @ F 2 #2,000,0005 7T 2 % B 15 4% B R
8.25% Rt » T AR 3E2,000,0007% 7T 2 i F 8 1%
TE16.50RH - A HFEMERMAH 2 £ E
BB 25 G IR T — B K 16.5%:R Bl o P
BT E A 2 RS EMERER B EA
1B E2500 (=T —+H4F 1 25% ) 5T & o H A
FREREECMBIIZEERERR ZHRITH
KErHE -

“E-\FFHR EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (contd) 13. AR @
The income tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit REEZZ ISP HEEES 2ERERET R
before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive MR N B RRA T

income as follows:

2018 2017
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TER FHET

Profit before tax R A5 A 1,186,854 4,125,682
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REBFEHTE165%

of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (ZB—+%:1650%)

AEZHRR 195,831 16.5 680,738 165

Tax effect of share of results of BEUEREARREZ

investments accounted for using EEIHBYE

the equity method (38,322) (3.2) (31,337) (0.8)
Tax effect of income not taxable RBBEmE BARTBAZ

for tax purposes BBTE (322,110) (21.1) (391,068) (95)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible RBBEME AR E 2

for tax purposes BB E 274,768 23.1 61,881 15
Tax effect on accelerated accounting BEBEREZ MRS

depreciation over tax depreciation nERBNBHEL

previously over provided b %= 913 0.1 2,201 0.1
Utilisation of tax losses previously ERAEARERZRWBER

not recognised (3,527) (0.3) (24,275) (0.6)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERZHBEREIBEYE 8,931 0.7 37110 0.9
Underprovision in prior years BAEFEREDR 2,347 0.2 6,486 0.2
Effect of different tax rates of TEMAEEREE 2

subsidiaries operating MBRRERZ

in other jurisdictions TAREzEE 8,210 0.7 (14,687) (0.4)
Tax charge for the year AERBEXH 127,041 10.7 327,049 79
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after (charging) crediting:

Total staff costs:
Staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments
Retirement benefit scheme contributions,
net of forfeited contributions of
approximately HK$716,000
(2017: HK$213,000)

Auditors’ remuneration:
Auditors of the Company
— Current year
Other auditors
— Current year
— (Underprovision) overprovision
in prior years
Depreciation
Cost of trading properties recognised
Cost of cosmetic products recognised

Share of tax of associates
Share of tax of a joint venture

Share of tax of investments accounted for
using the equity method (included in share
of results of investments accounted
for using the equity method)

Gross rental income from investment properties & & ¥ ¥ & A 25
Less: Direct operating expenses from investment5 : A FEEEH WA Z

properties that generated rental
income during the year

Direct operating expenses from investment
properties that did not generate rental

income during the year

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
trade receivables, net

Reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of other receivables, net

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

14. KEE &R

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
REZHEMD (FB)FFA:
BB R4
BERE (BEEFHE) (137,909) (170,862)
RIKER R IR BRI
3K 4716,000% 7T
—T—+£4:213,000%7T)
(7,734) (9,817)
(145,643) (180,679)
ZEAE S -
NN R % 2 4
—REFE (2,014) (2,050)
H fth iz E AT
—KFE (542) (467)
—BEFE (BETRE)
BRI (27) 122
e (6.806) (8,680)
BEEMEKATER (71,064) (420,044)
b @K AN TR (4,355) (3,625)
B nEE AeTIE (9,535) (49,600)
Bh—MEERRFE (628) -
B REARIRE 2 HIE
(et ABE AR E AR
BEZHEE)
(10,163) (49,600)
544,533 505,743
REMERRLERE
(14,197) (11,182)
REETHEEERSRAZ
BREMEERLERE
(3.034) (3,020)
527,302 491,541
PEWE ZRIBERR ZRE
BB (6) (364)
LE fh B IR AR TE R B B HE R
WEEEFE 48,998 2,500
“T-)\EFEHR EABEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Fees and other emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine

15. EEM <

ENSENTFAR (ZE—tF: NBEFS

(2017: nine) Directors were as follows: BzHE REMMESMT:
2018 2017
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefit Salaries benefit
and other scheme and other scheme
Fee emoluments contributions Total Fee  emoluments  contributions Total
§tR BHREF ek RIRER
he Hitie BE S g ik HE@e FHEER aE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THL TEL TAL TAL

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai fBERE 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan Ris@at - 1,500 120 1,620 - 1,500 120 1620
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (note) RSLEZ L (M) - 100 5 105 - 88 5 93
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan ReEBaT - 674 3 n1 - 674 40 714
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai WrEEE - 2,798 01 3,019 - 2,791 210 3,001
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai  2IEEZE 240 - - 240 240 - - 240
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai REIELE 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
Ms. Phills Loh, Laiping ~ BES &L 300 - - 300 300 - - 300
M. Ma, Tsz-chun ERELE 300 - - 300 300 - - 300

1,440 5,072 389 6,901 1440 5,053 375 6,868

Note: Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan was appointed as executive Director with
effect from 13th February, 2017.

No Directors waived any emoluments for the years ended 31st
December, 2018 and 2017.

Details of material interests of the Directors in transactions,
arrangements or contracts entered into by subsidiaries of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Report” of

this annual report.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, one (2017: one) was a Director, details of his
emolument were included in Note 15. The emoluments of

the remaining four (2017: four) individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits

B
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R /K48 F 51 2 £t 7%

The emoluments of the four (2017: four) individuals were

within the following bands:

16. EEM &
(@) EZEERESHFMAL

FEFBLERSMEALH —H (28
—tEF: —R)REF RZHMEHRBE
NS c KA (ZF—1%F: 1
) EMALTZHEWT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
9,293 9,325
713 664
10,006 9,989

ZHE(ZE—+F OB EAMALZ
AR UM

Number of employees

BE AR
2018 2017
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T 3 3
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T — 3,000,000/ 7T = -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T — 3,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T — 4,000,000/ 7T 1 -

During the years ended 31st December, 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, or Directors, as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Emoluments of senior management

The emoluments of all (2017: two) senior management
with their profiles included in the section headed “Profiles of
Senior Executives” of this annual report, have been disclosed
in the five highest paid individuals (Note 16(a)) (2017: the
emolument of the remaining one senior management was
within the band of HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000).

(b)

REEZE-N\FER=ZT—+tF+=A
=+—BLEFERN RERBELSRS
DA 5 [ 57 00 A A 58 [ 65 ok 1 A B
BEEmMAZAEESTMALTNES
AT EME S -

BREEEBZHME

BREAFR (ERTBRABHEN] —&
Rz2B(ZT—LF ME)aRER
BrHEMERAEZESHMA LT (HE
16(a) ) NERE (ZE—tF Fsr—fs
RERE 2 ML 18E 41,500,001 FTE
2,000,000/ 7T ) °

“E-\FFHR EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

17. DIVIDENDS 17. BE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FiET
(@) Final dividend for 2017 paid on 6th June, (@ RZE-N\FAASBERFNZ
2018 of HK10 cents (2016: HK1 cent) ZE - FREAREFRI0EL
per share (ZZ—RF : §RIEM) 190,762 19,076
(b) Interim dividend for 2018 paid on b) RZE-NFALATELABERNZ
17th September, 2018 of HK1 cent ZE-N\FREBRSERIEIL
(2017: HK20 cents) per share (ZZ—t5F: 5R20E) 19,076 381,524
(c) Special interim dividends for 2016 of (0 RZE—+F-_A+HBERNZ
HK$1.36 per share and 2017 of HK$0.64 —E-RERITHRE
per share paid on 10th February, 2017, (BR136BT)R_F—t5F
of HK$2 in aggregate per share 5 il 21 B (FAR0.648 7T )
BhafET - 3,815,238
(d) Special interim dividend for 2017 paid on (d R=ZE—+F~A=-+=H
23rd June, 2017 of HK$2.91 per share BIEMZzZZ2—tFF5I+H
BEER291ET - 5,551,172
Total dividends paid BRI B 85 209,838 9,767,010
Final dividend for the year ended 31st December, 2018 of HK10 EFEERRERBE_T-N\F+_A=+—
cents (2017: HK10 cents) per share has been proposed by the HiIEFEZ RBREGRI0EIL (=
board of Directors and is subject to shareholders’ approval at the F - GRI0BI) - BERRAALDE 2 EER
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. RBEFREg LHtE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following

data:

Earnings:

Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted
earnings per share
Profit for the year attributable to owners

of the Company

Number of shares:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of basic and diluted

earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31st December,
2018 and 2017 were the same as the basic earnings per share as

there were no diluting events during both years.

18. ERER

ARBHEBEANEEZBRERNREERNT

BB TEIRFE -
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
A
EEREAREERF
gl
AKAREBEABGARAEEZ
i ) 1,015,290 3,708,886
Number of shares
BRHEAR
2018 2017
BmHEE
FTEEREAREERF 2
TR NE T
1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079

BE_Z-N\FR-E—tF+-A=1+—H
EFE ARTERETEHE W EAMEFE

2 EREERFESREARFER-

B \EEH

EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REY =R
Completed
properties
R
HK$'000
FAT
Fair value ATE
At st January, 2017 R-—ZE—tF—H—H 12,887,253
Acquisition of assets through acquisition FERWE-—HNBARIWBEEE
of a subsidiary (Note 40) (MF5E40) 1,779,563
Additions NE 1,421
Exchange adjustments BE 5, 53 2 764,414
Increase in fair value recognised RiFa T ERRRKRTERZ
in the consolidated statement of NEE N
comprehensive income
— unrealised — R 564,502
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39(a)) HEME 2 a (FEE39(@) ) (347,162)
At 31st December, 2017 N -E—+F+-H=+—H 15,649,991
Exchange adjustments ME W AR (491,444)
Increase in fair value recognised RiFa T ERRRKRTERZ
in the consolidated statement of N FEE N
comprehensive income
— unrealised —REIR 122,301
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31st December, 2018 R-ZZB-NE+ZA=+—H 15,280,848
All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases AEBFAFALEMYUBIE S E K1
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured BzMERRDEARATFERNGE O
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as ROVER EMENER

investment properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

PR R M

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 #Z-ZT—\F+_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

Property valuations as at 31st December, 2018 and 2017 were
carried out by B.l. Appraisals Limited (“B.I. Appraisals”), independent
qualified professional valuer, in respect of the Group’s investment
properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China. For the investment
properties in the United Kingdom, the property valuations as at
31st December, 2018 and 2017 were carried out by Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”), another independent
qualified professional valuer. The valuers have recent relevant
experience in the valuations of similar properties in the relevant

locations.

At the end of the reporting period, the management of the Group
discussed with the independent qualified professional valuers about
the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for Level 3 fair

value measurements.

The valuation reports for the investment properties as at 31st
December, 2018 and 2017 were signed by the respective director
of B.I. Appraisals and Peak Vision Appraisals, who are members of
The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and/or The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors. The valuations were performed in accordance
with “The HKIS Valuation Standards 2017 Edition” published by
The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and/or “The RICS Valuation
— Global Standards 2017" published by The Royal Institution of

Chartered Surveyors.

The fair value of each investment property is individually
determined at the end of each reporting period based on its
market value and by adopting investment method, and/or direct
comparison method, as appropriate. The investment method relying
on the capitalisation of rental income is based upon estimates of
future results and a set of assumptions specific to each property
to reflect its tenancy status. The fair value of each investment
property reflects, among other things, rental income from current
term leases, term yield rate, assumptions about rental income from
future reversion leases in light of current market conditions, the
assumed occupancy rate and reversionary yield rate. Judgment by
the valuers is required to determine the principal valuation factors,
including term vyield rate and reversionary yield rate. Such vyield
rates were adopted after considering the investment sentiments
and market expectations of properties of similar nature. Direct
comparison method assumes each of these properties is capable of
being sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant possession
and by making reference to comparable sales evidence as available

in the relevant markets.

19. REWE

RZE-NEFRZZT—tF+-_A=+—8"
REEUAREERPEARE 2 IREMERE T
SEREREGEMRBERTEERAF (MR
MABIRRET ) EITMEME  ERUREEZ
BEYE AR BUAEKREEGEMRE
FAEERLA (DREBEMHDETHRZZ—N
FRZF—+FTZ A=+ AZWEME-
R ER T A TR A T AR B B AR A 2 2 4%
B o

RBERAR AREZEEERBUAERE
XEHEMTREFAAEZEERNTERE=ZHA
FEFEZTERE-

R-BE-N\FER-_ZT—tF+-A=+—8"
BREWFR 2 HERSE B RABRT G RREF
HEECER (RERBRBAEMBGEEER
SEERFHAEMBGEEE)EE LM
BENETERAEMBEMBEMZ [HERE
AR g AR - —HFRA| R/ HER
RRPREBMBEmBEnz 2K EFISME
EHE- T LFRRER] ET

BEREMEZ AFERSREHRRIEED
B WRAREER RERLEE (RER
BERME ) MERIETE - R EETKBEEANHE
SWA - WAEFEYERREE 2 Bat h—
R EBRRBKE ARBREBEERR &
BREME 2 AFERE (RheE)REAHELY
HIRZES WA HOBMR 2B HE  ERIE
RS R RESFEOMSHEHSBAZRE
BEROEENEFEEE REEET2HER
X (BRENHRZOHE RERD®RE)H
Al HER L FE - NRBEBEHRERER
EREERANMSHBLEEME 2B -
BEELBEBRRZENEZBAURRRE
ERZRAEMS LA HEBRZHERE

“E-\FFHR EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

The following tables analysed the investment properties which
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period
into the three-level hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” which is further elaborated in Note 3.

19. REWE

TRANBERRARTFEFEZREMEZ
=BAH/H (EER BBV BMELENE 135
[RFEFE]D) DI RRH T3 EE — 5t

Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
N¥EE E—® -t 1] E=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FA&T
15,280,848 - 1,296,616 13,984,232

Recurring fair value REMAYLE
measurements: &
Completed properties ERIE
At 31st December, 2018 R-B-N\HF
+=A=+-8
At 31st December, 2017 RZZ—+F
+=A=+—H

15,649,991 - 1,401,669 14,248,322

Certain investment properties located in Hong Kong and Mainland
China categorised as Level 2 fair value measurement are
determined using direct comparison method with reference to the
recent selling prices of comparable properties on a price per square
foot basis which are adjusted to reflect the conditions and locations

of the related properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

19. REWE

Details of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on

investment properties which are categorised as Level 3 fair value

measurement at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Properties held for
investment in
Hong Kong
NREBZHERENE

Properties held for
investment in the
United Kingdom

NREBEZHERENE

Total
Fk ol

Fair value

AV
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fih 7 FET
5,482,740 5,017,160
8,501,492 9,231,162
13,984,232 14,248,322

Valuation techniques
fEE R

Combination of direct
comparison method and
investment method

BEIBERREE

A=Y

Combination of direct
comparison method and
investment method

BELBERREE

A=Y

Reversionary yield is the rate taking into account the capitalisation

of potential rental income, nature of the property and prevailing

market conditions. Market rent per square foot is the market rent

taking into account the direct comparable market transactions to the

related properties.

The fair value measurements are negatively correlated to the

reversionary yield, while positively correlated to the market rent per

square foot.

S
E
N

RBERRDBERE=ZBRLTEAEZRED
ZIEEMERZ &R E2E8IE ZF151M
Significant
unobservable
inputs Range
BARFTHEHE &

(1) Reversionary yield;  2.50% to 4.75%
and (2017: 3.00% to 4.75%)
EHE@BE R 250224752

(2) Market rent per square (ZZ—+ % :3.00[E
foot E4.752)
BYHIRzWSES

(1) Reversionary yield;  2.88% to 4.75%
and (2017: 2.88% to 4.75%)
EHE@BE R 2882 %4752

(2) Market rent per square (=T —+ % :2.88E
foot E4.752)

BFHRzMHEE

BREEHETDFRECEHSRABERE W%

(R E TR 2 % -

BFTRZWS

HE Dt RABMEZTSAIHRERLEBRRS
"HzmGHEE-

AFEHERARARERRL TREFH
RS AR EL -

“E-\FFHR EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 19. REWE

Movements of investment properties which are categorised as

Level 3 fair value measurement during the year are as follows:

PERE=MATVEABZEEAMERNFAZ
EHmT:

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At st January wn—A—H 14,248,322 11,273,234
Acquisition of assets through acquisition B —REH B AR
of a subsidiary (Note 40) Ikg & & (KiFE40) - 1,779,563
Exchange adjustments PE 3 & (490,024) 762,465
Increase in fair value recognised REEEEEREREPERZ
in the consolidated statement of NEEE N
comprehensive income
— unrealised —KRER 225,934 780,222
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39(a)) HEME AT (MFE39(a)) - (347,162)
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31st December Rt+t=ZA=+—8H 13,984,232 14,248,322

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value
measurement during the years ended 31st December, 2018 and
2017 and no change in valuation techniques used in prior years. In
estimating the fair value of the properties, their current use equates

to the highest and best use of the properties.
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Cost

At Tst January, 2017
Additions

Disposals of subsidiaries
Disposals/written off
Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2017
Additions
Disposals/written off
Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2018

Depreciation

At Tst January, 2017

Charge for the year

Elimination upon disposals of subsidiaries
Elimination upon disposals/written off
Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2017

Charge for the year

Elimination upon disposals/written off
Exchange adjustments

At 31st December, 2018

Carrying amounts
At 31st December, 2018

At 31st December, 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE =%

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

PR R M

—NF+ZA=+—HLFE

20. ME - -HERRE

Furniture, Yachts and
Leasehold fixtures and motor
land Buildings equipment vehicles Total
LS
RELH B RERRE BRERER okl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAx FAR TER TAx
A
R-E—+t#—-F—H 25,968 4525 47,160 107534 185,187
NE - - 4292 839 5,131
HEMBAT - - (88) (440) (528)
HE /i - - (3,337) (7675) (11,012)
EHBE 1,888 329 34 240 2,491
RZE—tF+ZA=+-H 217,856 4,854 48,061 100,498 181,269
e = - 2,130 - 2,130
HE /s - - (9,753) (18,400) (28,153)
EHAE (1,316) (229) (24) 131 (1,438)
RZE-NF+ZA=+—H 26,540 4,625 40,414 82,229 153,808
il
RZZT—tF—-f—AH 1244 279 40,644 97590 139,757
KEEME 481 105 3310 4,784 8,680
HEM B AR - - (66) (440) (506)
HE/MEHHH - - (3,259) (6,897) (10,156)
EH AR 110 24 28 215 377
WZZ—+E+ZA=+—-H 1,835 408 40,657 95,252 138,152
KEEME 497 108 3,343 2,858 6,806
HE/MERHH - - (9,738) (18,033) (211m)
EHAE (107) (23) (21) 118 (33)
RZE-NF+ZA=+—H 2,225 493 34,241 80,195 117,154
AR
R=B-NE+=A=+-H 24,315 4,132 6,173 2,034 36,654
WZE—+F+-A=+—-H 26,021 4446 7404 5,246 43117
—E-N\FFEHR EABEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21. B EE

Cost

At 1st January, 2017,
31st December, 2017 and
31st December, 2018

Amortisation and impairment
At 1st January, 2017,

31st December, 2017 and

31st December, 2018

Carrying amounts
At 31st December, 2018

At 31st December, 2017

R

R-T—tF—H—8"
—E—tFFTZAZT—HEK
—E-N\E+ZA=t—H

BHERRE

RZF—tF—-A—H"
—T—+F+-A=t-8k
—E-N\F+ZR=+—H

REE
R=ZB-NF+=A=+-H

RZE—tF+=ZA=1+—H

Trading and

exchange
rights Trademark Total
BEENESE (53 e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
2,705 14,300 17,005
2,705 14,300 17,005

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over five

years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

22. GOODWILL 22. B8
HK$'000
FAT
Cost 2%
At 1st January, 2017, RZZE—tF—HA—H"
31st December, 2017 and —T—+tF+-_A=+—8k
31st December, 2018 —E-NF+=ZA=+—H 370,686
Impairment BWE
At 1st January, 2017, R—ZE—tF—H—H-
31st December, 2017 and —E—+FEF+ZA=FT—BRK
31st December, 2018 —ET-N\F+ZA=+—H 47748
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31st December, 2018 R-ZZE—-N\FE+=-A=+—H 322,938
At 31st December, 2017

R-ZZE—tF+=-A=+—H 322,938

Impairment testing of goodwill BERENR

RETRENR RETERAHELZZHE
ENPEEAKEZRASELSEN RELETE
REBEMNBARMEA ZREME -BHEE®
B(HRRBEREEBER) DEEATELME

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired through
certain business combinations has been allocated to the Group's
CGUs, which in all cases were determined to be investment

properties owned by subsidiaries. The carrying amount of goodwill

(net of accumulated impairment losses) was allocated to CGUs with S EEBN:
the following places of operation:

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHT
United Kingdom HE 322,938 322,938
Hong Kong G - -
322,938 322,938

—z-ngE5x  #ABzgm 205
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

22. GOODWILL (Cont'd)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Cont'd)

The recoverable amount for the CGU operated in the United
Kingdom has been determined based on value-in-use calculation
using five-year cash flow projections approved by the Directors. The
pre-tax discount rate of approximately 5.97% (2017: 5.28%) per
annum for the United Kingdom property business was applied to
the cash flow projection when assessing the recoverability of the
CGU containing goodwill. Full impairment for goodwill of the other

businesses in Hong Kong was recognised in prior years.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved for
the preparation of the cash flow projections. Key assumptions
included gross margin and discount rates which are determined by
the Directors based on past performance and their expectation for
market development. The values assigned to key assumptions were
based on historical experience, current market conditions, approved
forecasts and consistent with external information sources. Gross
margin is budgeted gross margin. The discount rates used were
determined with reference to weighted average cost of capital of
similar companies in the industry reflected specific risks relating
to the industry. The Directors believe that any reasonable possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of the CGUs to exceed their respective aggregate
recoverable amount. During the years ended 31st December, 2018
and 2017, the Directors determined that there was no impairment

of the goodwill.
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AERENR (E)

RERKE 7 BeEEEMZHEJRES
BEORBESHEZ AFHESREEA - Wik
FREENEEIEE ENHERBZREE
A BB 2 AT U B AR B - gk 2 B ) 2 S AR
ATGFREIREA5.97E (Z T —tF : 528/ ) &
ARZBESTEEN -RREBEMEL 2
B 2EREBBEBCRBEFEHER-

REBEREBAS RZEBR LG - E2
BRPIEHEFRBERBTRARBZYEMIS
BREANETZEMNRERE - FE2REMA
BEBEER - &R R RAEHETE R &K
B WS IINBERIR EFMETIFEEER
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IR EARKAEE - WIRMEITHAEA 2
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HR2EMNESH I eERREeELEENIERR
BRERBHRCESASEM 2 E@TRE &5
BE-RBE_ZT-N\FRZZET—+LF+=H
=t+—BHLEFERN BFFEHENERES
B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

23. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 23. LERZEARZEKRE

THE EQUITY METHOD

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
(a) Interests in associates: (@) BERAED
Cost of investment in associates WA RN AR
— unlisted —3JktETH 1,204,736 1,204,736
Share of post-acquisition profits/losses MEBERERNEER
and other comprehensive income/ Hip2milz X
expenses net of dividends received kB RS B 1,067,815 910,492
2,272,551 2,115,228
(b) Interest in a joint venture: b)) —HEERAER
Cost of investment in a joint venture HE—FEERAKAR
— unlisted (note) —3JE b (Ff3E) 150 -
Share of post-acquisition profit et inpl 3,476 -
3,626 -
2,276,177 2,115,228

fizt: RBE-Z-/\F+-_A=+—BILF
& AEBERE—RHEE QT Z50%8 A
Bm ZEARRRALREESAY
141858 2% (R [AREFAE]) -

Note: During the year ended 31st December, 2018, the Group
subscribed 509% equity interest in a joint venture holding a
property located at Nos. 14-18 Ma Kok Street (known as Possehl
Building) in Tsuen Wan.

Particulars of the Group's principal associates and joint venture as at KEERRZZT-NF+ZA=+—HzZxZ
31st December, 2018 are set out in Note 51. BE AR REERAFBEHINNMEES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

23. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

As at 31st December, 2018 and 2017, the investment properties
held by the Group's principal associates and joint venture (2017:
associates) were revalued by B.I. Appraisals. B.l. Appraisals
continues to adopt investment method and/or direct comparison
method as the valuation methodologies. The valuation methods
and significant assumptions applied in determining the fair values of

investment properties are detailed in Note 19.

All of the associates and the joint venture are accounted for using

the equity method in these consolidated financial statements.

The information below reflects the amounts presented in the
unaudited financial statements of associates and a joint venture
which were prepared in accordance with HKFRSs adjusted for the
differences arising from accounting policies and different financial
year-end dates between the Group and the associates and joint

venture, if any.
(a) Interests in associates

The Company provided corporate guarantees to secure bank
borrowings granted to its associates in prior years. The fair
value of the financial guarantee contract at initial recognition
was determined by Norton Appraisals Limited, independent
qualified professional valuer, and was recognised as
investments accounted for using the equity method and
financial guarantee liabilities in the Group's consolidated

statement of financial position.
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23. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

(@)

Interests in associates (Cont'd)

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group's material associate, Finedale Industries Limited, is set

out below.

Finedale Industries Limited

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Net assets

Revenue

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Reconciliation of the summarised financial
information presented to the carrying
amount of its interest in the associate:

Net assets at 1st January
Total comprehensive income for the year

Net assets at 31st December

Interest held by the Group

Group's interest in the associate and
the carrying amount

Dividend received from the associate
during the year

23. UERZEARZEE @

(a) BEATER(E)

AEESEMENR - EHEEBRA
Az BERBEEHFINT -

BHEXERAT
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
ERBEE 3,843,000 3,403,000
RBEE 466,674 385,114
mEa & (61,146) (49,849)
EEFE 4,248,528 3,738,265
WA 95,734 82,966
ANF i F 510,263 246,927
AFEEE2EMBZ L5 510,263 246,927
BE N RS2 REESR
B 75 3 LR it 49 B
R—A—HZEEFE 3,738,265 3,491,338
AEEPHWGEE 510,263 246,927
R+—A=Z+—BZ2EEFE 4,248,528 3,738,265
AEBEFB R 33.33% 33.330
AEBRZBE R ZESE N
FREE 1,416,176 1,246,088
NS AR g R /NC]
2B - _
—E-\EFR  EABEEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_—Z

23. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

(@) Interests in associates (Cont'd)

“NET A=+ HILFE

23. UERZEARZKRE @
(a) WEATRR ()

Aggregate financial information of associates that are not

individually material:

Group's share of results for the year
Group's share of other comprehensive
(expenses) income for the year

Group's share of total comprehensive
income for the year

Group's aggregate interests in these
associates and the carrying amounts

Dividends received from associates
during the year

(b) Interest in a joint venture

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's joint venture, Landrich (H.K.) Limited, is set out

below.

Landrich (H.K.) Limited

Non-current asset

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Other current assets

Current liabilities
Current financial liabilities
(excluding trade and other payables
and provisions)
Other current liabilities

Non-current liability
Non-current financial liabilities

Net assets

BRIFEEE 2B E R R B E R 4R :

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
REBBEANFEEE 58,688 107,613
REBEBIEARFEHAM
| (X)W (10,050) 16,964
AEBBAFE
EHWNE AR 48,638 124,577
AEBRZEBERARZ
B LREE 856,375 869,140
RANE B U & A7)
ZIRE 61,500 75,100
(b) —EeEATERS
AEBEERG —BH (BE)BRAR
ZEM%éSME%E%WJQDTO
B (EB)ERATE
2018
HK$°000
FET
EREBEE 490,000
REEE
HekBEEMEER 8,170
Htn#EE 3,471
11,641
mEEE
eI e R A E
(TRIEEMNEZIRE
T E Ath AT BR TE DA R B ) (180,000)
Himsata (5.951)
(185,951)
EREBBE
NS eRmBEE (308,437)
BEFE 7.253
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23. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

(b)

Interest in a joint venture (Cont'd) (b)

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's joint venture, Landrich (H.K.) Limited, is set out
below. (Cont'd)

Landrich (H.K.) Limited (Cont'd)

Since the subscription of Landrich (H.K.)

Limited, the results of the joint venture during %A & A AR W EE 12 HA
post-acquisition period are as follows: XENT:

Revenue A

Interest expense MERX

Income tax expense FS BRI X

Profit for the period AN BAfE 4

Total comprehensive income for the period A o TR

ABENRERZRHESR
B ER B R -

Reconciliation of the summarised financial
information presented to the carrying
amount of its interest in the joint venture:

23. UERZEARZEE @

—BeEQRER (&)

AEBERERR (24 (FE)ARAR

ZHBERBEEIINT - (&)

W (EB)ARLQF ()

2018

HK$°000

BERBER (FB)BRAAE

Az

TEx

12,879

3,625

1,256

3,355

3,355

Net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities as at the date of subscription
(note)

Post-acquisition total comprehensive income

Net assets at 31st December

Interest held by the Group

Group's interest in the joint venture and
the carrying amount

Dividend received from the joint venture

during the year

Note: Upon completion of the subscription, the excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment of
approximately HK$1,799,000 (2017: nil) was included
in the determination of the Group's share of the joint
venture's profit or loss in the period in which the

investment was acquired.

RABRZAHNEERAEZ
~EFE ()

W R 2 HIKREAER

Rt-A=+—RZzEEFE

AEBFAZ

AEERZEERRZER R
FRmEE

REAFEERAEERT

Z BB

B \EEH

3,898

3,355

71,253

50%

3,626

Miat: RTERZRER  NEBEBEGA Y
MEERABZAFEFERS
AR A1,799,0008 T (==
—tF ) WERREBZIEE 2 H
FHEJQ?%EEEZK%%MSEE@

EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

24. ADVANCES TO ASSOCIATES

24, BYHEE N RIFOR

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Interest-bearing advances to associates TS N E) 2 ET B RIE 48,147 48,050
Interest-free advances to associates BB E N R 2 R B RIE 1,112 1,149
49,259 49,199

The advances to associates are unsecured. The Group will not
demand for repayment within one year from the end of the
reporting period and the amounts are therefore shown as non-
current. The interest-bearing advances to associates bear interest at

the prevailing market rates.

25. ADVANCE TO A JOINT VENTURE

The advance to a joint venture is unsecured and interest-free. The
Group will not demand for repayment within one year from the end
of the reporting period and the amount is therefore shown as non-

current.

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

BNBERRFAR/BER - AEETEER
REERRE—FREE  BH%FFRIE
FRBMUE - BN ERF 25 BRBENER

ZTHIBEERREE -
25. B —BEE QA TNIE
BN —EAEEARRIEAERBLEE - K&

B & B RS B A — 4 PO E - B
RAPUEIER DI -

26. BRBEmURRIFETELZ
TREE

2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Bonds (note (i)) &H (BIEEQ)) 6,685,515 10,738,743
Club and corporate debentures (note (ii)) gHERARES (FHEG) 78,481 69,889
Derivative financial instrument (note (iii)) TSR TE (MEEG)) 1,921 -
6,765,917 10,808,632

Analysed for reporting purpose as: EmRERBRZ DT
Non-current FERFEE 1,350,090 2,049,276
Current MBS 5,415,827 8,759,356
6,765,917 10,808,632
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (contd)

Notes:

0)

(i)

As at 31st December, 2018, the carrying amount of bonds was
approximately HK$6,685,515,000 (2017: HK$10,738,743,000),
including bonds with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,006,669,000 (2017: HK$1,261,095,000) were available
to be loaned to financial institutions for earning lending fee
income and the same or substantially the same securities would
be returned to the Group, pursuant to the terms and conditions
contained in the securities pooled lending agreements, of which
approximately HK$75,581,000 (2017: HK$50,124,000) were on
loan at the end of the reporting period.

The bonds denominated in US$ carry at fixed rate range from
4.750% to 9.375% per annum of which notional amount of
US$911,365,000 are callable and the bonds denominated in
GBP carry at fixed rate range from 5.875% to 7.250% per annum
are callable.

The bonds are traded in active market and stated at fair values at
the end of the reporting period. Their fair values are determined
by reference to market bid prices quoted by financial institutions
and brokers.

Major terms of the bonds denominated in US$ and GBP are as
follows:

Notional amount Maturity
US$9,000,000 2021
US$146,000,000 2023
US$237,000,000 2024
US$59,000,000 2025
US$9,000,000 2036
US$21,000,000 2046
US$465,365,000 Perpetual
GBP22,500,000 Perpetual

Club and corporate debentures are stated at fair values at the end
of the reporting period. Details of the fair value measurements
are disclosed in Note 5(c).

26. BRBRHURRIFETEZ

EREE®

Wi :

0)

(i)

RZZE—NF+_A=+—H0 BEHZE
M 1B #) /6,685,515,0008 7T (=T —+
£ :10,738,743,000/8 70) * & IR (B 42
BA 49 £1,006,669,000/8 7t (— T — 4
1,261,095,000% 7T ) 2 &% - IRIRE S F 5
BEBEASE 2GR RGESE IHEDT
CREEURIEEBRA MEZEES
FARABERZELFBERETAEE R
WMEHK EPEBHEFZ2ERENA
75,581,0007% 7t ( —=Z —+t 4 : 50,124,000
BT e

AZETTAHE 2 EH EE FF| & B4.750FE =
9.375/F - AR EZE S FA911,365000%E 7T
ZEHRBAELD - URSHEZEFET
FH K A5875E£7250F ¥ AR EMD -

BEFRRIERZTIHER 5 RREHR
NRAFEINR-EHFZRFEIRESE
BEBRELTISEAREBETE -

NETRRFHEZEHFZEEZRARMT -

ZELH FHA
9,000,000% 7T B
146,000,000 7T —EC-=%F
237,000,000 7T T E
59,000,000% 7T —E-RE
9,000,0003 7T —EZREF
21,000,000 7T ZENRF
465,365,000 7T KA
22,500,000 £ KA

RERR ERQFRESFARTFET
FoAFEMEZFBDRHE QR

go

o

“E-\FFHR EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(i) During the year ended 31st December, 2018, the Group entered
cross currency swap. The table below is prepared based on
the maturity date of the contract. The major terms of the cross
currency swap at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

US$/HKS cross currency swap 7T B rxE¥E
— Within 1 year —— KX

The Group used the cross currency swap to exchange US$
bank borrowing of approximately US$158,405,000 in HK$ bank
borrowing of HK$1,238,000,000.

The cross currency swap is stated at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. Details of the fair value measurement are
disclosed in Note 5(c).

Included in non-current assets, there were financial assets
measured at FVTPL of approximately HK$1,350,090,000 (2017:
HK$2,049,276,000). They were included in non-current assets
according to their intended holding periods. Notwithstanding the
presentation of the above assets as non-current assets, these
financial assets to the extent of approximately HK$1,271,609,000
(2017: HK$1,979,387,000) were treasury products and could be
realised in the market at any time within twelve months from the

end of the reporting period.
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fisE: (&)

@iy REEZ—)\F+_A=1T—HLFE"
AEEFTVEEBR - TRBEAOIE
AR - NREBR  EBEH Y EZ KR
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2018
Notional amount Fair value
EECHE AFEE
Uss$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TE THET FExT
158,405 1,238,000 1,921
AEEBNEBEHEBEELRITIEED
158,405,000 TR M BB TLIRITEE

1,238,000,000/% JT °

REREHAR B HARFEY R AT
BEAEZHBERMES(QNBEE -

FRBEEFRLERBBERUARBATE
SFECZEREEY,350,090,0008 T (=
T —+ 4 :2,049,276,0008 7T ) - IR IEHFH
ZHEREGHMAAFERDEE-BE Ll
BEZIAITDEAE ZSEeREEZ
S HE#1,271,609,0008 T (=T — L F:
1,979,387,0008 7T) AV B E M Al R R & H
K+ Z@ARTHEHATESE LER-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Listed investment: FRE:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REBLTRAES
(note (i) (FFEE@))
Unlisted equity securities: FELEMRAES:
— Incorporated in Hong Kong —RE B

— Incorporated elsewhere (note (ii))

Notes:

0)

(i)

As at 31st December, 2018, the Group held certain Evergrande
Shares. The unrealised loss on fair value change of the
Evergrande Shares of approximately HK$3,052,253,000 (2017:
unrealised gain of HK$9,928,302,000), which was determined
based on quoted market bid price in active market, was recorded
in financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve during the
year ended 31st December, 2018. The carrying amount of the
Evergrande Shares held by the Group as at 31st December, 2018
was HK$20,167,000,000 (2017: HK$23,110,730,000).

As at 31st December, 2018, the carrying amount of listed equity
securities was HK$20,167,000,000 (2017: HK$23,110,730,000),
including listed equity securities with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$1,195,950,000 (2017: HK$1,831,576,000) were available
to be loaned to financial institutions for earning lending fee
income and the same or substantially the same securities would
be returned to the Group, pursuant to the terms and conditions
contained in the securities pooled lending agreements, none of
listed equity securities (2017: HK$619,103,000) were on loan at
the end of the reporting period.

As at 31st December, 2018, the carrying amount mainly
comprised investment in an exempted limited partnership formed
under the Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands (“Cayman Islands Partnership”) of approximately
HK$408,159,000 (2017: HK$578,244,000).

The Cayman Islands Partnership has a term of ten years from the
date of initial closing. Purposes of the Cayman Islands Partnership
are to achieve exceptional returns by acquiring, holding and
disposing of equity, equity-related securities, high-yield structured
financial products, independently or with others, in companies
with various operations or such other activities.

27 ERHEMEE W@ ARRAF

B BEZEMEE

— PR E AR T AR S (B RE (i) )

B2

0)

(i)

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
20,167,000 23,110,730
707,542 344,263
492,765 686,967
21,367,307 24,141,960

R-B-NFE+-_A=+—8 K&£EE
BETERARD RBEE-_T—N\F+=
A=+—HLEFE BEXNERMHZE
NERE M E B AR R EIR A FEE
&) 2§18 493,052,253,0008 7L ( — T —+
0 R 3R 0 289,928,302,000/8 7T) B
BRAEMEEWIARBATLEFEZS
BEEZHEAAR - R=ZZ—N\F+=
A=+—H AKEHEEEARMD KB
{8 /20,167,000,000/8 7T ( = & — 4 :
23,110,730,0008 7T °

R-B—-NEFE+-_A=+—8  LHEK
&% 7 BRE {E 520,167,000,000 7T ( ==
—+4:23,110,730,000/ 7T ) » & P EREIE
4EERX)51,195,950,00008 70 ( —F— 4
1,831,576,000/% 70 ) 2 E T IRAFE S - iRIE
FEE B A BB B a2 G AR - ATt
BHTFEREBUABRDEBREBRA  MZE
BERAABERZEFBERETAEE-
RIEHR WEEEL 2 ETRAES
—ZT—+ % BRMA{E619,103,000/87T) °

R-E—-NF+_A=+—H HFEEIS
ERER—HEHEHEEREERAE
EE (KB KLz EREBREBE
X ([AEESA%NEHE])4408,159,000
BT ( Z T —4 4 :578,244,000/8 7T ) °

HEeERBSARLERTSBLAERH T
F-HENBSABLEZENREBBEY
FEEMABBE BHELMHEZRER
ZRRZEA - BRABREESHE KRR Z
HRUMBERIEMZZHUREEE
&Y [l 5 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (contd)

The quoted price in active market of equity securities listed in Hong

Kong represents quoted market bid price available on the Stock

Exchange.

For unlisted equity securities measured at fair value, details of the

fair value measurements are disclosed in Note 5(c).

Included in non-current assets, there were financial assets
measured at FVTOCI of approximately HK$21,367,307,000 (2017:
HK$24,141,960,000). They were included in non-current assets
according to their intended holding periods. Notwithstanding the
presentation of the above assets as non-current assets, these
financial assets to the extent of HK$20,167,000,000 (2017:
HK$23,110,730,000) were listed securities investments and could

be realised in the market at any time within twelve months from the

end of the reporting period.

28. ADVANCE(S) TO INVESTEE COMPANIES
AND A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

(a) The advances to investee companies are unsecured and
interest-free. The Group will not demand for repayment

within one year from the end of the reporting period and the

amounts are therefore shown as non-current.

(b) The advance to a non-controlling shareholder is unsecured
and interest-free. The Group will not demand for repayment

within one year from the end of the reporting period and the

amount is therefore shown as non-current.
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ERHEMEEREURBRAFE
BifECzEe@MEEw

REBLTRAFFNERT IS 2|E T8
BTz EARE-

RARFEFEBZIFLTRAEZESME  AF
B EZFBERHESCQNBE -

FEVRED A B R B A R H A 2 T s A R B
NEERFE 2 e/ EE#21,367,307,000%
L (= Z — £ 4 :24,141,960,0005 7T ) ° iR
BREEZHREREHMAAFERBDEE B
ELrMEEZINRIERBDEE ZFemE
B 2 £ %820,167,000,0008 L (= ZE — £ F:
23,110,730,0008 7T) =/ LM B HIRE AR
WEMRET A NEMREER TS EE
o

BNEIREQNTR—EIHFE
IR B SR IE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

29. DEFERRED TAXATION 29. IEFEBLIE
The following is the major deferred tax liabilities provided (assets LA 27K 52 B PR 7 3R 25 HA F) R 38 1F 4 45 B R
recognised) by the Group and movements thereon during the FERERBEEBZ BB (BEZER) RE
current and prior reporting periods: o
Accelerated
Investment tax
properties depreciation Tax losses Total
RENE  MERERE BiskE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHR FAER FER
At 1st January, 2017 RZZ—+4%-A—-H 124,180 (684) (1,322) 122,174
Exchange adjustments [ 5 B 17 956 (85) 888
Charged to the consolidated statement of ~ Wix& 2 E M REF MG
comprehensive income (Note 13) (BzE13) 3,181 4,994 4,875 13,050
Acquisition of assets through acquisition of & B UREE — I B2 AUt
a subsidiary (Note 40) B (Mizz40) - 22242 (5,989) 16,253
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39(a)) HERBDE (H:39()) (104,419) - - (104,419)
At 31st December, 2017 i e e = 22,959 27,508 (2,521) 47,946
Exchange adjustments [ 5 A% (129) (1,517) 92 (1,554)
Charged to the consolidated statement of ~ R4z A& 2 E MBS HEF MK
comprehensive income (Note 13) (BtzE13) 2,221 2,004 370 4,601
At 31st December, 2018 R-B-N§+=-B=+-H 25,057 27,995 (2,059) 50,993
For the purpose of the presentation in the consolidated statement MEEMBRRABEZ 2N ETERLEHRER
of financial position, certain deferred tax liabilities and assets BENEECHEHE RUBEREBRZELR
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax HEESAITINT
balances for financial reporting purposes:
2018 2017
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBEE 52,892 50,365
Deferred tax assets FRERIEE = (1,899) (2,419)
50,993 47946
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

29. DEFERRED TAXATION (contd) 29. IEEBLIE ()

PR E HIR - AN [B el 70 B DA TR R R 208 )
AERBAT 2 T BREFIAEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
major unrecognised deferred tax assets due to the unpredictability

of the future profit streams.

2018 2017

HK$ 000 HK$'000

FTHET FHEIT

Accelerated tax depreciation MRFIEITE (285) (466)
Tax losses M EE (271,661) (448,167)
(271,946) (448,633)

RMEBR  AEBR—E2RAF NI AR
MR 2 R B 7% B 18 40 523,588,000/% 7T

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s unused tax
losses not recognised of approximately HK$23,588,000 (2017:

HK$14,624,000) will be expired in one to five years. Other ZE—+F 14,624,000 7T ) - HEAKRTER
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely and Z BB E T ERBEE  WASHBTER
subject to the confirmation from the respective tax authority. TR e

30. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 30. Hth EREE
(@) Pledged deposits (a) EHEX

ZERBRER TRITRE M2 B
B ERAEEEREEGE TN
#7154,195,0008 L (ZF —t F -
172,972,000/ 7T) 2 F R EE R H

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks and
other financial institutions to secure credit facilities granted
to the Group. Deposits amounting to approximately
HK$154,195,000 (2017: HK$172,972,000) have been

pledged to secure short-term borrowings and are therefore
classified as current assets. The remaining deposits
amounting to approximately HK$83,203,000 (2017:
HK$90,541,000) have been pledged to secure long-term

borrowings and are therefore classified as non-current assets.

The pledged deposits carry interest at prevailing market
deposit rates. The pledged deposits will be released upon the

repayment of relevant borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

30. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (contd)
(b) Securities trading receivables and deposits

Securities trading receivables and deposits are mainly
amounts due from clearing house, brokers and clients.

(c) Time deposits, bank balances and cash

The time deposits and certain bank balances carry interest
at prevailing market deposit rates. As at 31st December,
2018, time deposits with maturity greater than three
months amounted to approximately HK$108,700,000
(2017: HK$88,824,000) and the remaining deposit was
with maturity within one month. The Group does not hold
collateral over the deposit balances. As at 31st December,
2018, balances of cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$605,872,000 (2017: HK$570,578,000).

31. STOCK OF PROPERTIES

As at 31st December, 2018 and 2017, all of the stock of properties
were completed properties.

As at 31st December, 2018 and 2017, the Directors reviewed
the carrying amounts of the completed properties with reference
to prevailing market conditions and the estimated selling prices
provided by B.l. Appraisals.

During the year ended 31st December, 2018, a write-down of
completed properties of approximately HK$2,549,000 (2017:
HK$3,830,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as a result that net realisable value of a
completed property was lower than its carrying amount.

32. INVENTORIES

Finished goods e
Raw materials BEHE

All inventories were stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

30. Htb & MEE )
(b) EREXZSEERER

BN ESFRHEBNFREEZ BB
B BHRBEREPHIA

() EHEX BITEHRRRE

THERRE TROTEHRIZERTS
ZERMEGFE-RZT—N\F+=A
=+—B FREZR=EA 2 EH
TR & %4 A108,700,0008 T (=&
—+ 4 :88,824,0008 L) * B T ER
A —1E A AN B E - A K E IR F R
HEHRBEARE-R_ZE—N\E+ A
—t+t—H BekBALEEEBELEHKS
KA #) /605,872,000 (Z T —+t4F
570,578,000/ 7T, ) ©

3. YEEFEE

RZE—-NFR_ZE—tF+=-A=+—8"
FrEMERELBERDE-

RZE—-NFR_ZE—tF+=-A=+—8"
EE2EERMAKBRAREFGEREZ
HErEE B EKWEZREME

REE-_ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HIFE"
ERMEZAERFEREEMERMEBEHR
SR 3 7 RUE 492,549,000 T (— &2 —+

A

F 13,830,000 70) WHRERE EE KR K H

~

o

R
32. 78

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FETT

2,125 1,472

1,062 1,188

3,187 2,660

B RRART SR ENERREE
518 -

“E-\FFHR EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

33. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables W E 5 RE
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREE
Deposits and prepayments Be RIBRAFIE
Other receivables H b fE U BR IR

Included in debtors, deposits, other receivables and prepayments
are trade receivables of approximately HK$3,553,000 (2017:
HK$5,487,000) mainly comprised rental receivables billed in
advance and settlements from tenants which are expected upon

receipts of billings and receivables from cosmetic business.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables (net of allowance for

doubtful debts) of the Group’s major businesses are as follows:

Property leasing MEMEE
Cosmetic business LA mES
Property trading MEEE
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33. BARIR - 2 € - HMEBWER

=
H R FENRIE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
3,985 5,928
(432) (441)
3,553 5,487
46,386 52,862
467,623 857,764
517,562 916,113

FEWARTE 2o M EWARB REMNFRER
EEWRE 5 BRIB4)3,553,0008 0 (ZE—+t
5,487,000/ 7T) - F EBIEIELMEMIE
HEFPegR KB HERI N2 EBEHES AR
KBt FE T 2 R ARTE o

AEBISEBRRWEZRE (HKREE
) 2 EmENT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
1,240 3,019
2,313 2,445

- 23

3,553 5,487




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

33. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit
quality of each counterparty. The collection is closely monitored to
minimise any credit risk associated with these trade receivables.
Considerations in respect of sold properties are payable by the
purchasers pursuant to the terms of the sales and purchase
agreements. Rental in respect of leased properties are payable in
advance by the tenants. Other trade debtors settle their accounts
according to the payment terms as stated in the respective

contracts.

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables (net of
allowance for doubtful debts), presented based on the respective

revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period:

0 - 30 days TE=1H
31 - 60 days =+t—H=Z=/,~+H
61 — 90 days At—BEA+H
Over 90 days At+BUE

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables which are

past due but not impaired:

0 - 30 days TE=1+H
31 - 60 days =+t—HZX~+H
61 — 90 days At—BZEh+H
Over 90 days n+BHUE

CEWERE - BE - HEWER

] K FEFOE )

AEBECHIFTAEZ EERER UFEERS
FRZEEER - AEEEBRNERUKER B
KEEREZFRVESRBARBZEER
R-REEMEZRE BEHNARBEE RS
ZEFZN -HEYNFEZHEABMFELR
o BB 5 EBARBER G LHARFIA 2R
BB ERIE -

BEBESHERAZHEABRZY 2 BINE HER
H(MBRREREE) N EBR 2 RE DTN
T

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
755 2,505

534 998

634 391
1,630 1,593
3,553 5,487

DEHERBREZEWE HEBRZERRD
i UENE

2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET

949 2,238

339 575

63 304

1,433 1,128

2,784 4,245
—E-N\FFEHR EABEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

33. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

At 1st January m—A—H

Impairment losses (reversed) recognised
(BE) R

in respect of trade receivables

Amount written off as uncollectible

At 31st December

For those past due but not impaired receivables, although the
Group does not hold any collateral as security, the Group has
assessed the creditworthiness, past payment history and substantial
settlement after the end of the reporting period, and considers that
the amounts are still recoverable and no further credit provision is

required in excess of allowance for doubtful debts.

Trade receivables over 90 days comprising rental receivables of
approximately HK$969,000 (2017: HK$1,109,000) which are
sufficiently covered by rental deposits received from the respective
tenants, and no allowance is required for these receivables under

the Group's allowance policy.

Trade receivables which are neither overdue nor impaired are in

good quality.
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33. BARIR - 2 € - HMEBWER

] K FEFOE )

FhIE W E 5 AR 1A 2 R (B &5 18

REREBE 2 #
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
as 191
(1) 250
(2) -
432 441

FhE B HMERBURE 2 EWARIAT = » # AR
SEYEREEMERDIERER AKEC5
HEE BHEERCBIMABERREZEE
RBEREL A XRARFHRBEDATKRE - &
AEE—F (ZRRERB) 2EERE-

BBNLtTAZEKEZESERERERKES L
969,000/ 7L (ZF — £ : 1,109,000/ 7T )
(HRUWMIBBEE 2 Be]<RE) -
RBEREEZ BEBR  BERZSRYIRE
Ve B

REARTARREZBREZRRAZER
Rufe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE =%

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

The entire amount of outstanding claim receivable from Shantou
City Chenghai District State-owned Land Resources Bureau
(formerly known as Shantou City Chenghai District Planning and
State-owned Land Resources Bureau) (“Chenghai Bureau”) was
received during the year ended 31st December, 2018 (2017:
included in other receivables with the principal amount of
RMB41,540,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$49,694,000))
for the recovery of the down payment made by the Group for
the acquisition of the property interests located in Xinxi Town,
Chenghai District, Shantou City, the PRC. The down payment was
fully impaired in prior years. On 5th December, 2012, the Shantou
City Intermediate People’'s Court (“Intermediate Court”) delivered
a judgment in favour of the Group and upheld the majority claims
of the Group. On 26th February, 2014, the High People’s Court
of Guangdong Province declared its judgment on 3rd December,
2013, which upheld the ruling of the Intermediate Court and
dismissed the appeals of the Group and Chenghai Bureau,
became effective on 23rd February, 2014. Up to 31st December,
2018, the Group received approximately RMB89,189,000 (2017:
RMB13,000,000) including the interest as satisfaction of the
enforcement and the enforcement of the judgment has been

completed.

CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Included in creditors and accruals are trade payables of
approximately HK$6,555,000 (2017: HK$2,549,000).

The following is the aged analysis of trade payables at the end of

the reporting period:

TEA+A
A+ EMRE

0 — 90 days
Over 90 days

33.

34,

—NF+ZA=+—HLFE

FEWARIE - & - H B ER
BHRENKE @
RBE-E—NF+-A=+—BIFE.

$%§EW@>ME§W)&)Eﬂi’ﬁﬁ)ﬁ(ﬁﬁﬁ
WEmREEREERN T ERRE) ([BEE
BlI)ARBEZEBREZZH (ZT—tF:

H EWRIEBE 2 A& AR 41,540,000
(FHE R 449,694,000 7T) ) * B EAREE
ERRALR R BN SE T B8 & 3R E Y

BB TR AN TR E R BAESF
ERERBE-R-_T——F+=-AAA A

MR BRANRZER ([HRAER]) EH AR X
FAEERBOFRFE R - R_T—NF_A
Z+RB EREABBARERZHAEN=F
—=F+ZAZBZHR BAREEREEE
Bz EFHATES R BE LF - #FPRE
RERH WRZFT—WMF_A=+=HB4 K-
BHE-_ZT - N\F+-A=+—HI X&EEHK
B4 ARY89,189,000( = —+HF: ARWE
13,000,000) * BIEEAFI B ZHITH  ZHIT
FIRE SR o

FEAY AR IR I FE 5T RO

ERNEELEFRBELREENESEEY
6,555,000/ 7T ( =& —+ F : 2,549,000/8

JT) e

ENBEZRERRERNRZRRITOT :

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET

6,531 2,539

24 10

6,555 2,549
ZE-NFEFEHR EABEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

35. BORROWINGS 35. {6 &
2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Secured bank borrowings repayable AR TP EHEEE 2 5 HAR

within a period of (note): HRITEE (M)

Less than one year —FLAT 1,371,935 2,224,105

More than one year but within two years —F U EBETBE MR E 131,385 105,105

More than two years but within five years MEA BB R E 4,312,602 2,358,867

More than five years HBE A F - 1,245,495

5,815,922 5,933,572
Secured bank borrowing that contains MR EREEER 2 BEER

repayment on demand clause RITEE (FIERBERE) -

(shown as current liability) but repayable MR T 5 ERfE & (FiT3E) -

within a period of (note):

More than two years but within five years M F A EBRNEE R F 601,279 665,781
Total secured bank borrowings BERBIETEEEE 6,417,201 6,599,353
Other secured borrowings repayable AR—FRNEEREZ HthEER

within one year BE 7,330,474 9,873,660

13,747,675 16,473,013
Less: Amounts due within one year W — FAEIH 2 FIE (9.303,688) (12,763,546)
Amounts due after one year —F & B 2 38 4,443,987 3,709,467
Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as Mzt ZEINHzBRERBETRI A

set out in the loan agreement(s). FEEKE -

The bank borrowings denominated in HK$ are variable-rate NABTEZRITEERZEEE  FHXE
borrowings which carry interest at HIBOR plus 0.68% or cost of BEBRITREI T BIN0.68FE K —EIRTTE K
funds of a bank plus 0.90% (2017: ranging from HIBOR plus RI0.0E (ZE—+F: HEHERITEERL
0.70% to 1.00%) per annum. HM0.70/E & 1.00E ) 5T & »
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35. BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

The borrowings denominated in GBP and US$ from banks and a
financial institution are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest
at cost of funds of a bank plus 0.90% or ranging from LIBOR plus
1.08% to 1.62% (2017: LIBOR plus 1.08% to 1.62%) per annum.

Other borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest
ranging from costs of funds of individual financial institutions plus
0.25% to 0.55% or HIBOR plus 1.10% to 1.95% (2017: costs of

funds of individual financial institutions plus 0.25% to 0.75% or at

HIBOR plus 1.95%) per annum.

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other

than HK$ are set out below:

us$
GBP

36. SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year

were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Authorised:
At Tst January and 31st December

Issued and fully paid:
At 1st January and 31st December

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

e

BREEC.I0ETZ Rk

FEERA
R—A—-Bk+=ZA=+—H

BRI RERRA
R-A—BRt=A=+-8

35. 6 8 @)

NEERETHEZRITRERMEEEER
FEEE  FARE—MIRTE KA D090
B fmBERITREREMNIOBEERI62E (=
T FRABITRZEFENMN.08EZE.62
BE)sHE-

HifEERZEEBE FHERZERCMEE
B SRR DN0.25EE0.55E sk F B RITRER
BEMI0BER1955E(ZE—+t4 AR &m
HIBE S KA NM0.25EF0.75E R EFHRITH
2R BN .95E ) FHE -

AEBABTUIINEBHEZEEHINT -

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
2,124,371 345,036
4,131,919 4,837,979
6,256,290 5,183,015

36. IR A

ARAZBARNFERBNT -

Number of shares Share capital
ROHE AEN
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FEL
5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 500,000 500,000
1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 190,762 190,762

“E-\FFHR EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

37.

38.

LOAN FROM A DIRECTOR

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group entered
into two facility agreements with a Director. At the request of
the Group, the Director agreed to make available to the Group
revolving loan facilities of up to GBP105,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,053,570,000) and HK$800,000,000 with their respective
termination date falling within the year ended 31st December, 2017
of which the facilities were fully drawn and repaid during the year
ended 31st December, 2017. These loans were unsecured and

interest-free.

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group further
entered into a facility agreement with the Director. At the request of
the Group, the Director has agreed to make available to the Group a
revolving loan facility of up to HK$2,000,000,000 with termination
date falling beyond one year from 31st December, 2017 of which
an aggregate amount of HK$1,835,500,000 was drawn up to
31st December, 2017 and fully repaid during the year ended 31st
December, 2018. Thereafter, further loans of HK$400,000,000 and
GBP1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$10,229,000) were drawn and
fully repaid during the year ended 31st December, 2018. These

loans were unsecured and interest-free.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES AND
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due to associates and non-controlling shareholders
are unsecured and interest-free. The associates and non-controlling
shareholders will not demand for repayment within one year from
the end of the reporting period and the amounts are therefore

shown as non-current.
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38.

REMBRRME

HE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—BILFE"
SER—NEEITUMOBERS B
BERK ZEFRERTAEELRA
5,000,000 £ (48 & 51,053,570,000/%
) %800,000,000/% L2 IR B H&H
ZERIEBRARE-_T—tF+-_A=1+—
HIEFER ZEEFEETEIRMEENE
E-T—+HF+A=+t—HIEFERNEE-
ZEBERNDEERAREE -

1

Hog om oMo

E-ET—+tE+-_A=+—AHLEE"
ERZESHITY —MHERE B
ER ZEFRAERTAEE LR A
2,000,000,000/ 7T 2 fE IR E 5k 88 - H %1 H
MA-Z—+tFE+_A=+—BE-FE &
ET—tFF+ZA=+—HI  ERERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Disposal of the Pinecrest Group to a connected person
on 10th February, 2017

On 5th December, 2016, (i) New Silver Limited (“New
Silver"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
(ii) the Company, being the guarantor of New Silver;
(i) Strong Point Ventures Limited (“Strong Point Ventures"),
a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lau,
Ming-wai (“Mr. MW Lau"), being a non-executive Director;
and (iv) Mr. MW Lau, being the guarantor of Strong Point
Ventures, entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which New Silver agreed to sell and Strong Point
Ventures agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of

Pinecrest.

The Pinecrest Disposal was completed on 10th February,
2017 at a consideration of approximately HK$352,221,000.
Upon completion, the Pinecrest Group ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Company and its consolidated results,
assets and liabilities were ceased to be consolidated with

those of the Group.

Details of the Pinecrest Disposal were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 5th December, 2016,
13th January, 2017 and 10th February, 2017 and the circular
of the Company dated 28th December, 2016.

39. HEK B2 F

(a)

R=-—Z—+t %= A+ H HEPinecrests
EFEEAL

RZZE—RE+=ZAAH (i) New Silver
Limited ([New Silver|) (KRR & Z—
MHEE2EHEAEWNB AR (AR
&) fEANew Silver#E{R A : (i) Strong
Point Ventures Limited ([Strong Point
Ventures]) (—FIHIERITE S LB E
EE(NRAREXRE)2ELE=ESR
Znal) s R (iv) 8IS K& 5t A& - YE & Strong
Point VenturesE{R A 5132 — 18 & & 1#
# ¥t New Silver[A] & H & K Strong
Point Ventures[d & #8 & Pinecrestz 2 &0
BEITIRA -

Pinecrest il ER T —+tF A+ HRE
BE - R A{B %) /352,221,000 7T, c IR FEAX
f& ' Pinecreste B NB ARR R ZHB LR
Al ERAEE EERBEETHITA
AEBZRAXE EERBERN-

Pinecrest! & 2 sFEE &I R A R FH
MAE-_T—R "Ft+t-_AAR-—_T—+
F—A+=ZAR-ZT—+HE-A+AHZ
PAUNERZE—AR"F+ZA=Z+tNBZ
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

(a)

39. HEMHEB 27 @

Disposal of the Pinecrest Group to a connected person (@) R=Z—+t%F=A5+HHHEPinecrest

on 10th February, 2017 (Cont'd)

The consolidated net assets of the Pinecrest Group
as at the date of disposal were as follows:

Investment properties (Note 19)

Equipment

Debtors, deposits, other receivables and
prepayments

Bank balances and cash

Amount due from the Group

Creditors and accruals

Deposits and receipts in advance

Tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 29)

Consolidated net assets disposed of
Release of translation reserve upon disposal
Assumption of amount due from the Group
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration
Expenses incurred for disposal

Net cash inflow arising from disposal:
Cash consideration
Settled by special interim dividend (note)

Net cash consideration received
Expenses incurred for disposal
Bank balances and cash disposed of

The gain on the Pinecrest Disposal was included in other

gains and losses, net (Note 12(i)) in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Pinecrests& B A H & A B2
REEERENAT

HEWE (MFE19)

B

FEWARTE 2@~ HibEWARTE
B IR

RITHEBR A S

ANEE R E A

JE 15 BR TE K 5T 5K TE

Ze RIBWRIE

MIEEE

EIERTE A E (M529)

HEHGABEEFE

R E R B E 2 [ R
EEREE R E A
HEWMB ARz W

AT 375 s A
ReHE
HEMEEZMAX

HEREEZ RS MAFHRE:
RaHE
LARF Bl o B B S A (B E)

EYRIREREFE
HEMEEZMAX
EHEZRITEBRERE

120 ) A e
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2017
HK$'000
FAT

347,162
22

681
5,805
289,856
(613)
(13,392)
(281)
(104,419)

524,821
409

(289,856)
114,368

349,742

352,221
(2,479)

349,742

352,221
(240,786)

111,435
(2,479)
(5,805)

103,151
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

(a)

(b)

Disposal of the Pinecrest Group to a connected person
on 10th February, 2017 (Cont'd)

Note: Strong Point Ventures had elected to settle the
consideration by procuring the entitlement of each of
Global King (PTC) Ltd. (“Global King") and Joseph Lau
Luen Hung Investments Limited (“JLLHIL"), both were
shareholders of the Company, on the special interim
dividend (Note 17(c)) in an amount of approximately
HK$240,786,000.

Disposal of the Win Kings Group to a connected

person on 10th February, 2017

On 5th December, 2016, (i) Paul Y. Holdings Company
Limited (“Paul Y."), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; (ii) the Company, being the guarantor of Paul
Y.; (iii) Creative Dragon Ventures Limited (“Creative Dragon
Ventures”), a company wholly and beneficially owned by
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (“Ms. HW Chan"), being an associate
of three Directors (Ms. Chan, Sze-wan, Ms. Chan, Lok-wan
and Mr. MW Lau) and an associate of Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-
hung (“Mr. Joseph Lau”), the then substantial shareholder
and controlling shareholder of the Company, at the time of
entering into the agreement; and (iv) Ms. HW Chan, being
the guarantor of Creative Dragon Ventures, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement, pursuant to which Paul Y. agreed
to sell and Creative Dragon Ventures agreed to acquire the

entire issued share capital of Win Kings.

The Win Kings Disposal was completed on 10th February,
2017 at a consideration of approximately HK$889,554,000.
Upon completion, the Win Kings Group ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Company and its consolidated results,
assets and liabilities were ceased to be consolidated with

those of the Group.

Details of the Win Kings Disposal were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 5th December, 2016,
13th January, 2017 and 10th February, 2017 and the circular
of the Company dated 28th December, 2016.

39. HEMHEB 27 @

(@)

(b)

RZZ—tHF = A+ A HEPinecrests
BFEEAL (B)

MizE: Strong Point Venturesi® 12 {2 {#

Global King (PTC) Ltd. ([Global
King|) ®Joseph Lau Luen Hung
Investments Limited ([JLLHIL])
(BEHRARRZBRE) AEEZ
Rl A AR SRR (B EE17(c)) A
e RE - £%849/45240,786,000
BT e

R-ZF—+%F = A+ HHEEWin Kings&
EFREEAL

R-ZZT—XE+=-AHRH" () Paul V.
Holdings Company Limited ([Paul Y.])
(RRARz—HEEZEBRANEBR
)5 ()ARAT fEAPaul YIERA
(iii) Creative Dragon Ventures Limited
([ Creative Dragon Ventures |) (—fH e
FRelE L+ (TRIVEL L) (KRETZ
ZhERR=UESF (ARFELL K
R T REBESE) ZHEARRIZ
R ([RIEERE]) (RRRERZ
TERRRERBRR) CHEAN)ZER
BEmBER AR kiR B L
{E & Creative Dragon Ventures#E{R A * 5]
S—BEEWME B Paul YEZHE
¥ Creative Dragon Ventures[7] & B & Win
Kingsz & #B 2 #ATRR A -

Win Kings HER = Z—+HF - A+ H%
B+ B 49 48889,554,000/% It ° I FEAX,
& - Win Kings& BB /AR A A 2 M B
NRHiGAEE AERBEETHR
AREE2GAEE BERAGBRA-

Win KingstE £ > S E R BFIR A AR E
HA-E—~E+-ARBR -—T—+
F—fA+=AR-Z—+&-A+AZ
AFAR=FE—AE+=A=+N\BZ
B
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

(b) Disposal of the Win Kings Group to a connected (b)

person on 10th February, 2017 (Cont'd)

39. HEMHEB 27 @

R=Z—+t&F= A+ HHEWin Kings5%
EFEEAL (B)

The consolidated net assets of the Win Kings Group
as at the date of disposal were as follows:

Stock of properties
Deposits and prepayments
Bank balance

Creditors and accruals
Amount due to the Group

Consolidated net assets disposed of
Sale of amount due to the Group
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration
Expenses incurred for disposal

Net cash inflow arising from disposal:
Cash consideration
Settled by special interim dividend (note)

Net cash consideration received
Expenses incurred for disposal
Bank balance disposed of

2017
HK$'000
FHETT
Win Kings® B/ & B B2
REBESFEWOT
MEGFE 859,061
e KB HIE 1,048
RITH A 1,291
FERTBRIA K FEAT FIR (2,434)
REAREBEFIA (624,967)
HERAEEEFE 233,999
HEXBAREENIE 624,967
HEMB ARz W= 28,958
887,924
LATAN K S2 A -
ReRE 889,554
HEMEA X (1,630)
887,924
HEREAZRERAFH:
ReRE 889,554
VAR Bl AR B AR B S A5 (M 5E) (615,342)
BUR S REFE 274,212
HEMEEZRAX (1,630)
B HE 2 IRITARR (1,291)
271,291

The gain on the Win Kings Disposal was included in other
gains and losses, net (Note 12(ii)) in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

Note: Creative Dragon Ventures had elected to settle the
consideration by procuring the entitlement of each
of Global King and JLLHIL on the special interim
dividend (Note 17(c)) in an amount of approximately
HK$615,342,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

(©

Disposal of Great Captain to a connected person on
23rd June, 2017

On 15th March, 2017, (i) China Entertainment and Land
Investment Company, Limited (“CELIC"), a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company; (ii) the Company, being
the guarantor of CELIC; (iii) Perfect Sign Investments Limited
("Perfect Sign"), a company wholly and beneficially owned by
Ms. HW Chan, being an executive Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company (as trustee for two of her minor
children); and (iv) Ms. HW Chan, being the guarantor of
Perfect Sign, entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which CELIC agreed to sell and Perfect Sign
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of Great
Captain Limited (“Great Captain”), an indirect wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company (“Great Captain Disposal”).

The Great Captain Disposal was completed on 23rd June,
2017 at a consideration of approximately HK$5,567,687,000.
Upon completion, Great Captain ceased to be a subsidiary
of the Company and its results, assets and liabilities were

ceased to be consolidated with those of the Group.

Details of the Great Captain Disposal were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 15th March, 2017,
4th May, 2017 and 23rd June, 2017 and the circular of the
Company dated 13th April, 2017.

39. EEMEB 2T @

(9

R=ZB—tFA=+=HHEEGreat
CaptainFREA =

RZE—+F=A+HB ()PERYE
BEBRAA([PREE]) (KA
Z—HERZEREMBRAR) : (DA
DR ERPIREZEERA (i) Perfect
Sign Investments Limited ([Perfect
Signl) (—MERIBEBLLT (RBITE
EEARAARBRIZEERE (EREN
ARKEFRZEFLIAN))ZERER
HBHzRR)  R(VERIBLZ LT R
Perfect Sign#ER A - A1 —THE B3 °
Bk FIRE R E S M Perfect Sign
[F) 2 88 & Great Captain Limited ([ Great
Captain]) (ARBlz —HMEL2AH
BMERF) 2 2E 2 BITIRA ([ Creat
CaptaintH& 1) °

Great CaptainHER =T —+LF <A
“+=B%K REHX AK5567,687000
VBT ° A FEAK 1% © Great Captain ™ B A4
ARz —HMBAR EEE BEERE
EETHSARNEBE 2GR XE BE
LEEA-

Great Captainti & 2 HEEHIINAR
RBMA-ZT—+tF=A+AHAB =
E-—tFRAMNBR=ZZF—LF~A
Zt=HBzAMUARZT—tEFNA
t=BRZEEA-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

(©

Disposal of Great Captain to a connected person on (o)

23rd June, 2017 (Cont'd)

The net assets of Great Captain as at the
date of disposal were as follows:

Financial asset measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Other receivable

Borrowing (Note 42)

Amount due to the Group

Net assets disposed of

Sale of amount due to the Group

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration

Net cash inflow arising from disposal:
Cash consideration

Settled by special interim dividend (note)

39. HEMHEB 27 @

R=Z

—+t & XA =+=HHEGreat

CaptainFEAEA = ()

Great CaptainiA & A B2
BEEREWT:

8 38 L th, 2 TET U e DA B
AV EFEZEeMEE

H th e YRR 18

B8 (M3Ea2)

REREEFRIE

HEEEFE
HERAAKEFIA

AT 575 s A
RarE

HERELEZRER
BB

VAR Bl B AR B S A (BT E)

Net cash consideration received BB eREER
Expenses incurred for disposal HEMEEZFX
Note: Perfect Sign had elected to settle the consideration by B aE

procuring the entitlement of each of Solar Bright Ltd.,
JLLHIL and Century Frontier Limited, all are shareholders
of the Company, on the special interim dividend (Note
17(d)) in an amount of approximately HK$4,163,339,000.
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2017
HK$'000
FET

6,685,708
146,696

(1,264,717)

(5,501,013)

66,674
5,501,013

5,567,687

5,567,687

HER

5,567,687
(4,163,339)

1,404,348
(1,687)

1,402,661

Perfect Signi# 12 {2 (£ Solar Bright
Ltd. * JLLHILMX Century Frontier
Limited (X &£ /KRR A2 ’RE)
IAE B 2 7 pld BRR B R A (PR &E
7)) BEINRE 2BOA
4,163,339,000/8 7T
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

39. DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES (contd) 39. HEMB QR
(d) Disposal of Union Wings on 24th July, 2017 d R=ZF—tFLtAZ-THALEERH
On 24th July, 2017, the Group disposed of its entire issued RZE—+F+LAZ+MA  AEEMR
share capital and amount due to the Group in Union Wings to BYE=ZFHEERNERZ 2HE BT
an independent third party. AR Ko R B 7R S [ FROR -
The Union Wings Disposal was completed on 24th July, 2017 RENER-_T—tFtAZ+TMHER
at a consideration of HK$800,000. Upon completion, Union X - {8 A800,000/8 L REK 12 @ I8
Wings ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and its BABRAARZ —HWBAR HE
results, assets and liabilities were ceased to be consolidated B BERABETHTALREEZLZ
with those of the Group. EHE AERABEAN-
2017
HK$'000
FET
The net liability of Union Wings as at the date of BRNEERMCBEFENT
disposal was as follows:

Equipment B -
Amount due to the Group REBAEEKE (721)
Net liability disposed of HE&EFE (721)
Sale of amount due to the Group HEXRBAREEFIE 721
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B B 2 B) 2 W s 800

800
Satisfied by: ATF A A
Cash consideration ReRE 800
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEREEZRERAFHE:
Cash consideration received BEReRE 800
The gain on the Union Wings Disposal was included in other RENE 2 W Bt A RS 2 E W= R
gains and losses, net (Note 12(iii)) in the consolidated 2 HAb Was K B HEF R (M RE12(ii) )
statement of comprehensive income. A o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

40. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

Acquisition of Knightlights Property International S.A.
(“KPI")

On 5th May, 2017 (London time), the Group acquired a property
located in the United Kingdom and its related assets and liabilities
by way of acquisition of the entire issued share capital of KPI
(“Acquisition”). The Acquisition was completed on 5th May,
2017 (London time) at a cash consideration of approximately
GBP96,830,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$965,984,000)
and repayment of loan due to former shareholder on behalf of
KPI of approximately GBP77,049,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$773,106,000). KPI holds a mixed use freehold building located
in 11 and 12 St James's Square and 14 to 17 Ormond Yard,
London, the United Kingdom. Details of the Acquisition were set out

in the announcement of the Company dated 7th May, 2017.

Under HKFRSs, the Acquisition was accounted for as an acquisition
of assets and liabilities as KPI being acquired by the Group does
not constitute an acquisition of business. The Group identified and
recognised the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. The cost of the Acquisition was allocated to the individual
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values as at the date of acquisition. Such a transaction does not give

rise to goodwill.
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40. ZRWIE—RBNBARWEBE

-3

i i Knightlights Property International
S.A. ([KPI1])

R-Z—+FHARA (RBEMH)  AEE
FRUWEKPIZ 28 B BT A WAE —BA
REBRZMEREEEEERBE ([WES
B - MBEEER-_T—tFRAARH (A
HEFRE) FERK - 3R & B 49 596,830,000 £
(#8 & 7 49965,984,0007% T ) & A =R KPHE iZ
RERIRRE R A77,049,000H 8 (HHE 7
#7773,106,0007 7T ) © KPI$FH — & iz 53 24
R ZLSt James's Square 11 % 125% BA & Ormond
Yard 1421758 2 476 FEK A EEET - i
FEZHBEHINARAIARAE=-Z—+
FRALHZAMHA-

RIFFBVHRELER - B R A K E UK FEKPI
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

40. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH 40. ZRWIE—RBNBARWEBE
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (contd) -2€)
Acquisition of Knightlights Property International S.A. i i Knightlights Property International
(“KP1”) (Cont'd) S.A. ([KP1]) (%)
2017
HK$'000
FET
The net assets of KPI as at the date of KPR W ig HEA 2 BB )FEN T
acquisition were as follows:
Investment properties (Note 19) wEYHE (MFE19) 1,779,563
Debtors, deposits, other receivables and prepayments FEUARIE -2 ¢ - Efb fEURARIBE M TN FUE 22,108
Bank balances IRITHH 65,619
Creditors and accruals FEAT AR TE R PEET RRIE (8,565)
Deposits and receipts in advance Re RIBWHIA (86,761)
Tax liabilities MIEEE (273)
Loan due to former shareholder RERIREER (773,106)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 29) RIERIE A & (FIFE29) (16,253)
Net assets acquired WEEEFE 982,332
Repayment of loan due to former shareholder BEEXAMNKRRER 773,106
1,755,438
Consideration for acquisition: s RA(E -
Cash consideration BeRE 965,984
Repayment of loan due to former shareholder BEXEABREER 773,106
Expenses incurred for acquisition WHEFE £ 2 X 16,348
1,755,438
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition: W i B B AR 2 TR U R
Cash consideration paid ERRERE 965,984
Repayment of loan due to former shareholder BEREINBREER 773,106
Expenses incurred for acquisition B FTE £ 2 X 16,348
Bank balances acquired B 2 RITAE R (65,619)
1,689,819
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_—Z

“NET A=+ HILFE

41. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 41. T EFRERS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial BRAGRE MG mR E M E 5 FrikfRE N K&
statements, the Group did not have major non-cash transactions. EEFrEFRNeH
42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 42 MEXHKFIEEEEB2HER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TEREINRNEERMEXBAEEZBEEH
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. FE BRASKFRSEH MEXBHME
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash ErzBBENERREREGRAKREASRE
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified as cash flows from BeRAEEZEAReRERN P EAR
financing activities in the Group's consolidated statement of cash EXBEECZREREZEE:
flows.
Amounts
due to non-
Loans from  controlling Dividend Interest
Borrowings  a director shareholders payable payable Total
REFER
[ ESER REFHE ERRS ERFIS ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThT TERL TET FhEL FHEL THL
At Tst January, 2017 RZE—t5-A-H 14,591,394 - 84,761 - 14,426 14,690,581
Financing cash flows RERENRE 2,717,655 1,840,530 (25000)  (4747543) (232,819) (447177)
Exchange adjustments B 5 R 428681 (5,030) - - 1,127 424778
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 39(c)) HE-BHBAR (WE39(0)  (1,264717) - - - - (1,264717)
Dividends declared ERKRE - - - 9,767,010 - 9,767010
Settlements of considerations of disposals of R AL AIRE I
subsidiaries by procuring the entiflements of ~ #¥ Rl Bk S|
shareholders of the Company on special TREERBARZRE
interim dividends - - - (5019467) - (5019467)
Total interest (Note 11) MERE (M) - - - - 234,771 234771
Other changes Eth# - - (10,559) - - (10,559)
At 315t December, 2017 RZZ—+E+ZA=+—H  16473,013  1,835500 49,202 - 17505 18,375,220
Financing cash flows BERZRE (2.481567)  (1,835,117) (250000  (209,838)  (343,343)  (4,900,865)
Exchange adjustments B AR (237.111) (383) - - (950)  (239,104)
Dividends declared ERRE - - - 209,838 - 209,838
Total interest (Note 11) MEgsE (fn) - - - - 342,356 342,356
Other changes Hipg - - (25) - - (25)
At 31st December, 2018 RZE-NE+=ZB=1-H 13,747,675 - 24,171 - 15,568 13,787,420

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 43 EEEH
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the R|ERR NEBAIGAHAEEES A2
assets pledged by the Group to secure general banking and other —RBPTREMEFREURFLRZHME
loan facilities and to secure the securities transactions, granted to BrzEERBEWEOT:

the Group are analysed as follows:

2018 2017

HK$"000 HK$'000

FTER FAT

Investment properties B E 12,770,552 14,234,322
Financial assets measured at fair value through ~ BBEZARBAFEHEZ

profit or loss CREE 6,685,515 10,738,743

Financial assets measured at fair value through 38 3% H ftb 2 AT Uk 25 DA e BR

other comprehensive income RIEFECEHEE 18,760,000 22,437,896

Non-current pledged deposits FEMENEIRF K 83,203 90,541

Current pledged deposits i B 1 4R 17 3R 154,195 172,972

38,453,465 47674,474

As at 31st December, 2018 and 2017, interests in certain RZE—-—NFRZFT—tF+=A=+—8"

subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged as part of the ARAFRETHEAR 2 #EmBEEREAR
SEERETRITEE ZHHEM-

security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

44, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44. BIEE
2018 2017
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET TET
Authorised and contracted for: ERERBEELD:

Capital investment in limited partnership ERAEBLEZERKRE
(note) (H3E) 98,387 119,224
Renovation of properties BT - 2,111
98,387 121,335
Note: The Group had committed to make a capital contribution of Mizt: AEEHEHEERCEAEEL

US$100,000,000 (equivalent to HK$783,150,000) in the Cayman
Islands Partnership. Up to the end of the reporting period,
approximately US$87,437,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$677,957,000) (2017: US$84,748,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$656,936,000)) among the contribution
has been paid by the Group. The outstanding amount was
approximately US$12,563,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$98,387,000, after exchange adjustment) (2017:
US$15,252,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$119,224,000,
after exchange adjustment)).

100,000,000 7t ( #8 & 1 783,150,000
BILI)ZERTE - BERE BRI
KEE D EE 487,437,000k T (HE
R #)677,957,000/% 70) (—ZF —+£4F:
84,748,000 7t (18 & 7 #9656,936,000
BIL) VEREAESHE - RTEZSEY
£12,563,000% 7t (48 & 1 4998,387,000
BT (FEFAER)) (Z2—+F:
15,252,000 7T (#8 & 7 4119,224,000
BT (ERAEER))) -

Other than the capital commitments as disclosed above, an interest- BRUA E#ER 2 EREAEIN REER—HEE
free funding undertaking in proportion of 509% has been provided A A (1550%) —[E# (FHB) GR D AIEM
by the Group to a 50% joint venture, Landrich (H.K.) Limited, in the 125000k Bl 2 % B H B A - B fa] BRF AR fief B2
event that the funds raised from banks or financial institutions by W(BEB)ERARMRTHNEHMEBBRGE 2
Landrich (H.K.) Limited are not sufficient for satisfying any working BoREMEHEEEST KREMEL RN
capital requirements at any time. As at 31st December, 2018, Z-N\F+A=+—H BR(FBE)EAR
Landrich (H.K.) Limited was in net asset position and the Directors RAZMABEEFENREETRRER (F
consider that Landrich (H.K.) Limited had sufficient working capital B)ERAFEHEAREEES WARNERE
and therefore no funding was required as of that date. BRHES-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantee given to a bank in respect of
banking facilities in lieu of the cash public

utility deposit jointly utilised by subsidiaries

Guarantees given to banks in respect of

banking facilities utilised by

45.

A B R RERRITHA
RITEERARERS
RAEBERMA—H
RITIRM 2 FE R

REXKERRHART
EEEMmMMRITRMAZ

46.

investee companies ER

No provision for financial guarantee contracts have been made as
at 31st December, 2018 and 2017 as the Directors considered the
default risk is low.

FURTHER INFORMATION ON DISPOSAL
OF A SUBSIDIARY IN 2014

On 1st September, 2014, (i) Data Dynasty Limited (“Data
Dynasty”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;
(ii) the Company, being the guarantor of Data Dynasty; (iii) One
Midland Limited (“One Midland"), a company wholly-owned by
Mr. Joseph Lau, the then substantial shareholder and controlling
shareholder of the Company; and (iv) Mr. Joseph Lau, being
the guarantor of One Midland, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, namely “Moon Ocean SP Agreement’, pursuant to
which Data Dynasty agreed to sell and One Midland agreed to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Value Eight Limited ("Value
Eight"). At the time of disposal, Value Eight held investments relating
to the Macau Land (as defined below) through Moon Ocean Ltd.

(“Moon Ocean”) (“Moon Ocean Disposal”).

46.

HAREE

2018 2017
HK$000 HK$'000
TER TR
Z
15,000 15,000
625,178 5,025
640,178 20,025

HREERRENRRE YR -2 N\FR
R AFFT A=+ - RUERPTBER
BRELBE-

R-Z2-—NFHE-—HNEBERQ
AzE—SEHR

WZZ—MENA—H (i) Data Dynasty
Limited ([Data Dynasty]) (&2 A Z— M
HE2ERABWNELRR): (VAAF 1A
Data Dynasty#&fR A : (i) One Midland Limited
([One Midland 1) (—M B BI&HE %L E (AR
AIERZFERIRERKRR)2EEBZR
a]) : K (iv) 225 55 & - fE R One Midland#
RARIN—IHEEW# (% 7% [Moon Ocean
B E W) o Bt Data Dynasty@ = H &
K One Midland[@ & & & Value Eight Limited
([value Eight])Z 2HEBITRA-KREHE
B% - Value Eighti& #Moon Ocean Ltd. ([Moon
Ocean NEBBBABM LM (FERTX)Z
# % ([Moon Oceanti &) »
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE_—Z

46. FURTHER INFORMATION ON DISPOSAL

OF A SUBSIDIARY IN 2014 (contd)

Subject to completion of the Moon Ocean Disposal on 31st
October, 2014, (a) if judgments are made in favour of Moon Ocean
in the appeals to its legal case in the Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC (“Macau”) (“Appeals”) and have become final
and the title to the Macau land previously held by Moon Ocean
("Macau Land") is vested on Moon Ocean again, One Midland shall
pay to Data Dynasty the development upside sharing pursuant to
the Moon Ocean SP Agreement; or (b) if judgments are made
against Moon Ocean in the Appeals and have become final, One
Midland shall pay to Data Dynasty the compensation upside sharing

pursuant to the Moon Ocean SP Agreement.

All Appeals were denied up to the end of the reporting period, the

development upside sharing was lapsed.

On 22nd July, 2015, Moon Ocean filed a claim against the
original owners of the Macau Land for refund of transfer prices,
development costs and interests (“Civil Claim”). Further on 13th
July, 2016, Moon Ocean filed a claim against the Chief Executive
of Macau, the Secretary for Economy and Finance of Macau, the
Secretary for Transport and Public Works of Macau, the director of
the Economy and Finance Bureau of Macau and the director of the
Land, Public Works and Transport Bureau of Macau for refund of
land premium paid for revision of the Macau Land in 2011, rents
paid, security money paid and interests (“Administrative Claim”).
Up to the date of the approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Civil Claim and the Administrative Claim are still
in progress. The Directors consider that the compensation upside

sharing is remote.

Details of the Moon Ocean Disposal, the development upside
sharing and the compensation upside sharing were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 2nd September, 2014, the
circular of the Company dated 23rd September, 2014, and in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements in the annual reports
of the Company in 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 under the heading

“Contingent Assets".
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—HFHE-BEHREA
AIZE—SER @

MRZZ—PF+ A =+—H5MAKMoon Ocean
HEBATIR T (@)fiMoon Oceanra) & Bl & Y
FATTEE (DRI IRBE EF(TEFDZ
#HoR A R Moon Ocean: I iR A& R EH R -
ifiMoon OceanR A5 5B 2 BFT + 3 ([RFI L+
)2 ¥ BB IXER B R Moon Ocean - BlOne
MidlandZ8 18 #&Moon OceanE Z 1} & A1 Data
Dynastysz {5 B 2 5 (h #8618 : sk (b) i L 3F 2 &
SRAFIFMoon Ocean -+ I X A & #X 57k + Al
One MidlandZB 1R #EMoon OceanE & 1% ]
Data Dynasty sz </ # {8 5 15 15 & -

BEREHRL B LHFHERRE HED
EBED SR

RZE—RAFEAZ+=H Moon Ocean[
i ﬂiiﬁZJ%%ﬁt/\hﬁj,%a ERIR ELE%%
B RERARFE(TRERE]) R
—R"EFEtA+=H " Moon Oceanz&—*’:ﬁﬂ&
PITTERRE RPIE BT R A A& EPIER
I Al A& RFIEE RBEE R &N KR
THTHERRRRREERE  EXRERZ
T——FEMEBURM Lz THEE - BT
ZHe EHRERAE ([TTHREE]) -BEH
BERGAEUBRERABIL RERERITHR
BINEETEP ZEFRAESHESIHILE
Z Al MR-

Moon Oceantti &  F 3 S (H L E REE DG
EEZFBEEHIRAATBSHA-T —N
FANR-BzAR —ZE—NEAA-+=H
ZBHARARNB ZE—WNF - ZE—RF -
CE-RERIELF2FRPBRENE
HERWE [SKAEE] — BN



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

47. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under

operating leases in respect of premises ZEERNZNZ
and equipment during the year HIEH S K

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases, which fall due as follows:

AEERBADERRE

47. EEHY

TEBAERHEA
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
42,733 42,567

R|BEMR  NEBEB A A REEEZEZRH 2R
AR & TR 2 AHER T 5 B 2 5 -

2018 2017

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year E—FN 15,464 40,123
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERFT (BREEMT) 4,674 1,689
20,138 41,812

Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated for

an average term of one to three (2017: one to three) years.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was approximately
HK$544,533,000 (2017: HK$505,743,000) less outgoings of
approximately HK$17,231,000 (2017: HK$14,202,000).

The investment properties of the Group are expected to generate
annual rental yields of 2.15% to 4.72% (2017: 1.85% to 4.71%)
on an ongoing basis. Most of the properties held in Hong Kong
have committed tenants ranged from two to three years and in the

United Kingdom have committed tenants over five years.

EEBNELTERAREARRETRT
WERA 2 RS BOTFHE—E=F (=5
— - EE)BE—K

AW

REBAHHBEA

RAFERBDz2WEHRSKRADNDAR
544,533,000/ 7T ( —ZZ —+ 4 : 505,743,000
L) BB XA A17,231,0008 L (ZF
—+£4F 114,202,000 7T ) °

NEBZIHE YRR FHENGEF2.15%
F4.720 (ZF—+tF:1.85%%4.71%) 2
SWEE  RFDMUNEBYE 2B AER
REHEME=F RN K Y E 2 H PR
EHBAFEHERATSF-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

47. OPERATING LEASES (contd)

The Group as lessor (Cont'd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year E—FR
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Over five years hENE

48. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement schemes in
Hong Kong, namely the Occupational Retirement Scheme (“ORSO
Scheme"”) and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF
Scheme”). Contributions to the ORSO Scheme made by the
Group are based on a percentage of employees’ salaries ranging
from 5% to 10%, depending upon the length of service of the
employees. From 1st December, 2000, newly joined employees
are compulsorily required to join the MPF Scheme. The employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the

scheme at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of approximately HK$8,450,000 (2017:
HK$10,030,000) represented contributions payable to these

schemes by the Group for the year.
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47.

F_E=FNF (BRHEREMF)

48.

REMBRRME

EEHEN @

FEBERBEEA (B)

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
464,552 508,770
762,114 918,042
364,299 430,602
1,590,965 1,857,414

Rk E R E &

REBZHEBBRAATHIE R ABER
REHEI (TR RIKET B Rag sl A EEE
B ([BFERETE]) - AL M B ZER K S
EH 1R B 5 Bl 2 5%Z 10%H 3k (R T-1& 8 ik
BEE) BZZETTF+-_A—HEMAR
SEZFEEHAELNERESE - EERE
BT RAESFEEAINIRZ R MR-

REEEEERERENBZEREENR
8,450,000/ 7T ( —Z — + £ : 10,030,000/%
To) o BUARSR BN A E R ek FaT B A 2 £t



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=

49. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 49. EXBEA LR S

Transactions:

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the Group had the following material transactions with

related parties during the year:

Income received from associates:
Interest income
Accountancy fee
Consultancy fee
Management fee

Secretarial fee

Income received from a then substantial
shareholder and controlling shareholder of
the Company (“Controlling Shareholder”),
Directors and/or a substantial shareholder
of the Company (as trustee), close family
members of Directors and/or a substantial
shareholder of the Company (as trustee),
companies controlled by the then Controlling
Shareholder, companies controlled by
Directors and/or a substantial shareholder
of the Company (as trustee), companies
controlled by a close family member of the
then Controlling Shareholder, companies
controlled by a close family member of
Directors and/or a substantial shareholder
of the Company (as trustee) and/or a
company of which a Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company (as trustee) is a

member of the key management personnel:

Rental services

Property management services,
leasing administration services and
property administration services

Advisory and consultancy services

Asset management and maintenance services

Other ordinary services

5

it

BB E AR ZIA

FIBMA
et E
k=
EER
WEHM

BR—UARRERZETBERREK

PR R ([EERRR]) EER
SEARRBEERER (ERER
A) BERR LA REEER
R EREFREAN) BREBYZRKE
BB B ERRRES A
B EER/IARAETERR
(EREFREA)EN 2R —fL
HERZERBRREAEEINZR
EREZEN AR —(IHEZE
R/ FARFEERR (ERE
AN BRE ) 2 REKR BT H
ZRAR/F—EERARRAT
FTEER (EREAAIEREER
BEEABZATZHA:

HE MR
MEEERT
THH1T RS M
Y EITHRIRTS
R
BEEENMRERE
HAth — AR5

2018
HK$000
FTEx

2,112
120
58

48

6,683

29,260
37

B \EEH

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

BARGAMBRREMABOAREEIN A&
BN AFEEEEBALETATEARS:

2017
HK$'000
FET

2,105

189

48
10

11,350

52,155
46
386
4,101

EABXEE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

49. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont'd)

Transactions: (Cont'd)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material transactions with

related parties during the year: (Cont'd)

49. EXKBEEALTR S

x5 : (%)

BRANER A M ImAR A % PrBEEIN A&

ERAFERBBATHETUATERARS
(%)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THEL

Licence fee and building management fee paid B4 — 7 BE s 2 = R IR R B R 2

to companies controlled by a close family P2 REK B2 ARIR XK

member of the then Controlling Shareholder —MEERAAREERE (1F

and/or companies controlled by a Director RIEFEAVEG 2 AR A E

and a substantial shareholder of the Company ~ RIEFERE

(as trustee) 11 45
Rent and building management fee paid to ENBERRIZHEE REFTERE

associates 3,835 3,052
Considerations in respect of the disposals of ERALEMBAR TEEAL

subsidiaries to related parties, who were a (RAETSZIER R A — L HEE

company wholly and beneficially owned by a KRR RRESZEEE

close family member of the then Controlling CREKELZAREREEZR

Shareholder and a Director and companies RAIREBER LA AREERRE

wholly and beneficially owned by Directors (EREBERAN)ZERERHEEZ

and/or a substantial shareholder of the NA)) 2B (KEE)

Company (as trustee) at the time of entering

into the respective agreements (note) - 6,809,462

Note: Details of the Pinecrest Disposal (Note 39(a)) and the Win Kings
Disposal (Note 39(b)) were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 5th December, 2016, 13th January, 2017 and
10th February, 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 28th
December, 2016.

Details of the Great Captain Disposal (Note 39(c)) were set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 15th March,
2017, 4th May, 2017 and 23rd June, 2017 and the circular of the
Company dated 13th April, 2017.

The above disposals constituted connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

(Cont'd)

Transactions: (Cont'd)

Interest income was charged at the prevailing market rates based on
outstanding balances during the year. Accountancy fee, consultancy
fee and secretarial fee were charged based on an appropriate
allocation of costs incurred by central administrative departments
of the Group. Management fee, licence fee, rent and building
management fee were determined on terms similar to those

applicable to transactions with unrelated parties.

Rental services, property management services, leasing
administration services and property administration services,
advisory and consultancy services, asset management and
maintenance services and other ordinary services (the contract
for services with effect from 1st November, 2017 (details were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31st
October, 2017) and the former contract for services (details
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
31st October, 2014)) were charged at the terms agreed by both
parties. These related party transactions also constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Details of these continuing connected transactions are
disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in the

section headed "Directors’ Report” of this annual report.

Considerations in respect of the disposals of subsidiaries: (i) for the
Pinecrest Disposal and the Win Kings Disposal, were determined
after arm's length negotiations between both parties with reference
to the consolidated net asset value of the respective subsidiaries at
their respective date of completion; and (ii) for the Great Captain
Disposal, was determined after arm'’s length negotiations between
both parties with reference to the initial investment costs of the
SJB Shares, notional interests on the net investment amount, total
amount of dividends income or distributions from the SJB Shares
received and the outstanding amount of borrowings of Great

Captain as at the date of completion.

During the year ended 31st December, 2017, the Group entered
into facility agreements with a Director. Details are set out in
Note 37. These transactions were fully exempted from reporting,
announcement, independent shareholders’ approval and annual

review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

49. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 49. ERBEALRZ @

x5 : (%)

MBWATDREBENAFREREEERIRER

MSHNESHE -G8 EREBERWEERT

BAEBZHRITREBPIMELEZREZE

SAREMEN-ERE FUE HeRET

S REDRBEIFBEA TR ZERZHEMU
=

RIMEE °

W

my B

S

MERS  WEEERY HBTBRRSE Y
ETBRT - 78 R B R - B E B IE AR
BERBAREM BB (B -F—tF+—
A—BREMZBRBEAH (FERARAR
BRZIE—+FTAZT—HZAMAKE)
RERZBBEEH (FBERARTDAHRR-F
—WFETA=T-BZRMARE) ) HIRE
LT E 2 GERBEGLFRIEE - RIF LR
AIE14AE W FHEA LR ZITERA QA
ZRBRERS RERERERSH 2FBER
REREFTGREE] —HP [HERZ | —
BARE-

BREHENBRBZMRE ()FEPinecrestd] &
KWin Kingsth & » Th & 75 2 Z 18R B A A
RERZEKBZREEEFELATERE
BT ¢ K (ii)siGreat Captainhi& Ty E 2
ERRRITRG ZVEIRER A - REFEZ
ZEMNE - BUE RIRTTD 2 BB R A Sk
Dk 2 #8%8 N 72 52K B Great CaptainfE B 2 &
BESE CLATFEEEET -

RBE-_Z—+F+-A=+—BHLEFER
AEME (B R LRE W - FIFHIIRN
MIEE37 - RIF L TRAFE14AE - ZEXH
B N0 I8 SRR E R F R R A 2R E
ErmEe-
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

49. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 49. ERBEALRZ @

(Cont'd)

Balances:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had balances with
Directors and/or a substantial shareholder of the Company (as
trustee), companies controlled by Directors and/or a substantial
shareholder of the Company (as trustee) and/or a close family
member of Directors and/or a substantial shareholder of the
Company (as trustee) of approximately HK$19,341,000 (2017:
HK$17,940,000) in aggregate which was included in other
receivables and HK$10,843,000 (2017: nil) which was included in

creditors and accruals.

Details of the balances with other related parties at the end of the
reporting period are set out in Notes 24, 25, 28(b), 37 and 38.

Key management personnel emoluments:

Remuneration for key management personnel is disclosed in Notes
15 and 16. The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives
is recommended by the Remuneration Committee for the approval
of the board of Directors having regard to the performance of
individuals, their respective duties and responsibilities in the Group

and the prevailing market conditions as appropriate.
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The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and
therefore the following list contains only the subsidiaries as at 31st

December, 2018 which principally affected the results or assets of

the Group.

Name of subsidiary
WEAEERE

Alpha Team Limited

Cardin Factory Limited
ERARARAR

Chase Master Company Limited
REERAA

Chinese Estates, Limited
EANEXBERARA

Chinese Estates
(Harcourt House) Limited

Conduit Road Development Limited
TREEREBRAF

Country Homes Limited

Estate Rose Limited

Ever Ideal Limited

Evergo China Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Place of
incorporation/
operation
HEMAYL/
LEhy

British Virgin Islands
RBRARES

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands
RERAREE

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

EBERRRS/
0

Bermuda/
Hong Kong
BRE/

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Class of share/
registered
capital held
FRe,/
TRERER

Ordinary
ERk

Ordinary
ERk

Ordinary
ERk

Ordinary
ERk

Ordinary
ERk

Ordinary
ERk

Ordinary

ERk
Non-voting
deferred ordinary
ERRE

B RR
Non-voting
deferred founder
BRRE

AN

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
ERR

BMBRATIZHE
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
share capital/  paid-up share capital/
registered registered capital
capital held by the Company
BETRER KRAFBHERE
BA/EBELR TMERZEDL
Directly Indirectly
EE EE:3
Us$1 - 100%
1E7T
HK$2 - 100%
2B
HK$2 - 100%
2B
HK$1,000 100% -
1,000/ 7T
HK$200 - 100%
20087
HK$10,000 - 70%
10,000/ 7T
HK$200 - 100%
200/ 7T
HK$164,400
164,400/ 70
HK$1,000
1,000/ 7T
US$1 - 100%
1%7T
US$1 - 100%
1%7T
HK$100,775,869.10 - 100%
100,775,869.10/8 7
—B-N\EER

50. T EM B R AIF1E

EEZRRIHLEAHNBARZHBELRES
RIAR B TRABER-F-N\F+=
A=+ HAUAEEZXENEEREEY

Principal activities

TERE

Investment holding

REER

Property trading

Securities investment

BF A

Investment holding
and provision of
management services
REER R
REEERS

Property investment

ES§-

Property trading

Property investment

nERE

Securities investment

Securities investment

Investment holding

RERR
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(Cont'd)

Name of subsidiary
WEARER

Evergo Holdings (China)
Company Limited
EXR%E (PE)ERAT

Express Right Limited
AERRAF

Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited
RELRARAT

Fair Eagle Futures Company
Limited
REBEBRAT

Fair Eagle Securities Company
Limited
REEHBRAA

Flying Ease Limited
ALREBR LA

Grade World Investment Limited

MR ERR A

Hillsborough Holdings Limited

Knightlights Property
International S.A.

Lucky Way Company Ltd.
(Business name:
Lucky Path Limited)
(EHaR:
Lucky Path Limited )

Oriental Master Ltd.
Paul Y. (New Tunnel) Limited
RE (BB FRAR

Paul Y. Holdings Company
Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

Place of
incorporation/
operation
MR/
LEh

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
B5

British Virgin Islands/
United Kingdom

RERARES/
#

Hong Kong
BR

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong

!

British Virgin Islands
REARRES

Hong Kong
BR

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

EBARREE/
0

Luxembourg/
United Kingdom
ERE/
&

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
ERERRES/

British Virgin Islands
RBERRES

Hong Kong
BE

Cayman Islands/
Hong Kong
HeHs/

Class of share/
registered
capital held
FrERe/
HExER

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
AR

Ordinary
AR

Ordinary
EAR

Ordinary
LR

Ordinary
AR

Ordinary
AR

Ordinary
EAR

Ordinary
LR

Ordinary
AR

Ordinary
EAR

Ordinary
AR

Ordinary
AR

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

REMBRRME

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BETRER
BE/EHER

US$2,509,454
2,509,454% T

Us$1
1%

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000/ 1T

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000/ 7T

HK$228,000,000
228,000,000 7T

US$1
(S

HK$2
2T

Uss1
IE

(GBP33,000
33,0005 £

US$1
ES

US$1
ES

HK$2
2T

HK$70,715,005.70
70,715,005.703 T

Proportion of

paid-up share capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
RARFBEHERE/
dExZEL L

Directly
B

100%

100%

Indirectly

GE:3

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. EEMB A RAFE @

Principal activities

TREHR

Investment holding

RERR

Property investment

NERE

Securities margin
financier

ErRECHE

Broking and dealing in
futures contracts
BEANCLREE

Provision of brokerage
RELLE RS
Securities investment

BERE

Securities investment
ERRE

Property investment

nERE

Property investment

nELRE

Securities investment

Investment holding

REZK

Investment holding

REZK

Investment holding

RERK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. EEMB A RAFE @

(Cont'd)
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ share capital/ paid-up share capital/
incorporation/ registered registered registered capital
operation capital held capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary E3ae RS/ BEERTRAR RARFBEHERE/ Principal activities
WEAEEE Benk EMERRH BE/EHER dfExzEA L TEEHR
Directly  Indirectly
BE CE:3
Perfect World Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% Estate management
BENFERARAA B3 g1 10,000/ 7 NEEE
River Court Properties Limited Isle of Man/ Ordinary GBP2 - 100% Property investment
United Kingdom LRk PES NERE
588/
&
Smart Ocean Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 - 100% Investment holding
RBERRES LRER 1% REER
Speed Win Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property trading
AEFRAA Bk ERER 28T NEEE
State Smart Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 - 100% Property investment
REBRAT United Kingdom Lk S ESI§
ERERRES/
#
The House of Kwong Sang Hong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 - 100% Cosmetics distribution
Limited &% LRk 500,000 7T and trading
BEEEERAF felmPHRES
Tycoon Fame Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 - 100% Investment holding
TRERAF REEARES LBk B REER
Wing Lee Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Securities investment
KFRRERRR Bk LRER 28T EHRE
BER (AR LEERFRAAS  PRC Registered US$500,000 - 100% Property investment
(Evergo (Beijing) Corporate i At Ex 500,000% T ES§
Management Co., Ltd.)*
BEZ (IR )REEFHEBRAF.  PRC Registered 1JS$20,000,000 - 100% Property trading
(Evergo Investment Counsel F AfER 20,000,000% T NEEE
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.)*
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at PR B R slopA M fo S 25 AR - I AR BT /& A A
the end of the reporting period or at any time during the reporting BATEMEBRES -

period.

L HNEEERE

4 Wholly foreign-owned enterprise

gABxEm 249
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES 51.

AND JOINT VENTURE

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all associates and joint venture would be of excessive
length and therefore the following list contains only the associates

and joint venture as at 31st December, 2018 which principally

affected the results or assets of the Group.

Associates

Name of associate

BENTEH

Best Profit Limited
FEERRE

Direct Win Development Limited
BRERFRAA

Finedale Industries Limited

EHEXERAR

Power Jade Limited
(Business name:
Power Jade Capital Limited)
(RBaf:
Power Jade Capital Limited )

The Kwong Sang Hong
International Limited

RREMAEERAA
Oriental Arts Building Co., Ltd.!

Place of
incorporation/
operation
EmEL

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
e

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

KBGRBRER/
&0

Bermuda
BRE

PRC
i

' Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise

Joint Venture

Name of joint venture
RENAER

Landrich (HK.) Limited
B (FB)BRAF

Place of
incorporation/
operation
gEmRL/
mEmH

Hong Kong
BE

REMBRRME

EZRA/IHLEE
BLRBBRITE Bt TRABKER-F
—NFT A=+ -BYEREEZREREE
BEEFEZBMERRINEERBZFE

Class of share/
registered
capital held
RS,/
HEMERER

Ordinary
gl

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
EER

Ordinary
LA

Registered
EMER

Class of
share held
Fris 3 B R

Ordinary
ERR

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
ERTRAR
BRA/FMEX

HK$1
18T
HK$900
9007 7T

HK$9,999
9,999% 1T

US$20
20%7T

HK$100,000
100,000/ 7T

US$24,920,000
24,920,000 7T

ll

TERERTARE

A

Proportion of
equity attributable
indirectly

to the Company
ARABEES
REZBED K

25%

33.33%

33.33%

50%

50%

50%

CHSNAERE

EEL A
Proportion of
Issued and equity attributable
fully paid indirectly
share capital to the Company
BRITRAR KRABEES
B REzEAL
HK$100 50%

100/ 7T

= /N

bk KN\
EERN

ell
3

(-

AkAERAZH

Principal activities
TEXH

Property investment
and trading
NEREREE

Property trading

Property investment

NELE

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REEK

Property investment
and hotel operation

MEREREEES

Principal activities
TEXK

Property investment
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52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Loans to subsidiaries

Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other current assets
Time deposit and bank balances

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Share capital
Capital redemption reserve
Other reserve
Retained profits

Total equity

Non-current liability
Loans from subsidiaries

FRBEE
B ARRE
B R &R

REBEE

B~ EREFREA
HtmEHEE

E TR RIRITAESR

REBRE
REWEBRRA
Hip B aE

RBEEFE

EEAERRBEE

RRARFEAA
AL IR A R 2R
&N
N e
H At {5
REEE

IRA SRR

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 5th
March, 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Chan, Sze-wan =]
Director EFE

52. AN AR KRR REE

2018 2017

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & THET FET
5,135,893 5,135,893

2,702,428 2,632,518

7,838,321 7768,411

11,613,282 11,485,843

421 403

7,955 64,376

11,621,658 11,550,622

66,112 34,046

1,150 1,149

67,262 35,195

11,554,396 11,515,427
19,392,717 19,283,838

36 190,762 190,762
138,062 138,062

9 9

16,631,884 16,836,005
16,960,717 17,164,838

2,432,000 2,119,000

19,392,717 19,283,838

CEEZEN _T-NF=ZARAMRERR
BEM THTIEEFRRESGES:

Lam, Kwong-wai
Director

B \EEH

M
BF

EABXEE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HEZ =T —N\F+_-_A=+—HIFE

52. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (contd)

Reserve movement of the Company

At 1st January, 2017

Profit for the year

Interim dividend for 2017 paid

Final dividend for 2016 paid

Special interim dividends for
2016 and 2017 paid

A —
N —

ARE
2t

=

ad A

/

it
=
=

T—tF-A—H

Gl

—LFEFHRE
ENZZ—RFRAKRS

BN=ZZE—XREK

ST ERRIRERA

At 31st December, 2017 RZE—tF
+-A=+—H
Profit for the year RNEE A

Interim dividend for 2018 paid
Final dividend for 2017 paid

Unclaimed dividends forfeited (note)

At 31st December, 2018

Note: Unclaimed dividends forfeited represented dividends declared
by the Company on or before 17th August, 2011 remaining
unclaimed by shareholders of the Company on 28th February,
2018. During the year ended 31st December, 2018, unclaimed
dividends amounted to approximately HK$3,270,000 (2017: nil)

ENZZ-N\FHHRE
BN -EFREARE
RWOR IR B Z BB (P RE)

R=F—-N\%F
+t=A=t—A8

were forfeited and transferred to retained profits.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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52. AN A EARR KRR REE

(%)

KRB ZRHERD
Capital
redemption Other Retained
reserve reserve profits
BEXREE B Hitb & REER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET
138,062 9 9,865,556
- - 16,737,459
- - (381,524)
- - (19,076)
- - (9,366,410)
138,062 9 16,836,005
- - 2,447
- - (19,076)
- - (190,762)
- - 3,270
138,062 9 16,631,884
Mzt RWAWERZBENEARAR-F

——FNA+EtREKZATIRMARE Z
BRARZZE—N\FZA =+ /\BIRER
ZBRE -REE—_T— ) \F+-_A=1+—
BIEFER DABERZRESEN S
3,270,000/ 70 (—ZE— £ F  #) B8

Yo 1 828 8 2 AR R i ) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31st December, 2018 HE-FT— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transaction after the end of

the reporting period:

Agreements for tenancies

The Group (as tenant) has on 28th February, 2019 entered into (a)
a tenancy agreement in relation to the leasing of the whole of 17th
floor of Chubb Tower, Windsor House; and (b) an agreement for
lease in relation to the leasing of the whole of 19th floor, the whole
of 20th floor and the whole of 21st floor of Chubb Tower, Windsor
House, with a company indirectly owned by (i) Ms. HW Chan (an
executive Director and a trustee of the substantial shareholders
of the Company (who are two of her minor children)), both in
her capacity as a trustee of her minor children and in her own
capacity; (i) Mr. MW Lau (a non-executive Director, the chairman
of the Board and a substantial shareholder of the Company);
and (iii) a family trust of Mr. Joseph Lau (the spouse of Ms. HW
Chan) (as landlord). Details of the transactions were set out in the

announcement of the Company dated 28th February, 2019.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 5th March, 2019.

53.

54.

BEMARER

BARGARMBRREMIAOIREEIN AE
BRBEMREBEUATRS

HE =

RZE—NFZAZ+NB ~EE (EAH
PlEAOKRIBZ T (MITESRARAZ
FERR (BzMBRKFFR)ZEFEA)
(AERKRFFRZEETAZEDRERS 2
5H): (NEEREE(FRTEF EFF
FREARBZEBIRE) » R(i) BT E
(R Br LT 2BEEB) 2 RGETEEREZ
PNEl (EAXE)FI ()~ HEBBEEEX
ELXEASREI7TEZENHERZ  X(Ob)
—HERHEEZAEREASAEIES
B-2082EBR2QVEZENRAEHEEHZE %
ERXGZHBEIRARTBRHE-Z—N
FZAZTNBZAMA-

RETIRGRESMB®RRE

EFXgER T AF=-ADBHEREKE
B A B®RE-

“E-\FFHR EABXEE
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFHBEHME

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

years is as follows:

Results

Revenue

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Eamnings per share (HK$)
Basic and diluted (note)

Total comprehensive (expenses) income
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Final and interim dividends per share
(HK cents)

Special interim dividends per share
(HK cents)

Note: The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based

£

WA

BB AT A
SRR

REREH

B AF RGN
ARAHEA
SRR

)

SRAM BT
(H&E)

ER &S

BEAFERZE
() ameE:
RAREEA
iR ER

BRABRPHRS
(&l
BRI AR
(&L)

FEBBERFZEE

For the year ended 31st December

HEt-A=t-BL%¥E

BERAEHBENT

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET 5T FET FET
843,618 1516655 3745148 1542397 2627288
1,186,854 4125682 7258155 8,196,126  9,008758
(127,081)  (327049)  (564,966)  (476395)  (255859)
1,059,813 3798633 6693189 7719731 8752899
1,015290 3708886 6360312 7727208 8744927
44,523 89,747 332,877 (7477) 7972
1,059,813 3798633 6693189 7719731 8752899
0.53 194 3.33 4,05 458
(2,116,980) 16348710 3418670 6520561 8484606
44,523 89,747 332,877 (7477) 7972
(2072,451) 16438457 3751547 6513084 8492578
n 30 2 3] 3]
- 355 869 380 655
MizE: SREARBERINDNIBEEFEANBES

on the profit attributable to owners of the Company for the years and

on the weighted average number of shares in issue during the

relevant years. Diluted eamings per share were the same as the

basic earnings per share as there were no diluting events during the

relevant years.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

years is as follows: (Cont'd)

Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Net asset value per share attributable to
owners of the Company (HK$)

Number of shares issued

BERARE

BERE
BELR

BABEEE

fElh:
ARRHEBA
FERiEE

RRATHEAAENS
FREEFE(ET)

BETRNHE

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY FH & B #E#E

AEBEBERLFZEE EERBEHRENT:

(&)

At 31st December

R+=ZA=t+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHEL THET TET TET
48,690,703 56,063,355 45,775,735 63,055,217 71,424,931
(14,547,134) (19570353)  (15,875,880) (22,729,855) (29,772,338)
34,143,569 36,493,002 29,899,855 40,325,362 41,652,593
34,062,368 36,385,916 29,804,216 40,247600 41,567,354
81,201 107,086 95,639 77762 85,239
34,143,569 36,493,002 29,899,855 40,325,362 41,652,593
17.86 19.07 15.62 21.10 21.79
1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079
—E-)\FFEHR EAEBEXEE
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
TEWRHKR

The following table sets forth the Group's major properties as at 31st December, 2018:
TREI A EBR _Z-NFFT_A=+—BZFEYE:

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG EBYWE
Properties held for investment BEREDE

Location

8

1. Harcourt House
(excluding 7th, 8th, 9th, 22nd,
23rd, 25th, 26th and 27th floors,
rooms 1004 and 1805)
39 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(including 113 car parking spaces)
ERAKE
BRELS
HLITE39%
(7-8+9°22:23+25"
26274 + 1004 %1805 F K 5M)
(BfEN3M@EN)

2. Causeway Place*
Various shops on ground floor,
mezzanine floor, 1st and 2nd floors and
their respective portions of exterior walls,
together with flats C, I, J, K, L, N, O, P, Q

Lot number

1 B} 4R 5%

Certain parts or shares of and
in Inland Lot No. 8573

A ER85735% 2
ETEA s hE

Certain parts or shares of and
in Inland Lot No. 7742
iR T77425: 2
ATHORHE

(each including a flat roof) and H on 3rd floor

Hong Kong Mansion

nos. 1-7 Paterson Street and
nos. 2-10 Great George Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
i

ERREL

BREHETRRE

AR E2-10%;

EBRE

wh-EE ERBETERR
HEHD ZIMEER

3EC 1)K L'N-0-P:Q
(BREELZTR)RHEN

* Certain shops have been sold
ATERDEL
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Category of

the lease

Usage term
A% HEER
Commercial Long
GES =4
Residential/ Long
Commercial =

/%

Group's
interest
S
Frib s

100%

100%



PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd)

Properties held for investment (Cont'd)

Location

12

3. Possehl Building
Nos. 14-18 Ma Kok Street,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong
BRETAE
ERMRLE
HAE4E185

4. Various Portions of
No. 1 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(comprising 391 workshop units and
77 car parking spaces)
ERNERE
BEEIRETEN
(BRE3ETHEMRT7TEEL)

5. Olympian City 3
1 Hoi Wang Road
South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including certain private car parking spaces
and motorcycle parking spaces)
REH=H
Eyctil=pk:
BB
(BRETHRREENREEHEE)

6.  Coronation Circle
1 Yau Cheung Road
South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including certain private car parking spaces
and motorcycle parking spaces)
hEE
EEOENLE
KB
(BRETRREEN REEHEN)

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES 3 E ¥ K&k

ERBYE®

BHEREWE (8)
Category of
the lease
Lot number Usage term
1t B 4 5% A% HEBER
Tsuen Wan Town Industrial Medium
Lot No. 128 I% wh
EETIR1285%
Certain parts or shares of and Industrial Medium
in Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 415 I% H Hf
BUE N RAI55E 2
ATHORHE
Certain parts or shares of and Commercial Medium
in Kowloon Inland Lot Nos. HE H
11167 and 11168
NBEANIER
111671116852
ET A HE
Certain parts or shares of and Commercial Medium
in Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11073 [EES H
BN 110735 2
EFHokHE
—E-\FER

Group’s
interest
%
Frit s

50%

33.33%

25%

15%

EABXEE
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES % 2 ¥ 3£ fff &

PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA

Properties held for investment

Location

it B

1. Hilton Beijing
1 Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
Tt REWEEE
tRmHE R
RZIRILEE  ROTEE19

2. Oriental Place
9 East Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
RAEBEBAE
tRmHEE
BRI - R T REKO5R

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2018

R (A b ) 3£
FEREME
Category of
the lease
Usage term
Jik=3 HEER
Hotel Short
B IS g B
Office Short
BFE 52 85

Group's
interest
Frik R

50%

50%



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES 3 E ¥ K&k

PROPERTIES IN THE UNITED KINGDOM KEIYI=
Properties held for investment FEREME
Category of Group’s
the lease interest
Location Usage term &
i 25 A HEER Frih Rz
1. River Court Commercial Freehold 100%
116-129 Fleet Street [HES KA
London, EC4, United Kingdom
River Court
EE R EC4
Fleet Street 116-1295%
2. 14 St George Street Commercial Freehold 100%
14 St George Street [HES KA
London, W1, United Kingdom
St George Street 1455
HEMfRE W1
St George Street 145%
3. 61-67 Oxford Street and Residential/ Freehold 100%
11-14 Soho Street Commercial AR
61-67 (odd) Oxford Street and T/ THE
11-14 Soho Street
London, W1, United Kingdom
Oxford Street 61-6755; &
Soho Street 11-145%
HEMfEE W1
Oxford Street 61-675% (28557 ) &
Soho Street 11-145%
4. 11 and 12 St James’s Square and Residential/ Freehold 100%
14 to 17 Ormond Yard Commercial KA

11 and 12 St James's Square and e T
14 to 17 Ormond Yard

London, SW1Y 4LB, United Kingdom

St James's Square 11 R 125 &

Ormond Yard 142175}

HERZH SW1Y 4LB

St James's Square 1151257 &

Ormond Yard 14Z 1755

—E-N\FEH  gAExsm 259
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SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

YIS R R MY R

PROPERTY IN HONG KONG BRYE
Property held for development BIERREYE
Estimated
Approximately gross
Estimated site area floor area Group's
Stage of  completion  (square feet)  (square feet) interest
Name of project Lot number completion date BEERHH  AEEE Usage &8
HEER B R THRER fiTRAS (F5R) HEE(EER) R# gy 5
Grand Central New Kowloon Superstructure works First half 234,160 1,853,561  Residential/ 10%
33 Hip Wo Street Inland Lot No. 6514 in progress of 2021 Commercial
Kwun Tong, Kowloon HNE FERETR “Z--F Fx/m%
Hong Kong M ER65145% T a3
HE
0
NEBR
1A E33%:
Notes:
P& -
1. The property development rights were granted pursuant to development agreement with the Urban Renewal Authority
MEEHREDBBEETREZBI L2 ERBHERD
2. Certain residential units were contracted for sale as at 31st December, 2018

R-E-N\F+_A=t+—H ETEZEMZTNEE
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